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Seeking sustainable profits to
underpin healthy growth
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Corporate Profile

Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Hengdeli” and its
subsidiaries, collectively as the “Group”) is the world’s largest
retailer of internationally renowned watch brands. Its shareholders
include the Zhang family, SWATCH Group Limited, the world’s
largest watch manufacturer and distributor, and LVMH Group, the
world’s largest luxury goods conglomerate.

The Group owns an extensive retail network comprising: Prime
Time/Hengdeli (mid-end and mid-to-high-end internationally
renowned watch brands), Elegant (top-end internationally
renowned watch brands) and single-brand boutiques. As at
31 December 2014, the Group had 513 retails outlets, selling
watches from more than 50 internationally renowned brands in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. The Group has about
400 wholesale customers in over 100 major cities.

2 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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The Group serves as the maintenance agent for 68 international

brands and provided professional integrated after-sales warranty
maintenance for internationally renowned brand watches and
has established an interactive customer service network covering
the Greater China Region including Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Taiwan. The Group also owns a number of comprehensive
packaging and display products manufacturing enterprises.

The Group has maintained sound and in-depth collaboration with
many world-renowned premier brand suppliers including SWATCH
Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group, ROLEX Group and
KERING Group, distributes and exclusively distributes world-
renowned brand watches.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange since 2005 with stock code 3389. The
stock name is Hengdeli in short.
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1874 4

Establishment of Hengdeli as a
distributor of renowned watches;

1997 4

The Zhang family joined hands with
Beijing Yishang Group in setting up
Beijing Hengdeli Switzerland Clock and
Watch Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Hengdeli”) to
engage in the wholesale and retail of
internation% renowned watches;
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1874 Establishment of Hengdeli as a distributor of renowned watches;
1957 Establishment of Hengdeli Main Store in Beijing (state-owned);
1997 The Zhang family joined hands with Beijing Yishang Group in setting up Beijing Hengdeli

Switzerland Clock and Watch Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Hengdeli”) to engage in the wholesale and retail of
internationally renowned watches;

1999 The Zhang family cooperated with Shanghai Luwan District Government and others in setting up
Shanghai Xinyu Watch & Clock Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Xinyu”) to engage in the wholesale and retail
of internationally renowned watches;

2005 Reorganisation of the Group based on the framework of Beijing Hengdeli and Shanghai Xinyu, and
the listing of the Group on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange;

2006 100% Acquisition of Elegant Watch and Jewellery, a top-end watch retailer in Hong Kong,
expanding the retail business into Hong Kong market;

2007 Establishment of the joint venture company with SWATCH Group for world-renowned watch retail;

2010 Stepping into Taiwan and Macau world-renowned watch retail markets, further expanding and
consolidating the Group’s leading position in the Greater China region;

2011 Total sales exceeding RMB ten billion;

2013 Opening the first online single-brand flagship store with the authorisation of brand suppliers;

2015 10" anniversary of the Group’s listing on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

4‘ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Highlights of Brands
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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We maintain S(Ad and prudent
operations in striving to be
pragmatic yet innovative, with the
view of creating more value for
shareholders and the society.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), for the year ended
31 December 2014 (the “year” or the “year under review”), for
your review.

Amidst 2014’s global economic instability, China gradually set
itself a new normality and began fine-tuning its economy from fast
paced to more moderate growth. While adhering to its established
prudent growth strategies, the Group adopted an approach
of “seeking sustainable profits to underpin healthy growth”.
As a result, we secured business stability and safeguarded
shareholders’ interests by recording a sound operating
performance in the highly challenging market.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had recorded turnover of
RMB14,764,370,000; an increase of 10.4% year-on-year. Retail
sales amounted to RMB10,608,804,000; an increase of 6.3%
year-on-year. Net profit reached RMB583,427,000, an increase
of 24.4%, while profit attributable to equity shareholders of- the
Company totaled RMB504,220,000, an increase of 25.9% as
compared to the same period last year.
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During the year under review, the Group maintained its “seeking
sustainable profits to underpin healthy growth” approach as its
business philosophy in China’s “new normality” economy. The
Group followed two key directions — striving to stabilise existing
operations and seeking new profit sources as foundations for future
sustainable growth.

On branded watches distribution and sales, the Group continued
to follow existing strategies such as respectively focusing on mid-
end brands in Mainland China and high-end brands in Hong Kong
which mutually reinforcing each other; continuing developing mid-
end brands while stabilising high-end brands; expanding business
networking into Mainland China’s second, third, and fourth-
tier cities while securing market shares in first-tier cities; and
establishing a multi-level sales system across Mainland China and
Hong Kong. At the same time, the Group continued to intensify
management refinement and work closely with brand suppliers.
The Group also moved forward with structural adjustment and
inventory optimisation aimed at boosting single store output. Such
effective measures helped generate solid results. As a result, retail
sales increased by 6.3% year-on-year, while retail sales in Mainland
China which focuses on mid-end brands grew by 11.6%. Decline
in sales of high-end brands recorded a slowdown, while sales of
mid-end brands experienced an encouraging growth of 16.1% with
same-store sales growth of mid-end brands reaching 2.2%, which
is above the Group’s average. After optimisation, adjustment and
effective expansion, the Group operated a total of 513 retail outlets
in the Greater China region of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan as at 31 December 2014 and the performance of each
individual store also improved steadlily.

Under its new strategy, the Group began to streamline its industrial
segment at the beginning of the year, and this process has now
been almost completed, with a mid-to-long-term development
plan having been drawn up. The strategic integration of customer
service is being optimized. A focus on both service and profit will,
assuredly, take the Group’s customer service to a new level. The
Group believes that the strategic development of the industrial
segment and customer service will open up new prospects for the
Group, promoting its long-term healthy development.

The Group’s construction of the e-commerce platform is now
integrating and improving. Besides the exclusive online stores
authorized by brand suppliers, an integrated interactive online to
offline (020) platform will be launched shortly, thereby achieving
smooth interaction among 020 sales, online customer service,
3D experience and comprehensive review. Coupled with popular
social networking platforms such as Weibo and WeChat, the
interactive sales will provide excellent support for the Group’s future
development.
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The Group’s core values of “respect, commitment, cooperation and
innovation” have enabled us to build a solid foundation for fulfilling
our corporate governance and social responsibilities. Believing that
business exists as a part of the society and prospers along with
it, the Group has been shouldering social responsibility in terms
of protecting the environment, managing environmental quality,
conserving resources and developing talents, all of which are
contributing to the Group’s healthy development.

Looking forward to 2015, China’s economy appears likely to
continue to evolve despite ongoing global economic uncertainties.
We believe that the new normality will continue to create exciting
opportunities for the Group. As a result, our future development
appears likely to benefit from the more diversified growth drivers
and a more visible macro outlook due to the increased stability
of China’s business environment and further releasing of market
catalysts. Combined with our well established core competitive
advantages, such a set of beneficial circumstances ensures the
Group remain cautiously optimistic about our future.

In the coming year, the Group will continue to stabilise our existing
growth of inventory in a more conventional yet innovative manner.
At the same time, we will actively foster new profit sources. In
respect of expansion, our mid-end brands will continue to serve
as the mainstay, targeting our expansion into the most promising
second, third and fourth-tier cities in Mainland China. Moving
forward, we will also seek to cement progress within stability by
further refining our management and inventory mix and upgrading
the quality of our retail outlets and the image of our retail brands.
We will also continue to leverage tried and tested advantages under
new strategies so as to address evolving market circumstances.
To this end, we will accelerate the pace of development across
our industrial segment, customer services and e-commerce. This
sensible and innovative way we adopt will surely prove invaluable
in our quest for the sustainable profits needed to underpin healthy
growth and create greater value for both our shareholders and the
society at large.

Rain or shine, we move ahead together. This year marks the
10th year of our listing and, on behalf of the Group, | would like
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers,
customers and other business partners for their ongoing trust and
support, as well as to all our staff members for their dedication and
wholehearted contributions over the past years.

By Order of the Board
Zhang Yuping

Chairman

Hong Kong,17 March 2015
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In response to the global economic instability of 2014, China
gradually set itself a new normality and began fine-tuning its
economy from fastpaced to more moderate growth. While
adhering to its established prudent growth strategies, the Group
adopted an approach of “seeking sustainable profits to underpin
healthy growth”. As a result, we secured business stability and
safeguarded shareholder interests by recording a sound operating
performance in a highly challenging market.

I. Financial Review

Turnover

During 2014, the Group recorded turnover of
RMB14,764,370,000; an increase of 10.4% year-on-year. Retail
sales amounted to RMB10,608,804,000; an increase of 6.3%
year-on-year. Of this figure, retail sales in Mainland China posted
a year-on-year increase of 11.6% to reach RMB6,248,240,000
while Elegant Hong Kong'’s retail sales experienced a year-on-year
decrease of 17.7% to RMB2,593,388,000. Excluding the impact
of foreign exchange gains and losses, the decrease was 16.6%.

The sales growth of the Group in 2014 remained at the same
level as in 2013, indicating the normalisation of our business
operations moving from rapid to more stable expansion. Growth
of our total retail sales was mainly generated by domestic retail
outlets and mid-end brands. While continuing weak sales of
high-end watches had some impact on the total retail sales, the
new normality of China’s economy and our strategy of aligning
operations with market dynamics has paid off. As a result, the
decline in sales of high-end watches in Mainland China began
to slowdown. Meanwhile, sales of mid-end brands remained
favourable, posting a year-on-year growth of 16.1%. Same-store
sales of mid-end brands also grew by 2.2%, which is above the
Group’s average growth for the year.
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Sales breakdown: (for the year ended 31 December 2014) HEES M (BE_E-—WNF+_A=+—RHI1-FE)

2014 2013
— ik —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
AR AR
(F7t) (F) %
Retail Business TEEB
Mainland China B A, 6,248,240 5,598,929 41.9
Hong Kong b 2,593,388 3,151,948 23.6
Taiwan = 182,761 . 206,454 1.5
Harvest Max [ i 1,584,415 1,021,302 7.6
Wholesale Business LXK 3,726,721 3,118,244 23.3
Customer Services and Others ZERMS R EM 428,845 . 278,566 2.1
Total #Et 14,764,370 13,375,443 100
Mainland China Hong Kong
hE R it
42.3% 17.6%
Taiwan
=y ]
1.3%
Harvest Max
Customer Services and Others 3¢
EFRREREAM 10.7%
2.9%
Wholesale Business
REEET
2014 25.2%
Gross profit and gross profit margin EH R EFR =

During 2014, the Group’s gross profit showed a 16.0% year- ®BZE_ZT—MF+_A=+—HI AEEZEMNOR
on-year growth and reached approximately RMB4,224,832,000. A R #4,224,832,0007T * 8 EF R H F7116.0% : £
Gross profit margin stood at around 28.6%, representing an  F & %928.6% * WMAF R B - F 7T 140MEEE - 10515
increase of 140 basis points year-on-year. Excluding Harvest S RRINER - SEZTEENE[BE NE -  HF 2
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Max’s contribution, the gross profit margin for the Group’s retail
business showed a slight decrease, which was mainly due to
the more flexibility in discount offerings during the sale of high-
end brands amidst intensified market competition and the relative
subdued economic environment.

Profit for the year

The Group recorded net profit of RMB583,427,000; an increase
of 24.4% year-on-year. Profit attributable to equity shareholders
amounted to RMB504,220,000; an increase of 25.9% as
compared with the same period last year. This was largely due
to our effective business expansion and management refinement
plans and other contributions.

Financial status and net debt to equity ratio

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

As at 31 December 2014, the total equity of the Group
was RMB6,628,628,000 and net current asset value
was RMB6,878,921,000. Bank deposits amounted to
RMB1,968,065,000 while bank loans totalled RMB1,486,339,000.

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate principal amount of HKD-
settled convertible bonds due in 2015 issued by the Company on
20 October 2010 was HKD95,000,000. The aggregate principal
amount of the USD-settled senior notes (“Senior Notes”) due in
2018 was USD350,000,000. Combining the net amount of these
convertible bonds and Senior Notes, with bank loans, the Group’s
total debt amounted to RMB3,738,249,000. The net debt to
equity ratio of the Group was approximately 26.7%. Including
fixed deposits in banks, the effective net debt to equity ratio was
25.0%. The Directors of the Company believe that the net debt to
equity ratio remains within a healthy and manageable range.

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and cash
management, managing bank credit availability and monitoring
risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The Group
maintains a good partnership with a number of banks which
provide facilities, and reviews the funding liquidity and financing
requirements regularly.
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Operating cash flow

During the year under review, based on its prudent and proactive
business objective and market-oriented policies, the Group
continuously improved the inventory structure and enhanced
financial management while continuing developing business so as
to ensure a steady and healthy operating cash flow which has laid
a sound foundation for further business development.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, HKD
and USD. During the year under review, the foreign exchange
movements of such currencies continued to be managed as
cautiously as always. As a result, the Group was not exposed to
any significant risks associated with foreign exchange fluctuations.

The Group has been actively monitoring its foreign exchange risk.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had land and buildings of
RMB10,282,000 pledged as security for various mortgages.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Current assets

During the year under review, the Group’s current assets
amounted to approximately RMB10,309,594,000. Comprising
inventories of approximately RMB6,612,693,000, trade and other
receivables of approximately RMB1,615,836,000, cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB1,968,065,000, and deposits
with banks valued approximately RMB113,000,000.

Current liabilities

During the year under review, the Group’s current liabilities
was approximately RMB3,430,673,000, comprising bank loans
of approximately RMB991,831,000, trade and other payables
of approximately RMB2,240,209,000, and current tax payable
of approximately RMB25,960,000, provision of approximately
RMB94,668,000 and convertible bonds of approximately
RMB78,005,000.
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Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued share
capital, convertible bonds, reserves and accumulated profits.
As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,799,130,959 shares, and the principal amount of
convertible bonds due in 2015 was HKD95,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB78,005,000). Reserves and accumulated
profits totalled RMB5,960,084,000.

Material investment, acquisition and disposal

Save as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, there
was no other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and associated companies, nor was there any other significant
investment held by the Company during the year under review.

Final dividend

The Company recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB3.2 cents per share for the financial year ended 31 December
2014 in return for shareholders’ support subject to approval by
shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 15 May
2015. The proposed cash dividend will be paid on or before 8
June 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 20 May 2015.

II. Business Review

During the year under review, the Group’s business remained
primarily focused on the retail business of internationally
renowned branded watches, comprehensive customer service,
manufacturing of packaging and display products, the distribution
of internationally renowned branded watches and e-commerce,
etc. in the Greater China Region with a core presence in Mainland
China and Hong Kong.

Retail network

Amidst 2014’s global economic instability, China gradually
set itself a new normality and began fine-tuning its economy
from fast-paced to more moderate growth. While adhering to
its established prudent growth strategies, the Group adopted
an approach of establishing its new normality and “seeking
sustainable profits to underpin healthy growth”. Two key
directions were followed - striving to stabilise existing operations
and seeking new profit sources as foundations for sustainable
growth of the Group.
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On branded watches distribution and sales, the Group continued
to follow existing strategies such as respectively focusing on mid-
end brands in Mainland China and high-end brands in Hong Kong
which mutually reinforces each other; continuing developing mid-
end brands while stabilising high-end brands; expanding business
network into Mainland China’s second, third, and fourth-tier cities
while securing market shares in first-tier cities; and establishing a
multi-level sales system across Mainland China and Hong Kong.
At the same time, the Group continued to intensify management
refinement and work closely with brand suppliers. The Group
also moved forward with structural adjustment and inventory
optimisation aimed at boosting single store output. Such effective
measures helped generate solid results. As a result, retail sales
increased by 6.3% year-on-year, while retail sales in Mainland
China which focuses on mid-end brands grew by 11.6%. Decline
in sales of high-end brands recorded a slowdown, while sales of
mid-end brands experienced an encouraging growth of 16.1%
with same-store sales growth of mid-end brands reaching
2.2%, which is above the Group’s average. After optimisation,
adjustment and effective expansion, the Group operated a total of
513 retail outlets in the Greater China region of Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan as at 31 December 2014 and the
performance of each individual store also improved steadily.

In continuing to set the pace in the global sale of internationally
renowned watches, the Group maintains strong business
relationships with many world-renowned watch brand suppliers,
including SWATCH Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group,
ROLEX Group and KERING Group, etc. As at 31 December 2014,
The Group distributed over 50 international brands from these five
major suppliers and other independent watchmakers including
Breguet, Bulgari, Cartier, Girard-Perregaux, IWC, Jaeger-
LeCoultre, Longines, Mido, Omega, Rolex, Scatola del Tempo,
TAG Heuer, Tissot, Vacheron-Constantin, Van Cleef & Arpels
and Zenith, etc. During the year, several new brands such as
Manufacture Royale, MB&F and Vulcain were introduced. During
the year, the Group continued to step up efforts to bring in and
align mid-end, mid-to-high-end and high-end brands across both
Mainland China and Hong Kong to optimize the brand portfolio in
order to pave the way for long-term business development and
the ongoing enhancement of overall sales performance.
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The Group’s retail network covers the Greater China Region,
where retail stores mainly includes “Prime Time”/“Hengdeli”,
“Elegant” as well as certain single-brand boutiques.
Time”/“Hengdeli” mainly sells mid-end and mid-to-high-
end international brands, while “Elegant” focuses on top-end
internationally renowned brands. After effective expansion,
adjustment and integration, as at 31 December 2014, the Group
operated a total of 513 retail outlets across Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan as classified and detailed in the table
below:

“Prime
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As at 31 December 2014

BE-Z—NF+=-A=+—H1
Mainland China Hong Kong Taiwan Macau Total
R El At &8 =) B BmE
Prime Time/Hengdeli 381 7 34 - 422
BERTT 1587 (Harvest Max)
(m/ﬁn)
Elegant 17 5 1 - 23
=
Brand boutiques 30 17 20 1 68
mEEEE
Total 428 29 55 1 513
et
Mainland China A [ AT
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network of retail outlets in Mainland China with a broad core 1bt& ~ B3 ~ #0T  ST% - jAlEg ~ (UG - 5#4b - 34 -

presence by consolidating our share of key markets such as
Beijing, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Henan, Shanxi, Hubei,
Northeastern and Southwestern China. We are also a significant
market player in Central, Southern, Northwestern and other
regions of China.

“Prime Time” is the major retail outlet arm of the Group in
Mainland China and mainly sells internationally renowned mid-end
and mid-to-high-end branded watches. This chain’s positioning is
designed to cater for the actual demand of Mainland consumers
and complement the Group’s high-end watch business strategy in
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2014, the Group operated 428
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retail outlets in Mainland China, 381 of which were “Prime Time”
shops. The Group’s “Elegant” shops mainly sell high-end watches
and have a relatively small coverage in Mainland markets. Most
of the Group’s 17 existing “Elegant” shops in Mainland China
are located in more mature first-tier cities such as Shanghai,
Beijing, Hangzhou, Nanjing, Shenyang and Chengdu and are
predominantly brand image shops. The “Elegant” brand opened
no new shops during the year.

During the year under review, the Group’s operational strategy
in Mainland China focused mainly on keeping pace with
market adjustments. The top priority here remains the ongoing
intensification of management refinement so as to enhance the
performance of individual outlets and also the effective expansion
of the Group’s existing sales network. As current market
dynamics dictate that the growth in demand for mid-end brands
remains higher than that for their high-end counterparts, the
Group continued to concentrate on re-positioning and adjusting
its mid-end outlets. Our over-riding intention here is to steadily
expand our mid-end watches retail network by widening our
activities in Mainland China. To further increase market share,
new outlets have already been set up in the regions with the
highest sales records. Specific examples include store openings
in third, fourth and even fifth-tier cities with the highest potential
as well as emerging areas in second and third-tier cities. In
attempting to solidify and improve single store output, the Group
has also combined standardised and refined management so
as to further improve overall business processes and ultimately
boost efficiency. In responding to changing market conditions, we
have also carried out a timely and reasonable adjustment of our
brand portfolio. We have also optimised our inventory structure,
enhanced the sales skills of our frontline staff and improved
customer relationship management capabilities at various outlets.

Our ambitious management refinement and effective expansion
strategies have already succeeded in achieving encouraging
results. Following necessary adjustment, during the year under
review, our “Prime Time” retail chain become one of the biggest
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contributors to the Group’s net increase in sales across all
outlets. Retail sales in Mainland China recorded a year-on-year
growth of 11.6%. While the decline in sales of high-end watches
experienced a slowdown, revenues from mid-end watches grew
steadily, achieving a year-on-year increase of 16.1%. These
results stabilised and reinforced our leadership in market shares
of different key regions across Mainland China, paving the way for
sales sustainability in both the mid and long term.

The several main key drivers of our business in Mainland China
including urbanisation accelerating and the public’s consumption
ability on better quality of goods and services. The rapid
expansion of Mainland China’s second, third and fourth-tier
cities and the ingoing rise of the country’s new middle class are
other factors that are helping to lay a sound foundation for mid-
end brands’ sustained growth. As a result, a sales strategy of
continuing to target mid-end and mid-to-high-end internationally
renowned branded watches will remain the Group’s Mainland
China focus for both the short- and medium-terms.

Hong Kong and Macau

The Group’s retail business in Hong Kong mainly focuses on
high-end brands. As at 31 December 2014, we operated 22 retail
outlets in the Territory under the “Elegant” brand name. Around
5 of these shops sold high-end watches, while 17 were single-
brand boutiques or image stores. Currently, outlets operated by
the Group in Hong Kong are mainly located in prime districts such
as Tsim Sha Tsui, Central, Causeway Bay and Shatin.

High-end brands we currently market in retail outlets across
Hong Kong include Blancpain, Breguet, Cartier, Chopard, Dewitt,
Franck Muller, Girard-Perregaux, IWC, Jaeger-LeCoultre, Omega,
Panerai, Piaget, Vacheron-Constantin and Zenith. We also offer
consumers products from leading independent watchmakers such
as Christophe Claret, Heuge and Scatola del Tempo, etc. During
the year under review, several new brands including Manufacture
Royale, MB&F and Vulcain were introduced. Such high-end
additions to our product portfolio continue to fully complement
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and create tremendous synergies with our retail business in
Mainland China and Taiwan. In order to better adapt to ongoing
changes in the mix of mainland visitors, we started to deploy
multi-layer sales models and brand positioning in Hong Kong.
To this end, we introduced several mid-end brands targeting at
satisfying the market’s growing demand of a more diversified
customer group. In doing so, we are continuing to expand and
consolidate our market share and maintain our leading status in
Hong Kong.

Facing tough macro-economic constraints beyond our control,
Hong Kong’s retail market remained sluggish. Subdued consumer
demand for high-end brands indicated that recovery was yet to be
felt in this retail sector. Amidst the various market volatility during
the year under review, the “Elegant” brand’s Hong Kong retail
sales decreased by approximately 17.7%. Excluding the impact
of foreign exchange gains and losses, the effective decrease
was 16.6%. The decline in the second half of the year was more
noticeable. On a more positive note, the said sales volatility was
far smaller than the industry average. This was largely attributable
to our extensive, solid and loyal Hong Kong client base, our
favourable partnership with brand suppliers and the benéficial
interaction between our retail outlets in Mainland China and Hong
Kong. The more comprehensive after-sale service network of our
Greater China Region also helped guarantee exceptional after-
sales care and attention for Mainland China tourists shopping in
Hong Kong.

During the year under review, “Elegant” opened a new Montblanc
boutique at Causeway Bay’s World Trade Centre in Hong Kong.
The new outlet is now complementing our already well-established
multi-brand shop and single-brand boutiques in Times Square
and so helping to consolidate and expand our market share in
this world famous shopping hub. To further enhance sales and
upgrade its overall image, “Elegant” also adjusted the brand mix
in its multi-brand shop at Shatin’s New Town Plaza by introducing
Panerai and Cartier during the year.
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During the year under review, the operations of “Elegant” teams
in Hong Kong focused on management refinement. In addition
to strengthening staff training at different levels, their specific
activities included enhancing employees’ specialist knowledge
of watches and frontline service standards. As always, the over-
arching aim here was to further improve service quality and add
to customer satisfaction. The brand also did everything possible
to secure and expand market share by upgrading its management
model and building up a talent pool capable of supporting a
world-class professional sales force. In moving forward, “Elegant”
will continue to strengthen customer loyalty by beefing up its
marketing campaigns and so further uplifting its products’
international visibility. During the year under review, the Group
committed resources and began collaborating more closely with a
broader portfolio of international brands via advertising, VIP events
and other promotional activities. Through the brand’s own official
website and top social networking platforms such as Facebook,
Weibo and WeChat, the Group publicised brand developments,
market movements and company updates so as to establish and
maintain sound interaction with consumers and “Elegant” loyalists.

Currently, Hong Kong’s high-end consumer goods sector
continued to follow a correction trajectory. Capitalising on its
strengths in synergy with the Mainland China market, brand
equity and network coverage, “Elegant” will carry on capitalising
on market dynamics in an attempt to consolidate and capture
more market share during a period of major economic adversity.
In doing so, the brand will strive to maximise its profit upside and
once again cement the Group’s pre-eminence in the Territory’s
watch retail market.

In adapting to changes in the mix of mainland visitors to Hong
Kong, the Group also started to deploy multi-layer sales models
and brand positioning. These market expansion initiatives
succeeded in achieving measurable results by introducing various
mid-end brands and centralised marketing to visitors in the
Territory.

EEENH  BEFER FA-E - HEBALRE
2 BEBENRSER  SEUETHI - RS
ABEERAMBERGKFE - LMGERBESE - BATF
MER A HRERNEMAETRERX - A
AHBER - ENITEBR-REXCEEEN - &
REYFREANTSDEMTLERE - BEZBN
TEFNRTIHEH - IREFPLBE - tME—FRS
[ZERKInENBERARE ODEFEAN  SEE
BRABR Mo RREARSERRERLR
& BERPMEMEFEDPIRAE  BRBEL
=BT #8915 A RFACEBOOK 8 1& - {2
wEe  REEFREER THEEMAREE &
ZEEBEZT YRS RIFNEEHRRE -

BAT > BESWEEMITRDENARY AEEZE
BZEREREETEAMNRTES - B FmELER
BEFEY  WALEMSSR - EHHEELFN
FEZMMISNE - UEARERFAFBERZER - REF
KEERBTFRTEMHMELIAL -

REEPEANMIBALEB NS SEEEED
BT ZEEMNEERARREGRE  BBSERS S
EmERREABNETHESERHEMS - BFT
BUAFRRCR -

SRABERERAT —2-mEgs 27



During the year under review, the Group’s business in Macau
was still poised. In recent years, watch and jewellery retail
sales in Macau accounted for a significant weight of, and a
sizeable increase in, Macau’s total retail sales. Coupled with
rational industrial diversification and Macau’s growing economic
importance, the Group’s Hong Kong and Macau businesses
are sure to achieve synergy and further consolidate the Group’s
regionwide leadership.

Taiwan

Our Taiwanese retail business adheres to a similar sales strategy
as that now harnessed in Mainland China and focuses on the sale
of mid-end and mid-to-high-end watches. Our operations here are
currently in the process of network building and nurturing initiative.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group operated a total of 55 retail
outlets in Taiwan. These outlets were mainly located in prime
districts of major cities such as Taipei, Taichung, Kaohsiung,
Hsinchu and Chiayi. With the exception of one “Elegant” shop
which sells top-end watches and various single-brand boutiques,
all other retail outlets are “Hengdeli” shops. Each store operated
under this brand name markets mid-end and mid-to-high-end
watch brands such as Certina, Hamilton, Longines, Rado, TAG
Heuer and Tissot, etc.

During the year under review, sales revenues in Taiwan remained
roughly the same as those achieved during the previous year.
Currently, our target consumers in Taiwan are mainly local
customers. In the context of globalisation and regional economic
integration, Taiwan’s economy remains on course yet to start
exploring transformation possibilities. As cross-strait business
relations and economic ties between Mainland China, Taiwan and
Hong Kong strengthen, Taiwan is sure to open up more markets
and welcome more visitors from Mainland China.

E-commerce

Currently still in its initial ramp-up stages, our e-commerce
platform mainly focuses on single-brand flagship stores which
have been franchised by brand owners. During the year under
review, our existing single-brand stores performed well in both
page views and transaction volume. The independent e-commerce
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portal for “Prime Time” is now being tested and fine-tuned and an
online-to-offline interactive sales platform will shortly be launched.
Upon its full commissioning, the new platform will enable us to
establish interactive operations incorporating two-way traffic
diversions, online customer services, a 3D experience and
cultural communications. Coupled with popular social networking
platforms such as Weibo and WeChat, we are confident the new
platform will make positive contributions to our long-term growth.

The Group continues to attach great importance to its e-commerce
platform which is regarded as a pivotal future bridge via which
to reach out to customers. Franchised by brand suppliers, such
sound interaction between online and offline single-brand and
multi-brand stores can also be expected to contribute to ourselves
and our brand partners’ mutual benefit. Designed to seamlessly
combine speedy access to information from internationally
renowned branded watches and the privileged shopping
experience customers desire, the new platform will help instil a
cosmopolitan global culture in which branded watches become
integral to consumers’ daily lives. In other words, in addition to its
positioning as a trading portal for world famous branded watches,
our e-commerce platform will form an integral part of an effective
information channel. As such, it will help connect customers to
brands, also serving as a carrier for communications regarding
the culture of watches.

Customer service and maintenance

High quality after-sale service remains a cornerstone of the
Group’s continued success. In addition to being mirrored at
store level and in customer management systems, our highest
assurance for our consumers and brand suppliers embraces
advanced technology, joint warranty across our customer service
network, considerate services and efficient follow-up. Coupled
with continual training of our technical personnel by brand
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suppliers, our proven human resources policy of recruiting talents
worldwide continues to maintain our position at the forefront
of maintenance expertise internationally. Comprehensive joint
warranties covering the Greater China region including Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, as well as an interactive
customer service network consisting of “repair and maintenance
service centres”, “repair service stations” and “repair service
points”, ensure the delivery of consistently excellent all-round,
one-stop services for customers. Our handy 4008 service hotline
also acts as a centralised service channel, offering callers timely
advice and further enhancing customers’ confidence in ourselves
and our brands.

During the year under review, we launched a “Hengdeli customer
service account” with WeChat. The new facility ensures up-to-the-
minute online customer services and promotional activities that
are perfectly aligned with our existing offline customer services.

During the year under review, we also established a customer
care and maintenance centre in Chengdu, our first such facility
in Southwestern China. The centre is now providing greater
convenience for consumers in Southwestern China and so further
underlining their confidence in patronising our products.

The year under review also saw us launch a Hengdeli Group
customer care and maintenance centre in Hong Kong, the
Group’s first such facility outside Mainland China and sixth
customer care centre overall. In addition to providing greater
convenience to Hong Kong customers, the centre is also further
expanding the scope of our customer service and warranty
support across the Greater China region and so once again
adding to consumer confidence.

Given that watch suppliers are increasingly seeking integration,
diversity and comprehensiveness of global services for their
brands. Leveraging our operations’ tried and tested sound service
and expertise, we continue to build on our strong links to such
brand suppliers. To this end, we have entered into an exclusive
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watch maintenance agent agreement covering brands such as
Girard-Perregaux, Bottega Veneta, Zegna and JeanRichard, etc,
with the KERING Group during the year under review. We are
also consolidating our partnerships in the area of comprehensive
customer services arrangements with SWATCH Group brands
such as Tissot, Mido and Certina, etc. As at 31 December 2014,
we served as an official maintenance agent for 68 international
brands. Some 45 of these brand partners have appointed us as
their exclusive maintenance agent.

High-calibre maintenance technicians have long been the
foundation via which we have guaranteed our customers after-
sales services to truly world-class standard. As a result of our
close cooperation with the LVMH and KERING groups, the year
under review saw us dispatch several maintenance technicians to
achieve remarkable results on various overseas training courses.
We also continued to maintain good partnerships with brand
suppliers in Switzerland as well as respected watch maintenance
technical schools in foreign countries such as Sweden and Japan.
In doing so, we have done everything possible to enhance our
technical staff’s skill sets and also support our growing network
of retail outlets in Mainland China’s second, third and fourth-tier
cities. Our scale of maintenance technical training courses was
further expanded when various overseas senior technicians were
given full responsibility for course planning and teaching. The
ultimate aim here remains the provision of top-notch training for
frontline maintenance technicians in a timely and phased manner.

During the year, Group technicians Li Zansong and Bu Jianmin,
were respectively promoted to “Chief Technician” level by the
People’s Governments of Beijing and Shanghai.

The year also saw the improvement of customer service
consultations at strategic level, with tasks being accelerated
towards the achieving of already established objectives. We
believe that our adopting of a dual-pronged approach targeting
services and profits will mark the start of a new chapter in the
Group’s customer services capabilities. As always, our key
commitment continues to be paving the way for sustained long-
term development.
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Packaging and display products

The Group sees the packaging and display segment as one of
its most lucrative long-term potential profit generators. During
the year under review, we consolidated the operations of our
industrial business segment under our established strategy. In
doing so, we continued to strive to attract and retain talents
through measures such as enhanced working conditions, labour
intensity and employee benefits. In delivering on our promise to
boost productivity, we optimised our mix of labour resources,
increased our investment in mechanisation and automation
and further strengthened product research and development.
A new matrix of channels designed to source orders was also
implemented. In striving to transform our strategic goals in this
segment into realities, we developed a three-year plan aimed
at achieving moderate to high double-digit composite growth
in profit for the next three years via expansion and enhanced
research and development.

Our packaging and display activities remain vital ancillaries for
the Group’s watch sales. We believe that, backed by our new
strategy and vast groupwide resources, our outstanding branch
and subsidiary teams and proven management and technological
expertise, we will succeed in transforming packaging and display
into an integral part of our watch business. In doing so, we will
create yet another stable profit source to secure our long-term
growth.

Brand distribution

In the area of brand distribution, the Group has always worked
hard to explore the market by achieving functional division and
cooperation with brand suppliers and retailers. As part of this
process, we leverage our and our partners’ strengths and attempt
to coordinate the development of a truly integrated sale and
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supply chain. During the year under review, we continued to work
closely with our brand supply partners in responding to changing
market dynamics by streamlining and improving our inventory
mix as well as optimising upstream and downstream links along
the supply chain. As always, our main aim remained the bringing
about of healthier and more sustainable development. Based
on jointly conducted research, a number of incentive policies
and sales programs were closely aligned with market needs and
regional characteristics. These developments empowered our
retailers with more comprehensive and thoughtful services with
which to stimulate their frontline staff’s enthusiasm when serving
customers.

The Group has maintained good and well-coordinated
partnerships with key brand suppliers and retailers. Backed by
our partners’ unwavering support, our operations have been able
to achieve truly harmonious and mutually beneficial development.
The year under review also saw both sales and gross profit from
brand distribution post encouraging steady improvement.

The Group has approximately 400 wholesale partners in over 100
cities across China. Each wholesaler helps us to distribute or
exclusively represent world-renowned watch brands such as TAG
Heuer, Zenith and Bulgari of the LVMH Group, plus Hamilton,
Certina, Balmain, Tissot, Mido and CK of the SWATCH Group.

lll. Human Resources and Training

Committed to the belief that people will always be a successful
business’s most precious assets, the Group strives to practise an
entrepreneurial spirit of “mutual respect, shouldering responsibility,
close collaboration and ongoing innovations”. As our business
moves forward, we will continue to utilise this philosophy as the
cornerstone of both our corporate management and corporate
social responsibility (CSR) policies.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 9,713 employees
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. We have
always been determined to continually develop and add value
to our resources in the area of human capital. For this reason,
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we implement a standardised recruitment system and allocate
resources to various training initiatives for our managers,
frontline service staff and maintenance technicians. The resultant
skills enhancement workshops cover topics such as the art
of management, sales skills, brand knowledge and service
awareness. Our primary objective in running them is to enhance
our people’s knowledge, marketing know-how and service
capabilities. We also work closely with our brand suppliers and
provide regular training for frontline service staff and maintenance
technicians spanning key disciplines such as brand knowledge
and maintenance expertise.

The Group offers its workforce a competitive remuneration
package enriched with various attractive incentives and regularly
reviews its rewards structure mechanisms so as to better reflect
future corporate development needs. Over the years, we have
granted share options to management staff and associates in
recognition of their contributions to our success and in order to
motivate them to achieve still higher levels of excellence in the
future. We also offer various competitive welfare schemes such as
pension and MPF plans, insurance, housing and meal allowances
to our general staff.

Such a solid rewards system has ensured we have been able to
create a high level of harmony between employees of different
nationalities and cultural backgrounds under one shared vision.
Outstanding staff members have also been recognised with the
“Capital Labour Medal” and the “May 1st Labour Medal” for their
efforts. We remain justifiably proud of our track record in recruiting
and retaining talented senior sales persons and repair technicians.
During the year, two Group technicians in Beijing and Shanghai
were respectively promoted to “Chief Technician” level.

IV. Outlook

Looking forward to 2015, China’s economy appears likely to
continue to evolve despite ongoing global economic uncertainties.
We believe that the resultant new normality will continue to
create exciting opportunities for the Group. As a result, our future

36

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

IRABRR  RERBREEENEN - HERD - &
MR N RS BRE  ARTT L ARUKT - E i REe

ARISEED] + WM HERE A IF - H R M 4 AT AR IR
A B RAER A B TT R0 F 3 S Bl 2 353 o

AEBREAEBF HOHI RS BAEHS - e
mE RIS - UENERAEERNFTE - A&
BRAR—REEELREBALELBRESE  UKRY
HUEBEMENER - XHBESREFNRR - A
B ARENSEEREEEZEESN  eEERKSH
FEtd - wiEE  RRFE - FEMERS -

ERNRHFNANERRERR  AEEBTRATRE
RMtE  TRECEBENE TER—BI THRT
tF- AEEAZRBETEGIBESHET | R[2EA
—SHRE |ZHE  ABTREEZESMHEEARR
BARGEED - AFE - EMBEERE DRI REILR
A LET B2 SRR o

V. RERRE

“TRF BHREREERBDETWER - EPE
RBERENTRTETER - HIMEE  HERERE
EHHB - MENKEREFENTR  THBNE—
TRBEMSEERBNENZ T  ERITSBE NS



development appears likely to benefit from more diversified growth
drivers and a more visible macro outlook due to the increased
stability of China’s business environment and further releasing
of market catalysts. Combined with our well established core
competitive advantages, such a set of beneficial circumstances
ensures we remain cautiously optimistic about our future
prospects.

In the coming year, the Group will continue to stabilise our
existing growth of inventory in @ more conventional yet innovative
manner. At the same time, we will actively foster new profit
sources and continue to adhere to our proven approach of
“stabilisation + expansion”. Continued “stabilisation” will require
us to maintain the smooth and efficient running of our existing
businesses, while “expansion” will necessitate the bolstering of
structural adjustments and the implementation of improvements
aimed at upgrading our strategic deployment. These two pursuits
will together create a complementary unified whole that will
help take our business to the next level. In the coming year,
we foresee mid-end brands will continue to provide us with the
key for successful expansion into the second, third and fourth-
tier cities in Mainland China with the most lucrative potential.
In moving forward, we will also seek to cement progress within
stability by further refining our management and inventory mix
and upgrading the quality of our retail outlets and the image
of our retail brands. We will also continue to leverage tried
and tested advantages under new strategies so as to address
evolving market circumstances. To this end, we will accelerate
the pace of development across our industrial segment, customer
services and e-commerce. This sensible and innovative way we
adopt in doing so is sure to prove invaluable in our quest for the
sustainable profits needed to underpin healthy growth and create
greater value for both our shareholders and society at large.
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The Directors of the Company have pleasure in presenting this
annual report together with the audited accounts of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company

The Group is engaged in the retail and distribution of mid-to-high-
end consumer goods including internationally renowned watch
brands, related customer service and manufacturing of packaging
and display products.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company which
materially affect the results, assets and liabilities of the Group are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserve

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company was RMB2,239,361,000, which is set
out in Note 31 to the financial statements in this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Company recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB3.2 cents per share for the financial year ended 31 December
2014 in return for shareholders’ support, subject to approval by
shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 15 May
2015. The proposed cash dividend will be distributed on or before
8 June 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 20 May 2015.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Financial Summary

The summary of the Group’s results and balance in the last five
financial years (for the year ended 31 December) are set out in
page 81 of this annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Repurchase of Securities

During the year under review, the Company repurchased 3,776,000
listed shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited by
way of acquisition from the market. The total consideration paid
was HKD6,182,000. Upon the completion of the settlement of
such repurchase, the Company has cancelled all repurchased
shares.
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Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,799,130,959 shares. The Company held nominal
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As at 31 December 2014, the total number of shares in issue was
4,799,130,959 and the total number of outstanding share options
was 385,000.

Directors

The names of directors during the year 2014 are as follows:

Zhang Yuping, Huang Yonghua, Lee Shu Chung Stan, Shi
Zhongyang, Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai William, Liu Xueling.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of the
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors for a term of three years. The Company did
not enter into service contracts that cannot be terminated without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)
within one year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director has entered
into any service agreement with any member of the Group.

Directors’ Material Interests in Contracts

Save as described in this annual report, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company or its subsidiaries, its controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries and any of its Directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during the year under

review.

Remuneration of the Directors and the Five Highest Paid
Directors/Employees

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance with
specific basis during the year under review are set out in Note 7
to the financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals during
the year under review are set out in Note 8 to the financial
statements.

Details of remuneration of the senior management during the year
under review are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.
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The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

- The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of service in
the Group;

- The non-monetary benefits are determined by the Board and
are provided in the remuneration package of the Directors or
the employees;

- The Directors and the eligible employees shall be granted
with options of the Company as determined by the Board to
be part of their remuneration package.

Employee Retirement Benefit Scheme

Details of the Group’s employee retirement benefit scheme are
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s biographies
is set out on pages 48 to 51 of this annual report.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or Any of Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of each
of the Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

RERE 2 FEBER T

- ¥HRBEREEFHEENAELE BE T
FERESERBFREFMIET

— FREWIABFGRT  REFHEENFH
B

- EENABEREER BHEFTSRTRERAE
RAIHEEREBOFMETE -

& BiRIKAEFET &l
AEBERKENGE 2 F BN 2 B RERM
28

EENEAEEREZERE

EELAREEBZBEEBN BN AFRFISAESR
518 »

B = MITBAAT B AR B ST AERXE
Befn ~ HERARR ) MEHEE 2 BE ORR

RZF-MF+-A=1t—8 EFRTREZIRAR
AR ERBEE(ER (B Z LB G (FBED
EEE) [Ex MGG 1B 1580 B - R, &
BEEET - FHRIEE S LR R F362F L ENA
RAATHEZERMAZERIAR + JREFF
NEIE GG 1E1680587 R FE8H » HiB A AR E N Bk
Rz EmSRR (BRREES PR ERINZEG
X W EFRRERAENERIORR)  RIREBELET
BRAFH EMARESETERR ZNFEETARE -
ABAARNE R R PT2 Em FOARIAT -

wmnppamag —z-mees 41



Approximate

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares Percentage
BEMA 2= [gviE 2 =] HNEDLH
Mr. Zhang Yuping Controlled Corporation and Personal (Note 1) 1,5633,888,501(L) 31.96%
BSCIR e Pzl a RAEA K1)

Mr. Huang Yonghua Personal 40,488,800(L) 0.84%
FOKESLLE fEA

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the shares.
Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital
of Best Growth International Limited (“Best Growth”), which
in turn held 1,480,520,901 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2014. During the year under review, Mr. Zhang
Yuping held 53,367,600 shares of the Company under his
name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping holds 1,533,888,501
shares of the Company in aggregate, representing 31.96% of
the issued share capital.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2014, the
interests or short positions of the persons, other than Directors of
the Company, in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

Name of Shareholder

[LIREKRBBALTRBRNDIFE TR °
Miatt - RETEE R EEREBR AR AR ([EE1)100%
MEETRA  M&ARR-_ZE—NFE+=-A=
+— B+ 5 AR F1,480,520,9010% 15 + K F
?ﬁiﬁé@&ﬁﬁrgmwl/\%%%ﬁz:&“ﬂﬁﬁ{“
53,367,6000%  # + SRE)F R EAKIFAELR
f%151,533,888,501 0% + {5 ZE1TA A HI31.96% °

TEBRRFBHARBKSD
&2 R MR R

R S (E 4

REBFEAAE RZE-—AOF+-_A=1+—0 REAR
ARy - MERARK D REHERE T A RIEE S R AEGA
FEIBOIHRALHE - RARBATHREZECMAZERER
REMAL(ERRB ZEERINGT ¢

Number of Shares  Approximate Percentage

RERER [iSviE = =] KNEDL
Best Growth (Note 1) 1,480,520,901(L) 30.85%
=18 (Hat1)

Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 1) 1,5633,888,501(L) 31.96%
RIS (HYaET)

The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 2) 437,800,000 (L) 9.12%
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited(#/z#2)

The Swatch Group Limited (Note 2) 437,800,000 (L) 9.12%

The Swatch Group Limited(#7:£2)
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Number of Shares

Name of Shareholder

Approximate Percentage

BRI & D& E HEDL
LVMH Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited (Note 3) 20,354,400(L) 0.42%
LVMH Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited(f7:£3)

TAG Heuer SA (Note 3) 20,354,400(L) 0.42%
TAG Heuer SA(H17#3)

TAG Heuer International SA (Note 3) 20,354,400(L) 0.42%
TAG Heuer International SA(H#:%3)

LVMH Asia Pacific Limited (Note 3) 285,582,000(L) 5.95%
LVMH Asia Pacific Limited(#7:£3)

Sofidiv SAS (Note 3) 305,936,400(L) 6.37%
Sofidiv SAS(A17£3)

LVMH SA (Note 3) 305,936,400(L) 6.37%
LVMH SA(f1:#3)

Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP (Note 4) 288,972,699(L) 6.02%
Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP(#1:£4)

Chengwei Evergreen Management, LLC (Note 4) 288,972,699(L) 6.02%
Chengwei Evergreen Management, LLC(//7%4)

CW HDL Limited (Note 4) 288,972,699(L) 6.02%
CW HDL Limited(##z£4)

EXL Holdings, LLC (Note 4) 288,972,699(L) 6.02%
EXL Holdings, LLC(#f314)

Li Eric Xun (Note 4) 288,972,699(L) 6.02%
Li Eric Xun(#tz#4)

Li Zhu Yi Jing (Note 4) 288,972,699(L) 6.02%
TS (Hit4)

Harris Associates Investment Trust (Note 5) 245,477,400(L) 512%
Harris Associates Investment Trust(f/7£5)

Harris Associates L.P.(Note 5) 243,777,800(L) 5.07%

Harris Associates L.P.(#7:5)
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the shares.

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:
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Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital
of Best Growth International Limited (“Best Growth”), which
in turn held 1,480,520,901 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2014. During the year under review, Mr. Zhang
Yuping held 53,367,600 shares of the Company under his
name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping holds 1,533,888,501
shares of the Company in aggregate, representing 31.96% of
the issued share capital.

These 437,800,000 Shares are held in the name of and
registered in the capacity of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong)
Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire issued share capital
of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited is beneficially
owned by The Swatch Group Limited. According to the SFO,
The Swatch Group Limited is taken to have interest in all the
Shares held by The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited.

Among these 305,936,400 shares, 20,354,400 shares are
held in the name of and registered in the capacity of LVMH
Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited and 285,582,000
shares are held in the name of and registered in the capacity
of LVMH Asia Pacific Limited. LVMH Watches & Jewelry
Hong Kong Limited’s entire interest is owned by TAG Heuer
SA, and TAG Heuer International SA beneficially owns 100%
interest in TAG Heuer SA. Sofidiv SAS beneficially owns
100% interest in each of TAG Heuer International SA and
LVMH Asia Pacific Limited. LVMH SA owns 100% interest in
Sofidiv SAS.

According to the relevant information, these 288,972,699
Shares are held in the name of and registered in the capacity
of CW HDL Limited. Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP owns
67.06% interest in CW HDL Limited. Chengwei Evergreen
Management, LLC owns 1% interest in Chengwei Evergreen
Capital, LP; EXL Holdings, LLC owns 31.7% interest in
Chengwei Evergreen Management, LLC; and Li Eric Xun
(spouse of Li Zhu Yi Jing) owns 50% interests in EXL
Holdings, LLC.

The number of interested shares and shareholding percentage
reflect the interest of Harris Associates LP (“HALP”) and Harris
Associates Investment Trust (“HAIT”) as at the filing date. As
the directors are aware, HALP serves as the discretionary
investment adviser to HAIT and its interest in our Company’s
share include HAIT’s interest in our Company’s share.
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Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the 12 months ended 31
December 2014 was the Company, its holding company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enabled the
Directors (including their respective spouses or children under 18
years of age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or subsisting during the year under review.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as

BB I EEE L
W [ BEAEE 8 S REES BE-T MG+
“AZT—RIETZEAR - ARE - HERARSH

MEARBMELHES(BRARBIKRB +\RZT
k)uiﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi’&T‘szfﬂﬁfm/f/\@ g2 Bt skiE
RERE 2 7 RS s

Af@ = l:l n\

REBFEAR  BETYAFEEMERNRRERLE
EEBEMZEERITRIERL -

TEREFRHEER
REBEFER  REFEREEREBRES ZRBR
WEZASLMT

follows:
Purchase e
— the largest supplier — A ER 71%
— five largest supplier combined —AABEREE 88%
Sales HE
— the largest customer —HKRKEP 2%
— five largest customers combined —AABEFAR 6%

The Swatch Group Limited and LVMH Group, through their
respective subsidiaries, constituted two of the five largest
suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the above major suppliers or customers.

Connected Transactions

During the year under review, the Company had no transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Swatch Group Limited MLVMHEEFEBEEER
M A EIfEA AR pLFER R MIAL o BRULBEERE SN - #E
BMEE HBBALTHKAEMRRE(GRESHNERARRAR]
AR HEBSWA Lim®E )R Ll s T EHERRES
REERER

RE 2 5

REBEFE - AR ERE EmRRIAREENTMA
RAEE R 5 o

sunERaRAad —2-meen 45



Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Company for the year under
review have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Since 9 July 2004, being the date of incorporation of the
Company, there have been no changes in our auditors.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members will be closed from Wednesday, 13 May
2015 to Friday, 15 May 2015 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the members on the register of members who are eligible to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting. In order to
establish entitlements to attending and voting at the annual
general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
12 May 2015.

The register of members will be closed on Thursday, 21 May 2015
to Friday, 22 May 2015 to confirm the members on the register
of members who are entitled to the proposed final dividend. In
order to establish entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 May 2015.
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Disclosure of Information on the Websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange

An annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014
containing all the information required by Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules will be dispatched to shareholders of the Company
and published on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange in due course.

Acknowledgement

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to express our
sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their continuing support
and to all our staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group during the year under review.

General Information

As at the date of this report, the executive Directors are Mr.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman), Mr. Huang Yonghua and Mr. Lee Shu
Chung Stan, the non-executive Director is Mr. Shi Zhongyang,
and the independent non-executive Directors are Mr. Cai Jianmin,
Mr. Wong Kam Fai William and Mr. Liu Xueling.

By Order of the Board
Zhang Yuping

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2015
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alias Cheung Yu Ping) (3R¥i°F), aged 54, is
the chairman and executive Director of the Company. He is the
founder of the Group and is in charge of the Group’s strategic
development and overall management. He has nearly 30 years of
management experience in the middle-to-high-end consumables
distribution industry in the PRC.

Mr. Huang Yonghua (ZE7K %), aged 44, is an executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of the Group’s
business co-ordination and operational supervision. Mr. Huang
has over 20 years of experience in the watch distribution industry
in the PRC and in management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (&), aged 55, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible for
overall coordination and management of the Group’s retail
business and the Group’s brand distribution business. He
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree and has pursued further
studies in Business Administration. He has nearly 30 years of
experience in watch manufacturing and distribution.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongyang ($ {1F%), aged 40, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in the PRC and
University of Goetting in Germany with a Master’s Degree in Law.
Mr. Shi joined The Swatch Group Limited in 2000 and joined
the Group in 2006. He is currently a legal counsel of the legal
department of The Swatch Group Limited.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (333£[R), aged 71, is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from the industrial accounting faculty (T

&+t %) of Shanghai College of Finance and Economics (&8t
#FE[T). Mr. Cai holds a Certificate for Professional Accountants
(B EE R EZE) in the PRC. He had held senior financial
management positions for various companies including Shanghai
Hualian (Group) (/2% 8(E ). Mr. Cai joined the Group in 2005.
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Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William (Z$%#&), aged 55, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from University of
Edinburgh, Scotland with a Bachelor’'s Degree and a Doctorate
Degree in Electrical Engineering. Mr. Wong is currently a professor

in the Department of Systems Engineering and Engineering
Management in The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
obtained the qualification as a Chartered Engineer (CEng) in 1991,
and is now a member of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and a
professional member of the Association of Computing Machinery.
Mr. Wong joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. Liu Xueling (£|228), aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from East China Normal University in
Shanghai with a Doctorate Degree in History. At present, he is a
senior lawyer in Shanghai Tongyan Law Firm (/& @A EATES
). He joined the Group in 2007. He has been an independent
director of Shanghai Qiangsheng Holding Co., Ltd. since July
2014. The said company is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600662).

Senior Management

(Hengdeli Group as mentioned below represents the Company’s
major holding subsidiary — Hengdeli Group Limited)

Mr. Song Jianwen (R#EX), aged 62, is the vice president of
Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of
internal audit and control of the Group. Mr. Song graduated from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (F &8 Bf & BUE K E2)
with a Master’'s Degree in Economics. Mr. Song has more than
20 years of experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Chen Sheng (FREE), aged 50, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group. He graduated from Fudan University in Shanghai with a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in 2007 and is responsible for investment of the Group.

Mr. Lee Wing On, Samuel (Z7k %), aged 50, is the vice president
of Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2006 and is
responsible for the Group’s retail business in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
has over 20 years of management experience in the watch retail
industry in Hong Kong.
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Ms. Tan Li (% ), aged 50, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group and secretary to the Board. Ms. Tan graduated from
Nanjing Normal University (3R EM&K2) with a Master of Arts
degree. She joined the Group in 2001. Before joining the Group,
Ms. Tan taught at the branch colleges of Peking University in
China. Since Ms. Tan joined the Group, she has been engaging in
work related to the secretary to the Board of the Group.

Mr. James Cheng (&t 8%), aged 50, is the vice president of
Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible
for high-end customer services work. Mr. Cheng obtained a
bachelor’s degree in science. Before joining the Group, he was
the deputy president of Rado watches of SWATCH Group in
China, the general manager for watches and jewellery of LVMH
Group in China, and the chief executive of Fendi watches in Asia
Pacific.

Mr. Lin Gang (#k#fl), aged 49, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group. He joined the Group in 2013 and is responsible for human
resources management and information management of the
Group. Mr. Lin graduated from Beijing Foreign Studies University
with a postgraduate degree, and obtained an international MBA
degree from Fordham University in New York, the U.S. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Lin served as the President and Managing
Director of consulting business for Greater China region of
Mercer, a human resources management consulting firm. He also
worked in Deloitte Consulting and Motorola.

Ms. Catherine Lin (Mf£4%5), aged 56, is the vice president of
Hengdeli Group. She joined the Group in 2013 and is a consultant
for Mainland China retail business of the Group. Ms. Lin graduated
from National Chengchi University in Taiwan with a Bachelor of
Arts degree. Before joining the Group, she was the vice president
for Taiwan and China region of CK Watch & Jewelry. Ms. Lin has
nearly 20 years of extensive international management experience
in distribution of international middle-to-high-end watches and
other luxury goods.
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Mr. Lam Chun Kit (Mif&#E), aged 41, is the vice president of
Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2014 and is in charge
of the Group’s overall financial operation. Mr. Lam holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and is a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts (HKICPA). He
has nearly 15 years of experience in auditing and served the

international big four accounting firms for 10 years. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Lam was the executive vice-president and chief
accountant of SanPower Group (=25 =)).

Mr. Guan Qijun (BEZ5E), aged 44, is the president for retailing
business in Mainland China of Hengdeli Group. He joined the
Group in 2000 and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
of watches in Mainland China. Mr. Guan graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology (¥4 & T % A £2) with a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Electronic Precision Machinery (& -F &% #4#%), and has over 20
years of experience in the watch industry.

Mr. Ng Man Wai, Peter (2 31%), aged 44, is the company secretary
and financial controller of the Company. Mr. Ng graduated from
the University of Toronto with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce.
He joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Ng is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA).
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Introduction

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practice
to ensure transparency of the Group’s management, so that the
interests of our shareholders, customers, employees as well as
the long term development of the Group can be safeguarded.
The Group has established the Board, an audit committee,
a remuneration committee and a nomination committee that
are up to the requirements as being diligent, accountable and
professional. KPMG has been appointed as the Group’s external
auditors.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Directors are
of the opinion that the Company complied with the Corporate
Governance Code except for a deviation from provision A.2.1
during the period under review. Given the existing corporate
structure, the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer
have not been separated, and both are performed by Mr. Zhang
Yuping. Although the roles and duties of the chairman and chief
executive officer have been performed by the same individual,
all major decisions would only be made (where applicable) after
consultation with the Board. There are three independent non-
executive Directors in the Board. All of them possess adequate
independence and therefore the Board considers that the
Company has achieved balance of power and provided sufficient
assurance for scientific decision-making.

Composition of the Board

To maintain a high level of independence and objectivity in
decision making, and to exercise its power of supervising the
management of the Group in a comprehensive and equitable
manner, the Board comprises three executive Directors (Messrs.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman of the Group), Huang Yonghua and
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan), one non-executive Director (Mr. Shi
Zhongyang) and three independent non-executive Directors
(Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling).
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To ensure the Board operates in an independent and accountable
manner, the three executive Directors have been assigned with
different responsibilities within our operation. Mr. Zhang Yuping,
the Chairman, is in charge of the Group’s overall management
and strategic development, while Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan is in
charge of the overall business operation of the Group, and Mr.
Huang Yonghua is responsible for coordination and supervision.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
professional expertise and extensive experience in the areas of
accounting, economics, law, computing control and management,
and business administration respectively. We believe the
independent non-executive Directors can adequately act for the
benefits of our shareholders. Their respective terms of office are
as follows:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2014-25/9/2017;

Wong Kam Fai, William: 26/9/2014-25/9/2017;

Liu Xueling: 1/6/2013-31/5/2016.

One non-executive Director has professional expertise
and extensive experience in the areas of law and business
administration; he can offer supervision to the daily operation,
and provide corresponding opinions and recommendations in a
timely manner, which is beneficial to the standardised operation
of the Company and the safeguarding of the interests of our
shareholders. His term of office is as follows:

Shi Zhongyang:15/2/2015-14/2/2018.

Duties of the Board

The Board of the Company is responsible to the general meetings
and performs the following major duties: report duties to the
general meetings; execute the resolutions of the general meetings;
determine investment solutions and profit distribution solutions of
the Company; formulate solutions as to increase or decrease of
the registered capital of the Company, draft solutions in respect
of the split-up, consolidation, alteration and dissolution of the
Company, appoint, dismiss and determine the remunerations of
the general manager of the Company.
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In respect of the corporate governance functions, during the
year under review, the Board formulated the terms of reference
on the corporate governance duties and performed corporate
governance duties in accordance with the terms of reference. To
be specific, the Board mainly performed the following corporate
governance duties during the year under review:

o To review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° To review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
directors and employees;

° To review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate and
sufficient information in a timely manner for their understanding of
the latest developments of the Group, which in turn supports the
discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is responsible to the Board and
performs the following major duties: report duties to the Board;
execute the resolutions of the Board; and complete all the tasks
assigned by the Board.

Internal Control

In order to ensure the interests of our shareholders, the Group
established departments dedicated to the supervision of finance
and business operation. Such departments conduct audits and
examination of all aspects and at all departments on a regular and
on an ad hoc basis, so as to enhance internal control and ensure
the sound development of the enterprise. The Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of our internal control system and completed
its annual review on this system. Based on the reviews made by
independent review organisations of the internal control system
of the Group, the Group will continue to improve the internal
administration and control systems of the Company.
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Attendance of the Directors at the Meetings

In 2014, a total of eight meetings were held by the Board.
Further, an annual general meeting was held. The attendance of
the Directors at the meetings was as follows:

Frequency of
attendance at

E=MgRbERR
73_/\:;7 E‘fqi Z"‘Qj/\ﬂﬁfﬁ)\/f\i%‘@ ! EF’%T
—RBEFAFAG  FEFHFEFBOT :

Frequency of
attendance at

the Board Rate of the general Rate of
meetings Attendance Remarks meeting Attendance Remarks
S EVN-
Name i R R faat HERE HEER st
Zhang Yuping R 8 100% 1 100%
Huang Yonghua EAKE 8 100% 1 100%
Lee Shu Chung, Stan g 8 100% 1 100%
Cai Jianmin R 8 100% 1 100%
Wong Kam Fai, William  Z424® 8 100% 0 0 Absent with Leave
RHER
Liu Xueling Z|eagE 7 87.5%  Entrusted Mr Cai 1 100%
Jianmin for 1 time
RAFRREAEIR
Shi Zhongyang g 8 100% 1 100%

Members of the Board will be provided with appropriate and
sufficient information in a timely manner for their understanding in
the latest developments of the Group, which in turn supports the
discharge of their duties.

Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular
updates on the business development of the Group. The Directors
are continually updated on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements
to ensure compliance with and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.
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The Directors are committed to complying with provision A.6.5 of
the Corporate Governance Code on Directors’ training so as to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the year under review, the Directors attended
relevant training in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange and had provided the relevant records of training to
the Company. According to the records, details of directors’
attendance at the training sessions during the year under review
are as follows:

Updates on corporate governance,
laws and regulations

EEHNEBTREXEEARTRIRXALLZEREI
NEREEANESSHELNBERABNER - LEFE
A ARRIESCREA ETR R ERETT T 18R
gl WERARREHAREIICE - REBELE - A
TREEFREBEFEAFMETOHEIIBR

Accounting/financial/
management and
other professional expertise

EEER - it /0K B8
EBEREE REMBER A

Seminar/ Seminar/

Material reading training attending  Material reading training attending

Name "E BERHE SEGERE BEREE SEEE 15|

Zhang Yuping SRIF v v v/ v

Huang Yonghua FKE v/ v v v

Lee Shu Chung, Stan  Z# & v/ v v/ v/

Shi Zhongyang S5 v v v v

Cai Jianmin 2ER v/ v v v

Wong Kam Fai, William =752 v - v/ v/

Liu Xueling 2= v/ v v/ v/
Independence of the Board B/

The Board has received confirmation from all independent
Directors regarding their independence made in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
The Board considers that all current independent Directors have
met the requirements of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange and remain
independent.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board of the Company had adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange as the Company’s own code for securities
transactions by its Directors. Following specific enquiry made by
the Company with all Directors, the Company has confirmed that
during the year under review, all Directors of the Company had
complied with the standard as required by the above code.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial reports of the Group.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
on page 82 to 83 of the annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The audit fee to be received by the auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 will be approximately
RMB4,390,000. During the year under review, in addition to
auditing services, the Company’s auditors also provided the
Group with services such as taxation planning and due diligence.
The non-auditing service fees were RMB183,000 in total.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Messrs. Cai
Jianmin (Chairman), Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,
with the primary duties of reviewing the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Company as well as material
extraordinary items, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, which included a review on the audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 interim report. The
Company has adopted and implemented the terms of reference
of the audit committee.

During the year, two meetings were held on 25 March 2014 and
19 August 2014 to review the annual and interim financial reports
of the Group respectively. All members of the committee namely,
Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,
attended the meetings.
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The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of the
Group’s financial report for the year are summarised as follows:

The 2014 financial report of the Company is objective in all
material aspects, and gives a fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2014 and the operating
results and cash flow in 2014. Despite the complex and volatile
economic environment, the Company recorded growth at different
pace in aspects such as turnover, gross profit, profit and earnings
per share, thus achieving a sound operating performance as well
as a good financial position. There is still room for improvement in
aspects of taxation optimization, fund balancing and investment
management of the Company where the management can work
on.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under review,
the remuneration committee comprises three Directors including
Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and Cai Jianmin, both of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Zhang Yuping,
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Group. The
primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and
other compensation payable to Directors and senior management.

One meeting was held during the year to review matters related
to the remuneration structure of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. All members, namely Messrs. Liu
Xueling, Cai Jianmin and Zhang Yuping, attended the meeting.

The Company has adopted and implemented the new terms of
reference of the remuneration committee. According to the terms
of reference of the remuneration committee, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
while the Board retains the ultimate power to approve the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under review,
the nomination committee comprises Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman),
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Group, and
independent non-executive Directors Messrs. Cai Jianmin and Liu
Xueling. The Company has adopted and implemented the new
terms of reference of the nomination committee. The nomination
committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Board.
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One meeting was held during the year to review matters related to
the structure, size and composition of the Board of the Company,
retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors, formulate board
diversity policy and related measurable objectives, and review
procedures for achieving such objectives. All members, namely
Messrs. Zhang Yuping, Cai Jianmin and Liu Xueling, attended the
meeting.

Summary of board diversity policy

To improve the performance quality of the Company, the Board
adopted the board diversity policy. The Board believes that board
member diversity can be achieved by considering various factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, race, professional experience, expertise, knowledge,
term of services and other talents. All Board appointments
are made with reference to the Company’s business models
and specific needs from time to time, and candidates will be
considered with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board if allowed by objective business conditions. The nomination
committee will be mainly responsible for identifying suitable and
competent candidates for board members, and considering such
candidates in light of objective conditions. As a part of the review
on the annual performance of the Board, considerations made by
the nomination committee will balance the skills and experience
as required by business targets of the Company with diversity
factors. To achieve board diversity, the nomination committee
will discuss and develop measurable objectives from time to
time, and propose the above to the Board for adoption and
implementation. Generally speaking, selection of candidates by
the nomination committee shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, race, professional experience, expertise,
knowledge and term of services. However, the final decision will
depend on the strengths of candidates and their prospective
contributions to the Board. The Board may improve one or more
diversity perspectives from time to time, and implement the
upgraded measurements. The nomination committee will review
the policy from time to time, including conducting assessments
on the effectiveness of the policy. The nomination committee will
also discuss any amendment that may be necessary, and submit
amendment proposals to the Board for approval.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Ng Man Wai, Peter was appointed as the Company Secretary
in 2004. His biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Ng attended relevant
professional training for not less than 15 hours pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

Rights of Shareholders

How the Shareholders convene Extraordinary General Meeting
and make recommendations at general meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The letter demanding the calling of an Extraordinary General
Meeting mentioned above shall be sent to the principal office of
the Company stating the Board of the Company or the Company
Secretary as the addressee.

How to make enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of the
Company for any enquires stating the Board of the Company or
the Company Secretary as the addressee.

Significant Changes on the Articles of Association

During the year under review, there is no significant change to the
articles of association of the Company.
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Investors Relations

The Company firmly believes the importance of effective
communication with the investment community and the
shareholders in attaining a high level of transparency in the Group.
Since its listing, the Group has maintained close communications
with the shareholders, mass media, analysts and fund managers
through various communication channels such as one-on-
one meetings, roadshows, seminars, press conferences, press
releases, telephone communications and emails. The Company
endeavours to provide accurate and timely information to the
investors, so as to enhance the understanding of our investors
about the status of the domestic luxury watch industry, as well as
the business development strategy and direction of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group’s management
proactively held regular and ad hoc meetings with different
analysts and investors, including the marketing campaigns
on investor relations in major investment centres including
Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai and Switzerland, and attended
international economy forums and seminars held by various
investment banks. Besides, the Group also held roadshows in
various countries and regions, including Hong Kong, Shanghai,
Beijing and Switzerland and arranged over 50 investors to join
on-site visits to outlets in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Beijing and
factories in Guangzhou, Dongguan and Zhuhai, so as to facilitate
the investors from different countries and regions to acquire a
timely and in-depth understanding of the Group through all forms
of communications. During the second half of the year, the Group
strengthened the communications with domestic institutional
investors and held roadshows in Mainland China following the
unveiling of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect to facilitate
investors in Mainland China to acquire a better understanding of
the Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with investors and boost understanding of
international investors of the Group so as to enhance investors’
confidence in the Group.
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Group Philosophy

Since its listing in 2005, the Hengdeli Group has come a long
way. Following Hengdeli’'s motto a hundred years ago and
believing that businesses exist as a part of society and prosper
along with it, the Group has been shouldering social responsibility
in terms of protecting the environment, managing environmental
quality, conserving resources and developing talents, all of which
are contributing to the Group’s healthy development.

As the world’s largest retailer of internationally renowned
watch brands, Hengdeli has always regarded corporate social
responsibility as an essential part of the Group’s activities, and
attached great importance to the benefits and relationships that
its corporate social responsibility actions generate among its
customers, employees, local communities, shareholders, business
partners and supervisory authorities. We are fully aware that
strengthening Hengdeli’s social responsibility is not only crucial
for the Group’s future development, but is also a compelling
obligation as a part of the Group’s participation in civil society.

For the past decade, we have concerned ourselves with
environmental protection and committed ourselves to achieving an
ecological balance as part of our efforts towards creating a green
enterprise. We have also maintained integrity in our operations in
providing safe, quality products to customers, which has earned
us social credibility and made us a company to be relied on. We
have attached great importance to the talent of our employees,
and aimed at creating an environment that offers a win-win
development outcome for both employees and the enterprise.
Our concern for employees’ working conditions and career
development has driven us to create a welcoming, harmonious
and mutually beneficial corporate culture for employees, in which
we share with them the success brought by the company’s
growth and thus integrate individual, corporate and social
values. We have also expanded our involvement in public welfare
activities, actively participating in a range of social undertakings
such as education and social welfare activities, serving the
community with sincerity and bringing new hope to those in need.
Through ten years of endeavour and commitment, Hengdeli has
striven to establish itself as a responsible, reliable company, a
company that customers, employees, shareholders and society
as a whole can trust, and one that is committed to sustainable
development.
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In 2014, as usual, Hengdeli enhanced its social corporate
responsibility activities and further integrated the concept of
social corporate responsibility into its daily operations. We
strived to maintain and enhance the Group’s leading position in
internationally-renowned watch retailing by ensuring continued
provision of safe, high quality products and services to its
customers, while also delivering mutual benefits for customers,
employees and society.

Workplace quality

The Group has always regarded its employees as critically
valuable assets. Under its “people-oriented” core culture, the
Group strictly complies with all local labour standards and
relevant employment regulations, and implements a standardised
recruitment system. Its goal is to provide its employees with a
healthy, safe and welcoming working environment and to maintain
a fair, just and transparent working platform so as to create a
promising development prospect for its employees.

Working conditions

The Group places great emphasis on upholding the basic rights
of its employees. It respects diversity in its employees and
adheres to the principle of equal opportunities in employment,
recruiting and cultivating talents regardless of race, religion,
ethnicity, nationality, gender or age. The Group also continually
revises its mechanism and structure in different aspects in order
to adapt to the needs of the enterprise, the market and economic
development.

The Group has adopted a comprehensive work assessment
management system, under which it regularly reviews its
recruitment system and its internal policy for grooming talents so
as to ensure transparency and fairness.

The Group implements remuneration management in a scientific
manner and various incentives, and regularly reviews its
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities for different
positions to guarantee their market competitiveness. To attract
and retain talent, the Group also offers various welfare incentives
to its employees, including pension plans, MPF plans, insurance
schemes, and housing and meal allowances.
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Further, the Group grants share options to the general
management staff and associates of the Company in recognition
of their contributions to the Group, and as an incentive
encouraging initiative and good performance in the workplace.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 9,713
employees in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
shown as follows:

—REEEREBALTELRBAER
REHRHEEMENER m%ﬁllﬁbﬁlfﬁﬁ@lﬁ&ﬁﬂ
=R e

SEERD A

BE-Z—NMF+-_A=+—H SERPEAM - &
B ORFIARBERAHF7TISERETL - EXSHMHN
T

No. of staff

BI#E

Mainland China AR A 3B 8,694
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan /B BFARAE 1,019
Total st 9,713
Aged 18-25 18-255% 1,043
Aged 26-55 26-555% 8,467
56 or above 565% A £ 203

lts employees are among Hengdeli’s most valuable assets.
The Group places particular emphasis on employees’ sense of
belonging to the Group, and is committed to providing them with
a pleasant and harmonious working environment.

The Group’s internal magazine “Outstanding”, first published in
2006, shares news of the industry and the Group on a regular
basis. Employees’ own articles are also published there to
create a platform by which employees can share their daily work
experiences.

The Group holds a gala dinner every year at which it recognises
the outstanding employees of the year. With the Group’s core
values as the main theme, this year’'s “Top 100 Outstanding
Employees of Hengdeli Group Award Ceremony Gala 2013”
commended model employees in different positions, and was very
well-received.
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In addition, the Group actively launches and implements work that
is favourable for building a harmonious relationship between the
enterprise and the labour as well as facilitating the enterprise’s
sound development, so as to care for employees and strengthen
their solidarity and their sense of belonging to the Group.

The labour unions at different levels frequently organise
sports activities, such as football,
yoga. These activities were held a number of times this year,

badminton, basketball and

enhancing employees’ physical and psychological well-being and
strengthening their sense of belonging and overall team spirit.

Health and Safety

The Group is deeply committed to its employees’ well-being and
organises regular health check-ups for them, as well as providing
various medical insurance schemes.

The Group maintains very high manufacturing safety standards.
To provide its employees with a safe and comfortable working
environment while maximising productivity, the Group ensures it is
in strict compliance with all international labour standards and the
relevant laws of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.
It also implements internal guidelines and policies on occupational
safety for different working conditions and positions to ensure
the health and safety of its employees. The Group purchases
labour insurance for its employees, provides employees with
training courses and drills on manufacturing safety and disaster
awareness at the Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries, requires
certain of its employees to wear protective gear, and conducts
regular assessments of risk factors in the workplace. During 2014,
the year under review, the Group did not experience any cases of
work-related serious injuries or deaths.
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Development and Training

Employee development drives the progress of a company. While
developing its business and safeguarding the basic rights of its
employees, the Group also provides a platform for employees to
develop their careers, which includes offering a comprehensive
learning and training system that helps them develop quickly
and strengthens their sense of belonging. The Group formulates
suitable training courses according to the needs of its different
departments and businesses. It also implements an internal
recruitment system, in which employees can choose their career
path based on their interests and strengths.

The Group provides new recruits with comprehensive induction
training. The training provides an overview of the Group’s
business, and delivers information about business partners,
products knowledge, corporate culture and core values, as well
as introducing business-related policies and laws to help new
recruits integrate into the Hengdeli family.

The Group provides its front-line staff with both regular and one-
off training programmes. Committed to developing professional
sales teams, the Group leverages its existing teams and
services, so as to adapt to the increasingly specialised timepiece
market and the volatile market environment. The training covers
knowledge of watches and watch brands, customer service, retail
management and so forth.

One of the Group’s long-term strategic aims is to enhance the
training of its outlet managerial staff so as to further enhance their
management skills. Since 2013 the Group has been holding a
“Hengdeli Golden Shop Manager Training Camp”, which targets
shop supervisors. The training camp has now been held six times,
two of them in 2014. At the conclusion, participants submitted
a number of effective proposals for better management and
improvement of outlets.

The Group’s online learning platform was launched in 2013. This
enables employees to flexibly arrange their courses, monitor their
progress and conduct self-assessment on their learning outcomes
according to their specific individual needs. This year, employees
showed active engagement with the online learning opportunities
provided. For example, the online course “Professional knowledge
in watches for new employees 1-4” attracted a total of over
10,000 views. The Group also provided employees from different
departments with training courses on a range of topics during
the year; these included courses on new information technology,
sales skills and manufacturing safety.
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The Group selects potential outstanding young managerial staff
for enrolment in the EMBA programme to boost their career
development and facilitate the mutual growth of the participants
and the enterprise.

The Group also provides its directors and senior managerial staff
with regular training, so as to maintain sustainable professional
development and enhance their knowledge and skills. The
training includes regular updates on rules for listed companies,
and information about relevant laws and regulations, corporate
governance and international accounting standards as well as risk
management accountability for directors.

During the year under review, the average number of training
hours per person provided by the Group was as follows:
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Average number of

Type hours per person
Al AR
Middle to senior management FEEEIEAR 32
Frontline staff —HBET 45

Labour Standard

The Group has employees in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan, and its talent pool includes employees of different
religions, ethnicities, nationalities, gender and ages. The Group
ensures it is in strict compliance with international labour laws and
all relevant local labour and employment laws and regulations, and
all of its employees and job applicants enjoy equal opportunities
and fair treatment.

The Group adopts a comprehensive work assessment
management system, and revises its recruitment system and
internal training policies on a regular basis to ensure transparency
and to maintain fairness and impartiality.

During the year under review, the Group was not involved in any
issues relating to child labour or forced labour. The Group will
continue to comply with the strict recruitment system to prevent
child labour or forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - i KB R
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Staff indulged themselves in the enjoyable gathering,
celebrating the achievements in the past year and
wishing a more prosperous future at the 2014 annual
meeting of the Group.

KEERETETEAE - ZHEABES T —BHR -
The Group holds birthday parties for the staff. Hengdeli
accompanies all employees to growth.



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The “Hengdeli Group TOP100 Outstanding Employee
Award Presentation Banquet 2013" was held in May
2014. The award-winning staff took photos with the
senior management of the Group. (Left 7: Mr. Zhang
Yuping, Chairman of the Board)
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An activity of the Group’s badminton team: the Prime
Time - Eastern China Badminton Final of the first
tournament of ‘“Hanmi Cup” was held in Shanghai
Locomotive Stadium on 17 November 2014.

5

6-7

itn

‘nll‘ e[gﬂ .1.. »

=T

FEEEFRAAHME THE SR °
A subsidiary of the Group in Taiwan organized an
incentive trip to Bangkok, Thailand for its employees.
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48 store managers from across China participated in the
fifth- session of “Outstanding Hengdeli Store Manager
Training Camp " held in Hangzhou in March 2014.



Environmental Protection

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence and
development. For many years, Hengdeli has made environmental
protection one of its top corporate governance priorities. The
Group implements a series of mechanisms and measures relating
to environmental management and energy conservation in its daily
operations aimed at protecting the environment and conserving
energy, with a view to promoting harmonious development in
terms of economic, social and ecological benefits.

Energy Efficiency and Emission Reduction

The Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and implements various policies to optimise its
working environment to this end, with an emphasis on conserving
electricity, water and energy resources, becoming more energy
efficient and reducing emissions, and implementing green
operations and green initiatives in the workplace. The Group
actively embraces the concept of a “paperless” office, in which
most office documents go digital to save space and reduce paper
use. It uses an online OA system to improve its administrative
functions, such as applications for business trips and the filing
and approval of expenses claims; and also uses the platform to
publish the Group’s notices, policies and regulations and share
similar information, in the process improving work efficiency and
significantly conserving energy.

70

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

% R &

RERCEBUEGTMERNER - ZHFHK > FEN—
ERREREFEASEETENEN .~ EAELER
R —RINRRBEE MEOE RN MEN - SO
HREREMERELD  BORBEBERE L8
ARt HY R E R R o

SEEGRSERRED  FIEZHECHARENRE
HE - BFEE - 8K - BIFE  INSRENRERFEE IR - 0R
é*ii BE ZEeRR KRERNEITIEKMCIRL
PWMANHRAEF AT - UEHERFERR
DIBIBAE FOAR A RS TESEITEM AR
Plgn - ZIREMEE - BRRE O REE  WEBZ
FRBMERBS REHES  BRERHRZE - BUHE
BT HARME - hBREHETER °

2 ok
HEIUJ t’/

“@?559>|-n
-

et



Efficient Use of Resources

The Group also implements a range of measures designed to
reduce emissions and cut down its consumption of energy and
natural resources. For example, it prints office paper on both
sides and reuses waste paper, regularly recycles used paper and
old newspapers and magazines, encourages employees to read
and send files electronically to reduce printing, and encourages
staff to use public transport for business trips. The Group’s Hong
Kong office took the lead in launching a lights-off campaign
during lunch break and at other appropriate times, in the process
integrating environmental awareness into the everyday work life of
employees there. The Group’s retail outlets have also embraced
an eco-friendly approach by replacing traditional packaging with
reusable bags, and encouraging recycling. Paper cups have also
been replaced by reusable glasses at these outlets.

The Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach to the interior
design of its office and retail outlets. Their open-plan designs
maximise outdoor natural light and shared light, while electricity
consumption is further reduced by the use of energy-saving
light bulbs. As far as possible, original furniture is retained and
remodelled during renovation to make rational use of existing
resources and reduce waste.

In 2014, the main sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas
emissions were electricity consumption, office paper use, and
company vehicles:
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An overview of energy consumption:

RERBREBAME

Density (Total
volume/one million

Total volume RMB revenue)

RERE 5-H8

X

ltem =g 1 me AREERE)
Electricity consumption EE 24,423,450 (KWh)( T FLR) 1,654.26
Office paper used BN 14,871 (kg)(F35=2) 1.01
Vehicle fuel 287D Bieh 66,260 (L)(AF) 4.49

Disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste is mainly of
relevance to the Group’s industrial segment. The total volume of
waste disposed of in 2014 was as follows:

EEREYNEZREYHREBEPREBN TER
B 2014FAEEAN T ¢

Density (tonnes/
one million
Volume (tonnes) RMB revenue)

BE(W/ 5-88

Type of waste disposed of HemiasE = (W§) ARB )
Hazardous industrial waste TEBEFEEY 660 0.04
Non-hazardous industrial waste T ¥EEREEY) 248 0.02

The Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries are all in strict
compliance with national regulations. Reports on polluting
emissions from industrial production are submitted to
environmental authorities regularly as required, and recycling is
carried out by nationally-recognised professional companies. The
Group is inspected regularly by the Environmental Protection
Bureau, and in 2014 all polluting emissions (including sewage
and gas) passed the annual inspection and the monitored results
met national standards. The Group has also formulated internal
operational guidelines containing detailed requirements regarding
water and electricity consumption and the operating hours and
temperature setting of air-conditioners.

The Group aims for sustainable development by constantly
monitoring the environmental impact of its operations and
implementing appropriate measures to minimise harm to the
environment, while at the same time integrating the concepts
of conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture.

72

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

SETERRED - FRABKETEFAERETE - €
HIS R £ E SR P IRIRE R AIRR RETTITR
YRS WEBRRABANEEARETEWR - KEE
HEZREBIER - HI5K - BERESRMERE
RBBEFR - FTEEREFEE - KETGIE T RERERIE
ol AR - AERARERAFRLRERRESEFH
HE °

SEFEZARFEERAEESEELHRENTE -
RERBUEERE R EEREHRBOBIR - SREXA
BERMBRERAGKEF  EMERAFER
)E o]



Operations Management

The Group cooperates closely with suppliers and retailers to
deliver safe, quality products to customers, and is dedicated
to maintaining a high level of industrial production transparency
and product responsibility, so as to maintain its position as the
world’s leading retailer of internationally renowned watch brands.
Throughout its operations, the Group ensures it maintains a good
social reputation by complying with all national and regional anti-
corruption and anti-bribery policies.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that providing quality products and excellent
after-sales service is a crucial part of its successful corporate
presence. Hengdeli is engaged in the distribution of more than
50 internationally renowned watch brands, including numerous
exclusive brands. When it comes to selecting brands for
distribution, the Group takes different factors into consideration.
Besides considering market demand, the Group prioritises the
brand’s quality and after-sales service. The Group has maintained
sound business relationships with suppliers of some of the
world’s truly premier brands, including the Swatch Group, the
LVMH Group, the Richemont Group, the Rolex Group and the
Kering Group. These brands implement strict policies regarding
production and sustainable development and enjoy an extremely
high international reputation, which provides the Group with
reliable, stable and quality product sources and in turn helps
guarantee the Group’s own reputation.

part of the brands distributed by the Group
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Subsidiaries of the Group’s packaging and display segment
carry out strict quality management in line with national
quality standards. The watch boxes and packaging products
manufactured by subsidiary Yadi have achieved national ISO9001
and FSC certifications, and comply with EU Regulation (EC)
No. 1907/2006 (REACH,).
industry regulations, and implements strict production testing and
inspection standards. During the year under review, none of the

Nivada complies with the national

products sold or delivered by the Group was recalled on safety
and health grounds.

The Group attaches great importance to respecting and
safeguarding the rights of consumers. It is in strict compliance
with the regulations and laws relating to sale of products to
safeguard the interests of consumers.

One of the assurances the Group offers to its customers and
brand suppliers is that it will provide “advanced technology, online
warranty, efficient management and considerate services”. The
Group provides the most convenient joint warranty in the Greater
China region covering Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan
by delivering comprehensive services to customers through an
interactive customer service network consisting of repair and
maintenance service centres, repair service stations and repair
service points. Its service hotline 4008 acts as the Group’s
centralised service channel for the general public, offering timely
help and advice and building customer confidence in the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group implements an efficient supply chain management
system that optimises links between manufacturers, suppliers,
distributers and retailers, optimising the allocation of social
resources. Meanwhile, the Group realises an effective link between
production and sales as well as a reasonable flow of logistics,
information and capital through an efficient information network,
and delivers quality products to consumers in a timely manner at
reasonable prices.
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The Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries have each formulated
an appropriate supplier code. Each factory has a detailed supplier
survey and assessment score sheet, as well as a standardised
supplier management process. When engaging a supplier,
the R&D department, procurement department, production
department and quality control department collectively evaluate
the supplier and carry out various types of assessment to
determine whether the supplier’s pricing, quality, delivery, business
integrity and factory premises are in line with the relevant national
certifications (such as the ISO quality management system), and
verify the samples from suppliers for the Group’s approval. The
Group also regularly evaluates each supplier’s performance in
areas such as quality, delivery, pricing, and compatibility with our
requirements. Those who do not meet the Group’s standards
under performance will be cancelled their supplier qualifications.

Anti-Corruption

The Hengdeli Group is dedicated to establishing itself as a
trustworthy, law-abiding enterprise. The Group advocates a
work ethic that insists on compliance with law, integrity, honesty
and professional dedication, and bans any form of acceptance
of advantages or acts of bribery. Explicit rules concerning
employees’ work practices are communicated through the
employees’ guidebook and training courses, while the efficiency
of the Group’s entire internal management system is reviewed
regularly. The daily operations of the Group strictly comply with
established procedures; the internal audit department audits each
subsidiary regularly and reports to the audit committee while
implementing appropriate measures to ensure all regulations
are complied with. Further, the Group regularly commissions
third-party auditors to carry out independent audits. All these
measures help ensure that the Group’s regulatory system remains
effective. During the year under review, neither the Group nor
any of its employees were involved in bribery cases or associated
irregularities.
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Community Involvement

As a leading corporate citizen in international watch retailing,
Hengdeli is actively involved in community and public welfare
activities, serving the community and contributing to society
through a variety of welfare platforms. Hengdeli both supports and
participates in various charity and public events, with a particular
focus on the education, growth and development of young people
from deprived backgrounds or environments.

Education Sponsorship

During the year, the Group set up the “Prime Time Pearl
Foundation” and undertook close partnership with the Xinhua
Compassion Education Foundation in China, through which it
sponsored underprivileged but academically

HESH

EAERREREEASFABEMNNEEAR - F
BRTERAVEEER  FEREBELEMEMME RS
¥ KBEEFNNENSEBRARTE - BAORBLE
Mg FTHABRIFMB2EZSERSZHEMLE)E
B THFERLRBTRAER FE—RNHE -
R MERE o

EhiTBh 2

REF > SEEAKZIERDHRES | BPEHEYR

BEECRARTAIE FECZEHNENED &%)

(REFH KEFE)BETKEP=FNEX - [F
o SREIHIE T B2l #EA

outstanding students nationwide to
enable them to complete their 3-year high Lk
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school education. In addition, the Group
launched a “Pearl Retrieval Programme”
designed to help children return to school
in designated underprivileged regions
and receive an adequate education, so
as to “light up their lives”. The campaign
received the China Charity Award from the
PRC’s Ministry of Civil Affairs.

On 1 March 2014, the Group held a
charity dinner event “Prime Time Night,

NI REPZIRETE] - EHE
PERMENZTFEERRE -
PHIERR B RIFOHEE o[
B IR ST BEREREBRE
BHhEREE -

St

=
. ——

e

faminn NEWN

“E-WFE=A—H  £ER
EEBETIRRZRELRE]

Generosity Right Away” in Shanghai
attended by management figures from

the internationally renowned watch

ZROEAPKRITEZRERE - B
B BREECZEREEEMNIK
HEE (SWATCH GROUP) » 3%

brands it distributes, which include luxury

goods giants the SWATCH Group, the LVMH Group, and the
RICHEMONT Group. The guests showed their caring hearts
by donating generously. The combined donations given by the
brands and Hengdeli totalled nearly RMB3 million, which was
passed to the Xinhua Compassion Education Foundation in China
to sponsor outstanding students in remote regions.
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In September 2014, a class for Yi tribal children from the Daliang
Mountains in Sichuan was officially opened in a local school; in
October, another class in a school in Gansu was also opened,
thanks to the generosity of the Group. Inaccessibility, poverty,
and a lack of information and resources all contribute to isolate
children from the Daliang Mountains from the outside world, and
the Group’s “Journey Prime Time” initiative is helping to light up
their lives. In such ways Hengdeli is fulfilling its social responsibility
through practical action.

Charity Donations

The Group’s subsidiary “Prime Time” generously supported a
campaign in Jinan run by internationally-renowned watch brand
Omega in conjunction with eye-care charity Orbis International. At
the charity dinner hosted by Omega in 2014, Omega partnered
with Orbis to auction off the “Hour Vision Blue” wristwatch;
this was won by Prime Time with a bid of RMB200,000. All the
proceeds went to Orbis International and its Flying Eye Hospital,
to assist their work in combatting avoidable blindness.

Caring for Society

Since 2011, the Group’s subsidiary Elegant has been taking part
in “Project WeCan”, initiated by The Wharf. The project helps
students lacking in opportunities for development and to date, it
has provided assistance to a total of 14 schools and over 12,000
students. To equip young people with management experience,
this year Elegant sponsored an event promoting entrepreneurship
hosted by “Project WeCan”. The event “Young Innovators Bazaar”
involved over 200 students from 14 secondary schools mapping
out and implementing marketing proposals, in an activity that
offered them valuable entrepreneurship experience.

In April, Elegant also sponsored a visit by over 20 students from
San Wui Commercial Society Secondary School to an ice-cream
factory, where they learned more about the industry while also
having fun. The students were very enthusiastic about the trip.

“T-NOFNA - AEREEBAMR AR ISR

[EEXBRENILARE: T8 AFEEE LK
[ B3V 2RI 1t IEURUE - BRI - TRIRM
BN EEMHE  BERNEZFFHE T ARUET
PIERSME ISR - MANREA &R 2K ] - BbPIRie
T—ERE - TEANBUENTHRTEECHHER
T EHBRENNEELELZHEE -

=B

SEETZ[BRRERTIRNIHBEBREZREBCKMZ
[VEF R ATRARUERm XA 2R RES) - ERUKAHZF
—NEEEREBRE L BOKMHHEER B HTEgA
YEENI BB 2 B | (Hour Vision Blue)BRsR3#ETTHAE » BXEF
SRITAA R 208 &4 AS UL RIRR sk - BUKAG S
2 2R FNER IR T BN B b AT AR 4 K L AR AL R AT BB

AEME

BT —Fi  KEE TN ZEB=BARMMATH
FENREREARRARFEN SRGESE ] (Project
WeCan) * bt 8|2 B ARV BREENBER TR
By o BRIAERT B TXENERK+MAE - XEELE
#12,000% - RTERFE KL NMBFERFNEEL
B ANFE - BEZBQREN T B ERESEE R
TTHIREMER ES  mEB _—AHKRE TEEFPES
MBERIMEEITHAS  RBEMRATEENE
mEERE -

ARERMA EE-—BRAREEN THEHEER_1
A NEERBERR - R IR EAE RS IEENE
Me - X3 T BENEURMLT -

SmAERERAT —2-mEgg 17



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The funds raised from the charity banquet was donated
entirely to Xinhua Compassion Education Fund for
sponsoring outstanding students in remote areas.

ERAFEHAT IR LB 2 bk ©
The Prime Time’s hiking caring trip in Liangshan, Sichuan
Province.
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The Yi tribal pupils from Prime Time Meirong Class of
Central School in Juesa Town, Butuo County, Liangshan Yi
Autonomous Region, Sichuan Province sponsored by the
Group.
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Prime Time Meirong Class of Central School in Juesa Town,
Butuo County, Liangshan Yi Autonomous Region, Sichuan
Province sponsored by the Group.

H R+ 58 — BT T F 2 B o
Prime Time. Yuping Pearl Class of the First Secondary
School in Yuzhong County, Lanzhou, Gansu Province.
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Prime Time succeeded in bidding an Omega special edition
watch to demonstrate support for the charity campaign in
Jinan run by Omega in conjunction with eye-care charity
Orbis International.

7 EEEBE = F— =BT FE -
The ‘Elegant Cup Table Tennis Tournament 2014"
sponsored by the Group.

8  EEmMEES T [E2014%F853H EFE @it EX EIEH.
The employees of the Group’s Hangzhou branch made
donations to the areas hit by an earthquake in Ludian
County, Yunnan Province on 3 August 2014.



The Group has continued to involve itself in all-round development
opportunities for young people. Since 2012, the Group has co-
hosted the “Elegant Cup Table Tennis Tournament”, to which
both local and overseas players are invited to take part to
promote table tennis, facilitate exchanges between players from
different cities, and raise the awareness of the youth in their
physical and psychological well-being during their development.
The “2014 Elegant Cup Table Tennis Tournament”, hosted by
parties including Elegant and Po Leung Kuk, drew more than 500
players from countries and regions that included Japan, Taiwan,
Singapore, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Suzhou and Macau.

The Group also actively mobilised its regional resources to make
donations to quake-stricken areas in Ludian in Yunnan, as well
as sending condolences to the lone elderly and other victims. Its
retailing sector in Hefei, where the Group’s subsidiary Prime Time
operates, won praise for the assistance it offered to the Disabled
Persons’ Federation, which provides local disabled people with
welfare assistance such as employment and insurance.

Outlook

After 10 years of endeavour and being through many ups and
downs, today’s Hengdeli stands at a new starting point. As we
move ahead, we will continue to uphold the principle of being
responsible for our customers, employees, shareholders and the
society, and will seek out opportunities to strive for a harmonious
development between the Company and the society, the
Company and the environment, as well as the Company and all
related parties to make our due contributions.
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Year ended 31 December

BME+=A=t—ALFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
RESULTS E3o —E2-NFE —T—=F —ET——F —T——F —ZT-IZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFRT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
Turnover SHEXR 14,764,370 13,375,443 12,120,448 11,375,280 8,215,643
Profit before taxation Hi A A 807,277 673,355 1,230,982 1,198,139 815,663
Income tax FTiS®t (223,850) (204,483) (285,464) (279,863) (198,285)
Profit for the year FEm 583,427 468,872 945,518 918,276 617,378
Attributable to: e
Equity shareholders ZAN/NCIVSHESEEDN
of the Company 504,220 400,421 855,153 814,919 553,989
Non-controlling IR A 25
interests 79,207 68,451 90,365 103,357 63,389
Profit for the year FERA 583,427 468,872 945,518 918,276 617,378
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
ASSETS AND 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
LIABILITIES BEHEE —E-NFE —T—=F —T——-—F —T——F —ZT-IZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
Total assets BEBTE 12,844,123 12,833,322 12,486,286 11,589,464 9,059,406
Total liabilities BERRE 6,215,495 6,649,156 6,572,444 6,258,797 4,413,725
Net assets BEFR 6,628,628 6,184,166 5,913,842 5,330,667 4,645,681
Total equity attributable  ARAFRDEFE A
to equity shareholders FEfL R A EE
of the Company 5,983,004 5,599,234 5,456,864 4,890,826 4,316,415
Non-controlling SEEAR
interests 645,624 584,932 456,978 439,841 329,266
Total equity At 6,628,628 6,184,166 5,013,842 5,330,667 4,645,681
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PG,

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hengdeli Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hengdeli
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 84 to 198, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2015
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2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaF ARET T ARETTT
Turnover SHERR 3 14,764,370 13,375,443
Cost of sales HERAK (10,539,538) (9,731,808)
Gross profit EF 4,224,832 3,643,635
Other revenue Hugzs 4 95,473 139,278
Other net income/(loss) Hip A/ (&8 ) B 58 4 31,531 (105,477)
Distribution costs 2 $HPK A (2,926,425) (2,376,215)
Administrative expenses THER (394,583) (326,654)
Other operating income/(expenses) HAi&&U A/ (BIsZ) 2,416 (5,583)
Profit from operations Feg =yl 5(c) 1,033,244 968,984
Finance costs B TR AR 5(a) (225,834) (291,074)
Share of losses of associates NG 16 (1,521) (7,805)
Share of profits of joint ventures EEEENTREA 17 1,388 3,250
Profit before taxation RR%E B Al 5 807,277 673,355
Income tax FiSHi 6(a) (223,850) (204,483)
Profit for the year FEER 583,427 468,872
Attributable to: FEAL
Equity shareholders of
the Company EN/NCIEP SR 2N 504,220 400,421
Non-controlling interests ElSliiys 2y 79,207 68,451
Profit for the year FERA 583,427 468,872
Earnings per share FREF 11
RMB/AR# RMB/ AR EE
Basic AR 0.1057T 0.0837T
RMB/ A R RMB/ AR EE
Diluted b5 0.1057¢ 0.0837c

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 31(b).
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2014 2013

—E-mEF —EB—=fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat AREFTT ARBT T
Profit for the year FEmAM 583,427 468,872
Other comprehensive income FEHA
for the year ZHEBA 10
ltems that may be reclassified BE1E Al BEERT D HE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEm IR ¢
Net gain recognised from the EHFFTERA
remeasurement of investment B E TR
in equity securities 2 Was FEE 18 1,215 -
Exchange differences on BHE SN A
translation of overseas B IS HRaR
companies’ financial FEAZ
statements [ 5 =% 5,720 (31,181)
Total comprehensive income FEE2M
for the year ON L 590,362 437,691
Attributable to: FEAh :
Equity shareholders of ZAN/NGTL )
the Company FEA 511,155 369,240
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR B 79,207 68,451
Total comprehensive income FEE2ME
for the year WA %8 590,362 437,691

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.

SFO3E198H Z MIFE M I FH H R —#BD ©

SRRERARAT —E-NEEE 8D

V %



31 December 2014
—E-MmE+-A=1-H

31 December 2013
—E-—=%+-HA=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 12
- Investment property — KB 41,286 242,704
- Other property, plant —HmE - K5
and equipment P& 1,404,669 1,452,763
1,445,955 1,695,467
Intangible assets A = 13 86,601 109,793
Goodwill B 14 802,521 840,521
Interest in associates i N R - X 16 - 83,861
Interest in joint ventures REENa 2R 17 55,423 54,035
Other investments HibigE 18 71,862 797
Deferred tax assets RERIAE E 30(b)(i) 72,167 67,409
2,534,529 2,851,883
Current assets REEE
Inventories w8 19 6,612,693 6,328,722
Trade and other receivables JEWE SRR R EMEERIE 20 1,615,836 1,366,795
Deposits with banks RITER 21 113,000 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents He RESEEY 22 1,968,065 2,185,922
10,309,594 9,981,439
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables ENEZEAREMERMNKIE 23 2,240,209 2,358,645
Bank loans SRITEX 24 991,831 1,354,737
Current taxation REE FEHFIIE 30(a) 25,960 18,738
Provisions B s 25 94,668 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 78,005 -
3,430,673 3,732,020
Net current assets mENEEFE 6,878,921 6,249,419
Total assets less current WEERREBER
liabilities 9,413,450 9,101,302

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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31 December 2014
—E-mFE+=A=+-A

31 December 2013
—T-=£+-A=t-8

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE ARETRT AR®ETn AREBFTT ARETR
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Bank loans IRITER 24 494,508 460,814
Senior notes BEEE 27 2,173,905 2,159,231
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 - 76,104
Provisions B 25 - 94,344
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE A & 30(b)(ii) 116,409 126,643
2,784,822 2,917,136
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,628,628 6,184,166
CAPITAL AND RESERVES &K f#f&
Share capital f& s 31(c) 22,920 22,935
Reserves i 5,960,084 5,576,299
Total equity attributable 2NN i)
to equity shareholders =E AEN
of the Company TETRAARR 5,983,004 5,599,234
Non-controlling interests JEIEIR R 645,624 584,932
TOTAL EQUITY fERAAEE 6,628,628 6,184,166

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

17 March 2015.

Zhang Yuping
Executive Director

Huang Yonghua
Executive Director

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013
—E—-F ===
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HiE  AR®TrT AR¥ETT ARETE ARETT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries SN -3 15 4,549,865 4,458,074
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables FEULE 5 BR 5 K L Ath B W3R IE 20 5,185 6,716
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFRBY 22 79,526 338,786
84,711 345,502
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade and other payables FE1T B 5 BR 51 I E fh FE < 5K I8 23 93,318 93,129
Bank loans IRITER 24 218,655 78,620
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 26 78,005 =
389,978 171,749
Net current (liabilities)/assets REI(AE) EEEE (305,267) 173,753
Total assets less current BEERRBAR
liabilities 4,244,598 4,631,827
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank loans RITER 24 213,003 350,075
Convertible bonds AT AR (E 5 26 - 76,104
Senior notes BEER 27 2,173,905 2,159,231
2,386,908 2,585,410
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 1,857,690 2,046,417
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #E 31(a)
Share capital R 22,920 22,935
Reserves i 1,834,770 2,023,482
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,857,690 2,046,417

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

17 March 2015.

Zhang Yuping
Executive Director

Huang Yonghua
Executive Director

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRARAEAELR
Capital PRC Non-
Share Share  redemption Captal ~ Exchange  statutory  Fairvalie  Retained controling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
e ]
BE BROEE EEE  ANEE  EAEE  iERE  ArERE REEH &t HERER ERRE
Note ~ RVMB'000  RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETn ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2013~ RZE-=%
-A-Bzi4 21,285 2,709,508 58 31,279 (165,983) 387,180 - 2473837 5456864 456978 5,913,842
Changes in equity for 2013:  =Z-=FEHE%EH:
Proft for the year EREF - - - - - - - 400421 400421 68451 468872
Other comprehensive income £t 2EMA 10 - - - - (28507) - - - (28507 (2674 (31,181)
Total comprehensive income 2 ERALE = - - - (28507) - - Aot dTiOl4 G577 437691
Dividends approved in respect ~ #LEBAEERS
of the previous year 31(b) - - - - - - - (174651)  (174,651) - (174,651)
Dividends to holders of TSR E R
non-controlling interests BEAZKRE - - - - - - - - - (63337 (63,337)
Transfer between reserves FEsHEs - - - - - 21,799 - (1799 - - -
Equity settled share-based NEREE - Rl
fransactions ERZHRS 2 - - - 324 - - - (567) (243) - (243)
Issuance of bonus shares ARE 1,755 (1,755) - - - - - - - - -
Purchase of own shares BEALARS
- par value -l (105) - - - - - - - (105) - (105)
~ premium paid -BH%E - - - - - - - (55472 (55472 - (5479
~ fransfer between reserves -GEEEy - - 105 - - - - (105) - - -
Repurchase and redemption ~ BEREEWARKES
of convertible bonds - - - (58,116) - - - 58,116 - - -
Acquisition of subsidlaries WEHBAR - - - - - - - - - 134152 134152
Capital contributions from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 28,000 28,000
Acquisition of adaitional equity  KERHBATZ
interest in subsidiaries e - - - 927 - - - - 97 (36638  (35711)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=E-=%
and 1 January 2014 +ZB=1-BR
“E-|E
-A-BzEs 22,985 2,107,763 163 (25,586) (194490 414979 - 2673480 5599234 584932 6,184,166

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARRDEEAEE
Capital PRC Non-
Share Share redemption  Capital Exchange  statutory ~Fairvalue  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
us] HE
e RBEE  ERE  ERRE  ENRE  AERE  QAERE REEA & FEREE BREE
Note ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Ml  ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR
Changes in equity for 2014:  =B-MERERSH
Profit for the year FEaEA - - - - - - - 504220 504,220 79207 583427
Other comprehensive income X2 ERA 10 - - - - 5,720 - 1,215 - 6,935 - 6,935
Total comprehensive income 2 ERAEE - - - - 5720 - 1205 504220 511,155 79,207 590,362
Dividends approved in respect ~ EBAEERS
of the previous year 31(b) - - - - - - - (119978 (119,978) - (119,979)
Dividends to holders of i RER
non-controlling interests BAAZKRS - - - - - - - - - 87417 (87417)
Transfer between reserves FmsHED - - - - - 22,264 - (22,269) - - -
Equity settled share-based ERES - Rl
transactions RS 2 - - - (696) - - - 81 (615) - (615)
Purchase of own shares BERLARG 31(e)f)
- par value ~HfE (15) - - - - - - - (15) - (1)
- premium paid -EfffE - - - - - - - (4869 (4869) - (4869
- transfer between resenves  — Bl ER - - 15 - - - - (15) - - -
Capital contributions from FHERER A
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - 40,000 40,000
Acquisition of adltional equiy ~ WER KB
interest in a subsidiary ZEIMRiE - - - (1,008 - - - - (1908 (309 (5000
Disposal of equity HEHBARZBRE
interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 31,994 31,994
Balance at 31 December 2014 HA=F-M%F
TZA=1-A
A3 22920 2,707,753 178 (28,190)  (188,770) 437,243 1,215 3,080,655 5983004 645624 6,628,628

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013
—ZT—MF —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HsF  AR®BTT AR®TRT ARETT ARBTT

Operating activities REED
Cash generated from operations & iE 15184 22(b) 491,329 648,346
Income tax paid EAFFRERL (231,620) (237,681)
Net cash generated from KEEBBRESFERE

operating activities 259,709 410,665
Investing activities BREEE
Payment for the purchase of BABEEEMNK

fixed assets (106,911) (120,076)
Proceeds from disposal HEBRTEE

of fixed assets and MEREE

intangible assets TS s 342,311 5,725
Payment for the purchase of B A EZEEN K

intangible assets (454) (6,321)
Proceeds from disposal of & — R A R ATS 308

an associate - 15,724
Payment for acquisition of WiE — B AR

additional equity interest ZRBIMERR R

in a subsidiary (5,000) (85,711)
Proceeds from disposal of SR 2 TS IR

equity interests 31,994 -
Payment for the purchase of UEEIE FTRIRE 2 M3

unlisted investments - (31,448)
Payment for the purchase of  UBE 8 & 2 MK

listed investments (21,125) -
Decrease in deposits with |ITHETORLD

banks 100,000 1,294
Increase in deposits with banks #R7T1FFIE N (113,000) (100,000)
Payment for purchase of BEIRTTIEV ERMNR

bank wealth

management products 4 (1,339,450) (2,110,405)
Proceeds from settlement REHIS A SR TIRB E @

of bank wealth Fr{S5R38

management products

upon maturity 4 1,339,450 2,110,405
Interest received B UFIE 16,142 65,213
Payments for acquisitions of RIE——FR-_T—=4%

subsidiaries completed SERUREB BB A B Z 3R

in 2012 and 2013 (56,529) (802,826)
Dividends received from BUYIE EHIRERE

unlisted investments 34,977 37,542
Net cash generated REFEE(FTFE)

from/(used in) investing HEFEE

activities 222,405 (470,884)

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013
—ZT—F —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
W AR%TrT ARETR ARETRT ARETT

Financing activities mMEEH
Capital contributions from TR ST E

non-controlling interests 40,000 28,000
Proceeds from new bank I RITE TS RIE

loans 1,301,583 3,348,961
Repayment of bank loans BRIRTTENK (1,629,591) (3,659,574)
Proceeds from senior notes, 1B ZEFTSHIE

net of transaction costs C HIBR R B - 2,158,949
Payments for interest on BEEEF S

senior notes 27 (133,630) (67,685)
Payment for repurchase and  B&[B] & & [B] AT #2 A% (& 5~ 3K

redemption of

convertible bonds - (1,981,065)
Payment for interest on AR EER B AR

convertible bonds 26 (1,870) (46,632)
Other borrowing costs paid B HEMEEK A (63,154) (81,891)
Payment for purchase of BB E AR A RN 3K

own shares Sl (4,884) (565,577)
Dividends paid to equity BERAQEROEFEEAZRE

shareholders of

the Company 31 (119,978) (174,651)
Dividends paid to holders of B IFERER A A Z A

non-controlling interests (89,514) (63,337)
Net cash used in financing ®IE ZEIFIFER S FHE

activities (701,038) (594,502)
Net decrease in cash and IRERBEZEBEYRD FE

cash equivalents (218,924) (654,721)
Cash and cash equivalents W—B—H=ZR%

at 1 January RIREZEEY 22(a) 2,185,922 2,869,945
Effect of foreign exchange  JMEERESFH/E

rate changes 1,067 (29,302)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=H=+—H

at 31 December ZEERBESEEY 22(a) 1,968,065 2,185,922

The notes on pages 93 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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1. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
financial statements also comply with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in section 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to
that Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Exchange”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
an associate and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
asset is stated at its fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below:

— Financial instruments classified as available-for-sale (see note

1(9))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

1. EEGFER

(a) ZEHIEH

EMBHRRIBEESSHMAS((FESEAIA
2 )EMOMBERAB AN BHREER ([ BEM SRS
AR | - A IE B IE AT A i B B B B g R A
Al - FFesrER([ BB SFER ) REE)  BEA
RETRANBERE - WEFHBRRNFTEBBERA
EHIRHERTE &P IRBEFTE SR FUEHI(F622F)
FOEN AR B RFER IFTIEAEE I KRB T HE(FR Z 15
BIFTFRA1FE76E871K) » BRAMKEE KL B AR R
AR AREGI(FEI2E) o WEMBRRITFTEED
AR SMAR AR ([BRAT])FH EMRBIMNERE
BT - S HRAERERAR(ARE ) REKB AR
(GBI ASE ) MRMNEZ ST BRI ES T -

BRI AGERME TRAKE RARARE S
HARE) B R A R s AT R R A SR A RO 3738 MR RT BB 7%
FRELER o BIFE ()P B UL F I T R R R 2 3 ]
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AR SRR ES 2B -
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HHE - AR RERR - MABHE - A RRREFE
BRZERREERRBEMIART B2 ESHEHE -
fAEt RIEAERRDREBEEEERESBEHE AEE L
Rz ERARMERRRT  (FRABEERAELZ
REEZER - At - ERAERAEEZSEFT AL
A °
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods. Judgements
made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company:

° Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

° Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

° Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

o Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

e HK(FRIC) 21, Levies

None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

94

V X

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

1. EEGEBR®E)
(b) BIFEIRAK B G REE (48)

EEES T EM R MBBRE - BRI 285
SHERFEAY - BRIeREHER - EFTRBZER
HIRRREAM - BRI SR AM R R BHEER - BEE
RERE B BRE L AELERBHRREEAT
L7 FE - AR ERMAEF AR R AORNH 2R

) BFHEZEE)
EERHMAREEE TR ARBRAA AL NG
EARS AR B L AR BB B T R A R B AT e — T
e

b 2

o EREUMBIMELDEI05  BEMBHREEE
125 R BB G ERE27R (BRI A) - REER

o FBAEGHEERR(EIA) eREERSH
BRI

o  FHAEGEREICHK(EIA)  FEMEEATK
Ol & K E

o  FHESEAFEIGRUEITA) TEATAEZER
ISEI ik e

o ZFRA(BRMBHREREBRER)F215%  #E

AERBEZERHASEANKEMORAEAERE

BEFBRALBEATZE - AEE W ERREARA

SRR HARERZ EMFERRERE -



1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(0), (p) or
the liability.

(q) depending on the nature of
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
1(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(0).

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

over its

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. The investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes 1(f) and (I)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate
or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note (1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates and joint venture are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1())).
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1(l)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(9) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest earned on
these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in notes 1(v)(ii)) and 1(v)(iv).

98
V X

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

1. EEGEBR®E)

H A&
A THIME 2 £

() CDEBREZAAE - ERANKEEEZIFZER
REBELAEEZINEKREERE 2 RA%
BARBEZ AR R

iy RUEARAEZRKEECAHIEEREE
DA FE -

B()RR()E - WEBEH BN ERTERRREBA
ZWgs o

AERK AR R RERIEYE - TTEBEBAMHZE
EBAMERMESELEN - KTBHARA G2 BRME
MERZRSEABNA  WASFEREINA(ZE
BERE1() °

EFEENLERSELEMN - SHE L EBERGTAPE
ABBZEFEEEHE -

@ REFREKARZESZEMKE
AEBERARBBEMER MEAESF ZRE(RHTER
A BMERRRAERRZRERIN ZBERLT

BREBRAEBES 2RENTREAIARBANERSE)S
B BB EERER A AABRARXSZETR - M
RABBABEREEL A EEERTISHREERER
ERERAEHARBENSBENEERMETES -
A BIERA R BRA - T XFEERRI - ZEFER
BERRTIINTAIE - EFEFEERIME

BEBEBCEFREDNDBRRBEE - FAELRS
AR EEREBEPER - NS 2REAMA R -
HEEMFTEQRE - MATELZ F AUk E BRI
BEAER  RESAERZEBRFEIEEZERE
FTBRE 2 IR B A B - Az EiEam iR EM (V)
(iif) 2.1 (v)(iv) Fr & 2 BUR HERR ©



1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 1())).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see notel(l)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(v)(ii) and 1(v)
(iv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 1())),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(h) Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(k)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 1 (v)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(k)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1(k).
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(l)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and is
not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

= Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful life, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements 1-5 years
- Motor vehicles 5-10 years
- Office equipment and other fixed assets 3-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and
the intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable
(see note 1(x)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(l)).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(l)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Agency rights and patents 5-10 years
Trademarks with finite useful life 5-10 years
Software licences 5-10 years
Favorable lease term acquired in a business combination 28 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired in a business
combination is based on the discounted estimated royalty payments
that have been avoided as a result of the patent or trademark being
owned.

The fair value of favorable lease term acquired in a business
combination is determined based on the present value of the
estimated lease payments using quoted market prices for similar
leases and the present value of the leases payments of the acquired
business.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

= land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write
off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(i). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss

in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 1(h)).

() Impairment of assets

()  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

() Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(g)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 1(|)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1(l)(ii).

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

EZEERBR®

EEBE (&)

B R R AR GE 5 E R B JE W R B
(&)

VA S5 R AN 51| B 2 FE MU 55 BR K % L b BV FE L
FEMEMEREE  HWURAZTZEEAN  RE
EBEEAEEZEEEREAARASRZRE
(REREEZRBBBRNEER - A HERZ
BESEZARNE) 2 ZR5E - R HK AR
SRz e MEBEABBUZEREH - flnEMU
ZBRIEN R REFRFESRE - RIHREF
EERKET EREEZRAKRERESRE
B EERBRUGERREBEE BT
ERIENR—FRE -

RE BB B 18 1E DA 1R HA R R A B HR 4 62080 (B /&S
ERRARBECEHATERE  HEBESK
BEZHRS - MEDCREBBETEREE K
HEBHEEATFEYBERREBRISE
ELZEHE e

RAEHEESME  CRAAERBAERZ
REBEREBEFT O EE RS c ERERAZ A5
BRESBEIDWEKACREEAANSER L EHE)
ERAERABEZER  BEEMAEAEBRER
HEEZRERR -

sunpparad —z2meem 105

V %



1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)

() Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

investment property;

- other property, plant and equipment(other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in
the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()  Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

= Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1()(i) and 1(l)(ii).
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently,
the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is
determined based on their estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of sale, and a
reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete
and sell the inventories.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
1(l)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(o) Convertible notes and derivative financial instruments
(i)  Convertible notes that contain an equity component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for
as compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to
the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
capital reserve is released directly to retained profits.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o) Convertible notes and derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

(i) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
At the end of each reporting period, the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(p) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

()  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

()  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the binomial lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i)~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(t)  Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)  Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)  Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(u)  Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i)  Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which are
present obligations at the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with note 1(u)(ii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot be reliably
fair valued or were not present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with note 1(u)(ii).
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are handed over to individual
customers at retail outlets or delivered at the wholesale or corporate
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(v)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the
date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

(v) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group
or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a Group of
which the other entity is a member).
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1. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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2. Accounting judgement and estimates

Notes 12, 13, 16, 20, 29 and 34 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to depreciation,
intangible assets impairment, impairment of equity interests in
associates, trade and other receivables impairment, fair value
of share options granted and fair value of financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed by the
Group at the end of each reporting period to assess whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs is estimated to
determine impairment losses on the asset. Changes in facts
and circumstances may result in revisions to the conclusion of
whether an indication of impairment exists and revised estimates
of recoverable amount, which would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually even if there is
no indication of impairment.

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and distribution costs. These estimates are based
on the current market conditions and the historical experience of
distributing and selling products of a similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimations at the end of each reporting period.

2. ERHFIERRMGE

MizE12 18~ 16~ 20 * 20K 34H B HEF EER(E
PERE  BEARREZRE - BHE SRR REM
EWHIERE  REBREZ A RBEARERIAZA
REBAZBRERERBRESE - L TAEEMHET T
SEL Y

(a) EBERE

ANE BN G E R B R A ED R ONRE A RRE TR
5 URHEEERE BB ERRETR © LR E
MRESR At ZEEREBR R SEEEAM
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2. Accounting judgement and estimates (Continued)

(c) Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The management
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of these
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

3. Turnover and segment reporting

(@) Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are retail and wholesale of
watches and jewellery.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to customers,
net of value added tax and is after deduction of any sales
discounts and returns.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenues.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below:
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3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography (mainly in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Taiwan).

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
five reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

o Retail segments (includes three segments for watches
retail in Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong and one
segment (“Harvest Max”) for jewellery, watches and duty
free commodities retail in Hong Kong): given the importance
of the retail division to the Group, the Group’s retail
business is segregated further into four reportable segments
on a geographical and products and services basis, as the
divisional managers for each of these regions report directly
to the senior executive team. All segments primarily derive
their retail revenue through their own retail network.

o Wholesale segment: this segment distributes numerous
world renowned brand watches in Mainland China and Hong
Kong.

()  Segment results and assets

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments. However, other than
reporting inter-segment sales, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including sharing of assets, is not measured.
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3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “gross profit”.

Segment results and assets (Continued)

Segment assets represent inventories only, without eliminating the

unrealised inter-segment profits.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for

the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance for the period is set out below.

3. HEHRSHMERE)

Iy =21¢ )
() FEREREEGE)
RREH/HWRAME TR AIERN] -

DEEEERIEFE - WARMBRARER Z 2 8RR

A BRERARERSETREEZABRRENERY
EE&"*BE’EEE“HEE’JZK’Elzi&’“*ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂﬁ@mﬂ? °

Retail
£
Mainland China Hong Kong Taiwan Harvest Max Wholesale All others Total
e Bk RE g iES fRst it
014 2013 014 2013 014 013 014 013 014 013 014 2013 014 2013
CE-BF “E-oF CE-ME F-CF CE-MF D32 CE-PF CEF CB-ME CCF DB CEoF CE-PE CTCE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB 000
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETR ARETH ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETE
Revenue fom RaigEp
external customers ol 6,48240 5508929 2593388 3151948 182761 206464 1584415 1021302 3726721 3118244 428845 218566 14,764,370 13375443
Inter-segment revenve 28NS - - - - - - - - 3558352 2,631,246 - - 3558350 2,631,216
Reportable o
Segment revenue & 6,248240 5508929 2593388 3161948 182761 206464 1584415 1021302 7,285,073 5749490 428845 278,566 18,322,722 16,006,689
Reportable 2578
segment profi il 1877611 747421 837219 683102 47767 63649 1214400 735824 409351 326687 136484 86962 4204832 3643635
Reportable E2i
segment assets 2E 3136954 3171910 1527848 1507122 199983 230496 115969 120263 1579018 1291340 105393 66768 6,665,165 6,396,889

Harvest Max Holdings Limited (“Harvest Max”) carries out

jewellery, watches and duty free
Hong Kong.

commodities retail business in

Results and assets of the segment below the quantitative
thresholds are mainly attributable to a watch repairing and

maintenance business, a packaging and decoration business,

a watch case manufacturing business, a hotel business, and a

property management business.
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3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues and profit

3.

(b)
(i)

SHEHERERTEHER®)

DESZ IR (&
Z I A s R R ak 9 £TR

or loss
2014 2013
—ZE—-mF —T—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue & AR¥T T AREEFIT
Total revenues for reportable segments EFp Il 17,893,877 15,728,123
Revenue for other segments HoAth 5 FP Uz 428,845 278,566
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 85 5 B A U s (3,558,352) (2,631,246)
Consolidated turnover REIHERE 14,764,370 13,375,443
2014 2013
—Z - —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Profit prewil ARBT T ARETTT
Total profit for reportable segments EWmD LR EF 4,086,348 3,556,683
Profit for other segments H b 5520 5% F) 138,484 86,952
4,224,832 3,643,635
Other revenue H b zs 95,473 139,278
Other net income/(loss) Halg A (E518)F5E 31,531 (105,477)
Distribution costs IR (2,926,425) (2,376,215)
Administrative expenses 1THE (394,583) (326,654)
Other operating income/(loss) HeibgW A (E518) 2,416 (5,583)
Finance costs R IDN (225,834) (291,074)
Share of losses of associates JE(RE & N A 518 (1,521) (7,805)
Share of profits of joint ventures i NIl 1,388 3,250
Consolidated profit before taxation ERE BT A= A 807,277 673,355
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3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues and profit
or loss (Continued)

3. HEHRSHMERE)

Iy =21¢ )
(i) 25U RIB R ()

2014 2013
—ZE-NF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Assets EE ARET T AREET T
Total assets for reportable ERDHREE
segments (inventories) (78) 6,559,772 6,330,121
Assets for reportable ERDEEE
segments (inventories) (F8) 105,393 66,768
Elimination of unrealised HEHAR B IR  FP A
inter-segment profit St A (52,472) (68,167)
6,612,693 6,328,722
Trade and other receivables FEULE 5 BR R K EL At FE WK IE 1,615,836 1,366,795
Deposits with banks RITTER 113,000 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBESEEY 1,968,065 2,185,922
Non-current assets EMEBEE 2,534,529 2,851,883
Consolidated total assets e MEE 12,844,123 12,833,322

(i)  Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets, goodwill, interest
in associates, interests in joint ventures and other investments
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case
of intangible assets and goodwill, and the location of operations,
in the case of interest in associates, interests in joint ventures and
other investments.
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3. Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3. HHEHEERSEHER®)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DESZ#H(E)
(i) Geographic information (Continued) (i) b ER ()
The Group’s business is mainly managed in three principal ASEEZZHE=(EXZSLEME - BIREAH - HEK

economic environments, Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.  &/&Z#E{THE o

2014 2013

—E-IF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue from external customers RENREF R ARETT ARBT T
Mainland China AR A, 10,377,042 8,948,022
Hong Kong and Macau B RR 4,204,567 4,220,967
Taiwan =] 182,761 206,454
Total #Et 14,764,370 13,375,443
2014 2013

—E-IF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
Specified non-current assets IEEFRBEE ARETT ARBEFIT
Mainland China ==NEvNpil 1,824,249 1,855,985
Hong Kong BB 595,551 697,759
Taiwan =y 42,166 230,066
Others Hith 396 664
Total A=t 2,462,362 2,784,474
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4. Other revenue and net income/(loss) 4. HugsE RN (EBE)BHE

2014 2013

—Z-mEF —TE—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Other revenue HAhlk = ARETFT ARBT T

Interest income FEW A 16,071 64,992
Dividend income from FEETIRE ZREMA

unlisted investments 33,494 34,977

Government grants BT ED 18,432 15,753

Rental income e WA 7,050 9,300

Others Hih 20,426 14,256

95,473 139,278

The Group purchased RMB1,339,450,000 (2013: ZAEER-ZT—MFmRTHESE ARE1,339,450,0007T
RMB2,110,405,000) principal-protected wealth management (=ZF—=%: ARK%2,110,405,0007C ) {R 74~ 3% 8f £ i,
products from banks during 2014. By the end of 2014, all of HEZFT—NFK FHEZXFERMZIZHALBRIEN
the principal and interest relating to these products had been T H[E @ AEBERIMRAAKK2,92584270(=F — =
received and the Group had recognised income of RMB2,925,842 & * AR¥35,626,0007T) * EFFALILFISHKA ©

on these products (2013: RMB35,626,000), which is included in
the interest income above.

2014 2013
— ik —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Other net income/(loss) HAabW A/ (E518 ) B 48 ARBT T ARET T
Impairment loss on interest in an  — S A T 2 EERREE R
associate (34,293) (87,893)
Impairment of goodwill (note 14)  EEE(E(HTE14) (38,000) -
Gain on disposal of an associate & —REEE A 72 Yzs - 4,487
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNEE R (B518), W F 5 (10,152) 25,540
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEBETEEE 2 W, (B8 FE(MiF12)
fixed assets (note 12) 113,976 (4,124)
Net loss on repurchase and B[O & FE O T AR S 5 2 SR B8
redemption of convertible bonds - (43,487)
31,531 (105,477)

1 2 8 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

V X



5. Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5%

Bk 5t i it 7

BRI ADE TSI GFA) A TIHBREFH

(a) Finance costs (@ BIBEAK
2014 2013
- —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Interest on bank loans wholly BRAFANEHERR
repayable within five years SRTTERF S 68,404 82,434
Interest on loans over five years AFLA ERE KT E 68 -
Interest on convertible bonds A EENTE
(note 26) (Hiat26) 3,507 69,185
Interest on senior notes (note 27) BAEEEHFIE (HE27) 140,446 130,759
Bank charges RITER 13,409 8,696
Finance costs B8 H 225,834 291,074
(b) Staff costs (b) BITHK
2014 2013
—ET-ImF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT
Contributions to defined TE R FUR ARG 2
contribution retirement plans R 96,035 92,992
Equity-settled share-based LARE R AE E I AR 9
payment expenses (note 29) EMS N 2R 5 (H1aE29) (615) (243)
Salaries, wages and other benefits  ¥& + TE& & HE M Fzs 765,801 640,267
861,221 733,016
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5. Profit before taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

5. BEHELENE)

BRBATR MGG, GTA)ATRB &G (&):

(Continued):
(c) Other items c) EMEH
2014 2013
—Z-mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ #iNMmE E 10,920 10,402
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEENE 149,100 127,471
Impairment losses RIEEE
— trade and other receivables —EUE 5 8RR R H b FEUGRIE (2,428) 5,583
— interest in associates — B E AT 2 s 34,293 87,893
— goodwill (Note 14) —mB(MaE14) 38,000 =
69,865 93,476
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNEE 3 3R (B4 ) W aR 5 (10,152) 25,540
Operating lease charges in MEKE
respect of properties HEEA
— minimum lease payments —EAEFKE 287,374 299,550
- contingent rents — sk RFE 522,915 496,092
810,289 795,642
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR BN & 4,390 4,190
Rental income from REEEMER
investment property WA 4,620 7,042
Cost of inventories TFERKAR 10,539,538 9,731,808
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6. Income tax in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

6. HMARBRZMEM

@ HFERmAXAZIHERS

represents:
2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Current tax ZRHAFA I8
Provision for Hong Kong profits REFEBFBEH
tax for the year P 54,514 63,038
Provision for Mainland China N B (A 3
income tax for the year FRiS i i 177,892 152,471
Provision for Taiwan and rEEGER
Macau income tax for the year SR PTIS R 3,311 882
Under-provision in respect of BEFEREDTE
prior years 3,125 1,933
Sub-total NET 238,842 218,324
Deferred tax IRIERIE
Origination and reversal of HRFE R 2 EA KRB B (ME30)
temporary differences (note 30) (14,992) (13,841)
Sub-total et (14,992) (13,841)
Total st 223,850 204,483

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the
Company is exempted from income tax in the Cayman Islands.
In addition, subsidiaries located in jurisdictions other than Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Macau, are not subject to any
income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2014 is calculated at
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year.

The applicable income tax rate of the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiaries is 25% in 2014 (2013: 25%).

The provision for Taiwan income tax for 2014 is calculated at
17% (2013: 17%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year
end.

The provision for Macau income tax is calculated based on
progressive rates up to 12% and the assessable profits for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 12%).

REASESRAVLER  AARERRENFTESHS
FR1SHL o tbSh - fIRNEE - R EIA - &8 FORFIASN
BUEREEAMIB A RN BASMNZE RV R M ER A
(EU

—E—F 2 FEFEHBEEIRFAZ G ERR G
MZ16.5%( T —=4F : 16.5%)stHE

RZZT—MEF - NEEHBERHHE A R EBEH
K 25% (=T —=4 : 25%) °

ZT - E G EAS BB A F R A EERBUE A 2
17%(ZF—=F : 17%)5t & °

B I RBENBE—T—mF+—A=+—ALt
FEZERPNENEERE12% (ZF—=F : 12%)2
REBEGE -
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6. Income tax in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss (Continued)

6. HZEBERZEHR®)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting  (b) F BRIy Btz A Rt B2 ©51 %7
profit at applicable tax rates: -
2014 2013
—T-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before taxation B 75 A4 7 807,277 673,355
Notional tax on profit before taxation, — BRE &Mz BEFIE -
calculated at the rates applicable to REBREERZ
profits in the jurisdictions concerned &M E B K5+ & 217,848 201,200
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAFGHBAZHETE (9,705) (11,669)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIFE sz 2 i IE &/ & 4,885 4,163
Under-provision in respect of BEFEREIR
prior years 3,125 1,933
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3 KRR 2 BB EE 2 Fi I 2 7,697 8,856
Actual tax expense ERHERS 223,850 204,483
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7. Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622) with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) is as follows:

7. EEME

REFBEERRIEHI(F62E ) M R11FE78IK - 2

T

ZREEARGII(ERE)F161ERECESTHE 10

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement
and other benefits
Directors’ Fee benefits plans Total
He 28 RINER
EERe REMER STEIHH &gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 28)
(Hiz228)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z-ME+-A=t-HLEFE
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Zhang Yuping " A - 5,643 13 5,656
Mr. Huang Yonghua BKESAE - 2,876 13 2,889
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan Bt - 1,963 13 1,976
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang PG EE 79 - - 79
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BEREL 79 - - 79
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, Wiliam ERELE 79 - - 79
Mr. Liu Xueling YBJ/EL 79 - - 79
Total st 316 10,482 39 10,837
wanEpaRAT —2—-meen 133

V %



7. Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

7. EEME®

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to retirement
and other benefit
Directors’ Fee benefits plans Total
e 2h RIKAEN
£ 2ika REf &R FE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note 28)
(Hiz#28)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z-=HE+t-A=+-ALEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhang Yuping wET R4 - 5,929 13 5,942
Mr. Song Jianwen RENEE
(resigned on 15 May 2013) (R=ZT—ZFERA+RAHML) - 1,120 13 1,133
Mr. Huang Yonghua HKERE - 3,255 = 3,255
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan ZHBEE
(appointed on 15 May 2013) (R=B-=61ATHREZA) - 1,631 12 1,643
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Sheng BRELE
(resigned on 15 May 2013) (R=F-=FRA+HBEEF) 1,052 = 12 1,064
Ms. Zheng Yu L1 $ e
(resigned on 15 May 2013) (R=Z-=FRA+HAEML) 29 - - 29
Mr. Shi Zhongyang PHEBEE 79 - - 79
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin EERLE 39 - - 39
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William HiRE L 79 - - 79
Mr. Liu Xueling =l 39 = = 39
Total =t 1,317 11,935 50 13,302
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7. Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no directors’ remuneration has been
paid or is payable by the Group during the two years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

During the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

8. Individuals with highest emoluments

7. EEME®

BREMFAHREEIN BE-_T-OFE-FT—=F1+_
A=+—HALFE  AEEYEETAE A RENEFH
T  BERVERRXRERETARE_FT—NFR_
T+t _A=t—BLImEAFEZMEL -

BEZ-NER_ZT-=F+"_A=+—HILFE "
Z!KE@i#ﬁfﬂ?ﬁﬁfi@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%iﬁiﬂ%%%%ﬁ}\
T(ERTIIMES) - ERMAREE 2 BE S AEABE
Bz w(E -

8. mEHMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2013: HREHZEEHATEH - Eﬁ%(_“—:i Fﬁ%)?’%%
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The = - E&HBI A7 E - Egp =2 (= =% =
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2013: =) A + > Z@@ston T :
three) individuals are as follows:
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Salaries and other emoluments #ﬁ%&ﬁ@@ﬂé 3,701 6,903
Contributions to retirement RIRE ARG IR
benefit plans 13 43
Bonuses TEAL 63,713 58,259
Share-based payments LARSAD S A RO RIR (86) (194)
67,341 65,011
The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals, other than #EB&RS#ME 2= %(_“ —=F: ZFZ)A AT (EERK

directors, with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

SN 2 &N F TS E

2014 2013

—E—-E —T—=F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HKD BIT A AE
Nil — 1,000,000 £ - 1,000,000 - -
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2,500,001 — 3,000,000 1 -
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 3,500,001 - 4,000,000 - 1
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 4,000,001 - 4,500,000 - 1
11,000,001 — 11,500,000 11,000,001 — 11,500,000 1 -
71,500,001 — 72,000,000 71,500,001 — 72,000,000 1 -

74,500,001 - 75,000,000

74,500,001 - 75,000,000
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9. (Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMB155,054,000 (2013:
RMB213,374,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s (loss)/profit
for the year:

9. ANBEBRBHEAENER) HEH

ARRRGEFEEARGLRES (BE) BRI EEEEA
R #155,054,00070( =T — =4 : AR#213,374,000

7T)  ERARABMEHRERD IR o

P eBmEARRFE(BR),TaflzHik

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETT
Amount of consolidated AR R BRI ERO A ARG
loss attributable to ZEABELE
equity shareholders dealt with
in the Company’s
financial statements (155,054) (213,374)
Dividends from subsidiaries BEMBEERELZMBATRE
attributable to the profits of R AL KR A
the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year 81,906 678,725
Company’s (loss)/profit for the year ~ AR R F R (EIE), & F(ffiF31(a))
(note 31(a)) (73,148) 465,351

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of
the Company are set out in note 37(b).
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10. Other comprehensive income

Tax effect relating to other comprehensive income:

10. HitEEUWAN

EREMEEBANRBETE

Before-tax
amount

RMB'000
ARETR

2014 2013
“E-pE %%
Net-of-tax ~ Before-tax Net-of-fax
Tax ~ amount amount Tax amount
EMREE EHNBHE

HE 8 KhneE A i
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTL ARETE ARETE

Exchange differences on translation of overseas
companies’ financial statements

Net gain recognised from the remeasurement of
investment in equity securities (note 18)

Other comprehensive income

BERIMATMERRAEL BN ER

B ERAESRERRL
WE R (H218)

Rt 2EHA

5,720

1,215

6,935

- 570 (31,181) - B8
- 15 - - -
- 6935 (31,181) - @181
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11. Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB504,220,000 (2013: RMB400,421,000) and the weighted
average of 4,799,648,231 ordinary shares (2013: 4,805,423,906
ordinary shares after adjusting for the bonus issue in May 2013) in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

()  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

1. 8REF

(a) FREAXEF

BREAZFTRBEARRBRNEFE ARMEEFARE
504,220,0007t( = Z — = 4F : AR #¥400,421,0007T )
RE A EITEBRINGE TN %04,799,648,231 /% &
BR(ZZ—=F: R =FHAFABRRARKE

4,805,423,906 BB H - SHEMT ¢
()  BERINEFEERE
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=F

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January ?—H—H Z B 2317 @A

Effect of shares repurchased IR EER 2 &
(note 31(c)(ii) (HtaE31(c)(i)

Effect of bonus issue (note 37(c)(i) IRZFALR% 2 F 2 (H1a#31(c)())

4,802,906,959 4,395,043,600

(3,258,728) (29,124,054)
- 439,504,360

Weighted average number of R+=ZA=+—H
ordinary shares at 31 December 38 A% N < 25 I R

4,799,648,231 4,805,423,906

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (diluted)
of RMB504,220,000 (2013: RMB400,421,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 4,799,648,231
shares (2013: 4,805,423,906 shares).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 has not included
the potential effects of the deemed issue of shares under
the Company’s shares option scheme for nil consideration
into ordinary shares and the potential effects of the deemed
conversion of the convertible bonds into ordinary shares as they
have anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amount
during the year.
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(b) FREFZTF|

BREFBANDDBEBERRARRGIFE AEMLEF
(858 ) A R #504,220,000t( T —=ZF: AR
#400,421,0007T ) & & 84 2 & 8 IR 0 T 15 Ik 2
4,799,648,231 1% ( == — =4 :4,805,423,906% )51 & -

HE_Z-NER-_ZT—=F+_A=1+—"HIFEH
BREFRANNAELEDIENAA RBRETEI TR
EBRITROEEER AT BRNBEETZE U RBERA
BRESFHBLALBRZBTEFE  WIBEREHFR
EREABIEEREESE -



12. Fixed assets

12. BIE&E

The Group KE
Office
equipment
Land and Leasehold Motor ~ and other Construction Investment  Total fixed
buildings  improvements  vehicles fixed assets in progress  Sub-Total property assets
HAZRER
HHREEY BERE hE HftEREE  REIR N REWE EEEESE
RMB'000 RMB'0OO  RMB'0OO  RMB'0OO  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR
Cost: FAfE
At 1 January 2013 R=F-=£-F-H 459,775 20 25201 116,232 303302 1,215,810 2,192 1,548,082
Exchange adjustments BN AR (2133 (1,168) (170) 2,164 - (5,635) (8,093) (13,729)
Additions 5 3,563 39,734 1721 20,482 54,576 120,076 = 120,076
Addftions through acquisition of subsilaries  FEAENBAALE 440,390 14,779 1,630 16,168 - 472,867 - 472,867
Transfer from construction in progress hERTREL 33547 28921 - 2977 (60,445) - - -
Disposals e - (489 (3% (9,904) - BT - 5T
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=5TZA=1-A
and 1 January 2014 Rk=%-mE-F-A 935,142 5048 26036 143,791 27433 1817450 264099 2,081,549
Exchange adjustments B 3% (379) (299) 2 (1,638) - (2299) @590 (6,889
Additions BE - 4281 2,196 20,787 41,057 106,911 - 106,911
Transfer from construction in progress HERTREA - 27,599 - 1,765 (29,364) - - -
Disposals HE (1,509) (24175 (1,212 (11,234) - (38,190)  (208,541)  (246,731)
At 31 December 2014 WZE-METZA=1-A 933,258 461,044 26,980 153471 309,126 1,883,879 50,061 1,934,840
Accumulated depreciation: ZithiE:
At 1 January 2013 H-2-=£-B-B (15419 (1521700 (12326  (39.369) - nadsy (16850 (296,134)
Exchange adjustments kL 218 206 160 908 - 1,487 157 1,644
Charge for the year EENE (12968) (1652 (5480 [r791) - (122769) @709 {or4m)
Transfer from investment property EEhi - - - - - - - -
Wrtten back on disposals HERE - 2839 1640 5,850 - 35,879 - 35,879
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=E+-f=1-H
and 1 January 2014 R=F-mE-A-A (88,174) (200,103)  (16,008) (60,402) - (364,687) (21395 (386,082)
Exchange adjustments EiAE ] 50 (24) 1427 - 1,445 108 1,553
Charge for the year EENE (28,229) 60019 (4659  (32,32) - (452 (36T (149,100)
Written back on disposals HERR 567 16,891 984 10,623 - 29,265 15,479 44,744
At 31 December 2014 N-F-ME+-AZ1-R (15844 (263181)  (19707)  (80479) - 0 0675 (488,885
Net book vale: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 RZE-PETZA=1+-A 817,414 197,863 1,213 72,993 309,126 1,404,669 41,286 1,445,955
At 81 December 2013 RZF-=5+2A=1-A 846,968 214,945 10,028 83,389 207438 1,452,763 202,704 1,695,467
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12.

Fixed assets (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

(0

(i

(i)

Land owned by the Group is located in Taiwan, which has
an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.
The carrying amount of the land located in Taiwan as at 31
December 2014 is RMB6,793,000 (2013: RMB7,146,000).

The buildings owned by the Group are located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.

As at 31 December 2014, land and buildings in Taiwan with
carrying amounts of RMB10,282,000 were pledged to banks
as security for certain loan facilities (see note 24).

As at 31 December 2013, land and buildings and investment
property with carrying amounts of RMB242,030,000
and RMB192,561,000 in Mainland China and Taiwan,
respectively, were pledged to banks as security for certain
loan facilities.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group was in the process
of obtaining a property ownership certificate for one
building in Taiyuan with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB11,733,000 (2013: RMB12,038,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the investment properties located
in Shenzhen, Wuhan and Urumgi in Mainland China and in
Taiwan were rented out under the terms of operating leases.

During 2014, investment properties in Shenzhen and Taiwan
with a total carrying amount of RMB193,062,000 were sold
and a corresponding gain on disposal of RMB113,658,000
has been recognised in other net income/(loss) (note 4).

As at 31 December 2014, the investment properties
located in Wuhan and Urumgi in Mainland China were
rented out under terms of operating leases. The fair value
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2014,
as determined by reference to recent market transactions
of comparable properties, amounted to RMB97,576,000
(2013: RMB372,000,000). The fair value of the investment
properties has not been evaluated by an independent
external valuer.
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12. IR &E )

ALK E (&)

(0

(i

(i)

(iv)

REEHEA 2 THURAE BEEERERF
B AT ERE - R _T-—NFEF+_A=+—
H - IR &z T HEREE A ARKE,793,0007T
—ET—=%F : AR¥7,146,0007T) °

AEEHREZEEDURTERN EEREE -

R-ZE—MFE+-_A=+—H uURAEKREE

BARY10,282,000t 2 T FEFEERE T
B ERMEFFIRT(2ENE24) °

%

A—E—=F+_A=+—8 URFBERN KX
BEREED BB AREE242,030,0007T R AR
192,561,0007T 2 T RIEF ARG EYIZEEER
ETERZERMER FRIT -

RZZT—NF+=—A=+—H AKEERHF
BE—EBURKRMEMBRER 2R  2ZWE
ZEREELNSARE11,733,000 (=T —=4F :
AER#12,038,0007T) °

ROE—=F+-A=+—08 URFTEAL
Y RERSEARBARMLREEZREME
ERBEEHEGKLHE -

REZZ—WF  URFNEEEREAEAGLEAR
#193,062,000 T2 HEMECEL - MR L
£ zE AR113,658,000T B R E MU A, (&
1B8)FERER(MIE4) ©

R-ZT—NF+—A=+—8  URPEALZ
RERSBABE ZREMEFCREBLERERK
e RZTE—WE+_A=+—0H " ZFKE
MEEDEA LR ETATMISZZMEENRA
R EHAREIT,576,000(ZF—=F : AR
372,000,0007T) ° ZEREWEH QR EW R
BN EREE o



13. Intangible assets

13. MELEE

The Group KE
Trademarks  Trademarks
with indefinite with finite  Agency rights Software Favorable
useful lives  ‘useful lives  and patents licences lease term Total
BRETHER  EREEA RER
FHvEHE  FHHE RERE  BHETE BEAY &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETT  ARETT  ARETR AR
Cost: R
At 1 January 2013 A\_F-=#-f-R 12,162 8,744 1,199 26,701 74,988 128,794
Exchange adjustments AR (369) = = (44) = 413)
Additions during the year EREE - - - 8,999 - 8,999
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=%+-A=1-BRK
1 January 2014 “F-MmE-A-H 11,793 8,744 1,199 35,656 74,988 132,380
Exchange adjustments A% 41 - - (32) - 9
Additions during the year EREE - - - 454 - 454
Disposal during the year ENNE - - - - (18,774) (13,774)
A bzemosratle RSTRETSA=TH M 84 1189 3R08 6124 119069
Accumulated amortisation: EGr N
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=%-f-H - (6,691) (1,080) (2,870) (2,554) (12,195)
Exchange adjustments AR - - - 10 - 10
Charge for the year EEEH = (619) (119) (6,262) (3,402) (10,402)
At 31 December 2013 and RZZ-=F+-A=+-BR
1 January 2014 “Z-mF-F-H - (6,310) (1,199) (9,122) (5,956) (22,587)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - - 19 - 19
Charge for the year EEAH - (619) - (6,815) (3,486) (10,920)
Written back on disposal HERMD - - - - 1,020 1,020
s zeesate W2 REI-A=TR T 6929 | (1199 05918 | Bi22) (52468
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 RZE-m¥+-A=+-H 11,834 1,815 - 20,160 52,7192 86,601
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+-A=1-R 11,793 2,434 - 26,534 69,082 109,798
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13. Intangible assets (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

The amortisation charges for trademarks with finite useful lives,
Edox agency rights and patents and software licences are
included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

The amortisation charge for the favorable lease term is included in
“Distribution costs” in the consolidated income statement.

The basis of impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
trademarks with indefinite useful lives is as follows:

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is determined
based on value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and
growth rates. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the two-year financial budgets and extrapolates cash flows
for the following eight years based on estimated annual growth
rates in sales of 5% to 10% (2013: 10% to 15%), a growth rate
in gross profit ratio of 0% (2013: 0%), and a discount rate of 10%
(2013: 10%). The growth rates are determined by management
based on the performance of the relevant cash-generating units
and their estimated future developments in the market.
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BHEEEAFHIERT - FEEERINE LK S
AEZEHBERSAGEBRERITTRERIT °

BERY 2 BHERTFAGREBRERI D HMAIT

MRS EEBNBEERTEER T2 HE 2 RENR
EEMT ¢

ReEEBNZAIREISBNIZFEREETFEETE ° £
AEEFECEZERRAHBRREREFH 2K
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—=F 10%E15%) * 0% EFEEBRE(ZT—=
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14. Goodwill 14. &
The Group AEEH
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—H—H 362,504
Additions HEE 478,017
At 31 December 2013 and R-—TE—=F+-_A=+—H
o1 Deeeimosr 2014 e s e B 0
Accumulated impairment losses: Z:HRIEEE :
At 1 January 2013, 31 December WM-ZE—=%—HA—H - —Z—=F+-_A=+—H0K
2013 and 1 January 2014 —E—mFE—A—H -
Impairment charged during the year & AEHRIRIE (38,000)
st & Deegmiosr 2ons R=ZB_WEY=A=t-8 (38,000)
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+_A=+—H 802,521
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+"H=+—8H 840,521
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14. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to places of operations and reportable
segments as follows:

14. 58 @)
SHEEE I ESF B HER S

FEEDE TAKRERIE T2 EME R 2/ MMATHEE
ZIREELBA

2014 2013

—Z-mF —ER==4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREBFT

Retail — Mainland China TE - R 256,584 294,584
Retail - Hong Kong TE—BB 171,163 171,163
Retail — Taiwan TE-/E 22,654 22,654
Retail — Harvest Max TE-2% 303,633 303,633
All others FrA E A 48,487 48,487
802,521 840,521

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are the discount
rate and revenue/gross profit growth rate. The Group prepares
cash flow forecasts derived from the two-year financial budgets
and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years based
on estimated annual growth rates in sales ranging from 0% to
21% (2013: -2.3% to 20%), growth rates in gross profit ratio
ranging from 0% to 2% (2013: -1% to 3%), and a discount rate
ranging from 15% to 16.5% (2013: 15% to 16.5%). The growth
rates are determined by management based on the performance
of the relevant cash-generating units and their estimated future
development.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, as a result of the
commencement of certain municipal infrastructure improvement
projects, the operating results of certain nearby retail stores within
the Retail-Mainland China segment were worse than expected.
Management estimated the recoverable amount of those related
assets which generated cash inflows independently from other
assets of the group (“the cash-generating unit”). As at 31
December 2014, the cash-generating unit has been reduced to
its recoverable amount of RMB486,556,000 and an impairment
loss of RMB38,000,000 was recognised in respect of this cash-
generating unit and has been allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the goodwill. Any adverse change in the assumptions
used in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in
further impairment losses.
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R(ZE—=F : 15%E16.5%) mEIZMFHBIAE 2
RenBl R ESERAFZRER  ZFRBREIIH
EREREAEREEEEM KRR NEFHREERM
B -

BE-FT-OF+-A=+t—HLEE  ARBOMEK
ERFUETREYT - EHTE(PEAM) DR Lt
TREINENETTEEHNEEEEENTEN - E1EE
ERZSHREEEBUNAREEMEEEL RSN
ATHREEAEM])) 2AIRESEEL G - RZF
—NE+ZA=1+—0 ReELBMEHEEAKE
TR ARMA486,556,0007 © Kt R e EE BARER
B & B A R #38,000,0007T + I E S BLA LAUR A
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15. Interest in subsidiaries 15. RMtB AR Z =
The Company AR A]

2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRRD - R ANE 485,262 499,612
Amounts due from subsidiaries A I NGIE S 4,064,603 3,958,462
4,549,865 4,458,074

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

FEM P B R R RIAREIER - B REREEENRY -

TREHFJEAEEXE EEXABHEEATEZW
BRARZHE - FRIEZHER  AHROERNERE
il g

Proportion of ownership interest

FIEREDL
Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
R rx&EBz  BHARE  HREAR ERTR
kT BXH ERER t520] t520] BEREAFE TEXK
Elegant Jewellery Hong Kong 100% 100% = 5,000,000 shares  Retail of watches
Holding Limited and jewellery
—ERBESEERARA B 500000008 FHEFKETE
AFENERERAR Mainland China 100% - 100% 500,000,000 shares of  Retail and wholesale
(“Shenzhen Hengdeli") HKD1 each of watches
(TRI=571) R R, 500,000,000 BRAEI AL KRR FHEEERME
LBNFEREEERAR Mainland China 95% = 95% 1,000,000,000 shares of  Retail and wholesale
(“Shanghai Xinyu") RMB1 each of watches
(I E&#HF]) FER 1,000,000,0001BREE FHTER#E

AREITTZ R
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15. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FEREM
Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
11054 rEEz  @HARAE BKELR ERTR
INGELE BEE BRER A A BRERFE TTEH
FMIXEEHFFHREKER Mainland China 60% - 60% 50,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
A7 (“Suzhou Xinyu”) RMB1 each
(T#MFF)) PRI 50,000,000 BREE FHEE
ARBATLZ KD
AEER%KTERAF (‘Henan  Mainland China 70% = 70% 30,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
Fuhao”) RMB1 each
(MEExl)) HEIRH 30,000,000k BRAE FHZE
ARBITRH
BN TFERERAR Mainland China 51% = 51% 5,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Wenzhou Xinyu") RMB1 each
(MRMEF]) HE At 5000000f: B EE FHTE
ARBITLZ BB
RENT=EERER A Mainland China 60% - 60% 50,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
("Wuhan Xinyu”) RMB1 each
(TEEHF) R, 50,000,000 BREE FHTE
ARBATLZ R
EMNmmEaEARAR  Manland China 100% - 100% 131,000,000 shares of  Decoration and packaging
(“Guangzhou Yadi") HKD1 each
(M) R, 131,000,000 FREE HHREE
1T 2R A
R =HERERAA Mainland China 70% - 70% 20,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Anhui Sanxin”) RMB1 each
([ZB=%1) HE A, 20,000,000 BREE FHTE
ARBALZ KD
IRmFEMRtERERERL  Manland China 55% - 55% 156,800,000 shares of  Retall and wholesale of
‘A7 (“Beijing Hengdeli") RMB1 each watches
(MER=FEH]) FER, 156,800,000 BHEE FHREERME
ARBITZBln
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15. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 15. KRB AR Z = (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEREDL
Place of Group's Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
R A&Bz  @HARE EHELR BRTR
DAAR EF Uk BRER =21 2] BREAFE ITEXH
FFFEHRECRINERAR  Mainland China 100% - 100% 350,000,000 shares of  Investment holding
(“Xinyu Hengdeli HKD1 each
investment (Shenzhen)”)
(MFFEFEARECRIND) BN 350,000,000k BFREE HRAER
1A ZRG
AERXERARAR (‘Jng  Taiwan 80% - 80% 155,820,000 shares of  Retail of watches
Guang Tang”) NTD1 each
(T5EREE]) =) 155,820,000k Bk EE FHETE
FAEAT RS
MEZEAREERAA Mainland China 65% - 65% 7,000,000 shares of  Investment holding
("Xinjiang Hengdell RMB1 each
Investment”)
(BT HMRE]) FEIR 7,000,000 BREE REZR
AREAT 2R (D
BER ETERERAR Mainland China 100% - 100% 126,000,000 shares of ~ Wholesale
(“Ningbo Shangheng”) HKD1 each
(rEg =) PRI 126,000,000 SREE #F
1ATZRG
WERE#EEERHEBAE  Manland China 60% - 60% 20,000,000 shares of  Manufacturing and retail
(“Zhuhai Nivada”) RMB each of watches
(rsesE]) B A 20,000,000 BIREE FHREERTE
AREATZ B
Alpha Key Investments Limited ~ BVI 100% - 100% 1 share of  Investment holding
(“Alpha Key") USD1 each
RERERRAA(EE]) RERTES RERAEIET R  REBR
Hengdeli Giant Dragon Limited ~ BVI 100% - 100% 1 share of  Investment holding
("Hengdeli Giant Dragon”) USD1 each
FRHERBRAT RERTES RERAEEIETZ KRG REBR
(MH/MEE])
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15. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

15.

Proportion of ownership interest

i

BB A Rl Z HE & (48)

it L2palsd
Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
incorporation effect by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
R rEEz  BARE AREAR BRAR
DRER RS BRER =] =] BREARFE TEEEK
Xinyu Hengdeli BVI 100% - 100% 1 share of  Investment holding
Investments Limited USD1 each
(“Hengdeli Investments”)
MFFRIREBRATF ERUES REREEIETZRG  REBR
([FHEHERAD
Harvest Max Holdings Limited ~ BVI 70% = 70% 14,000 shares of  Retail of watches,
(“Harvest Max") USD1 each jewellery, and duty free
commodities
LRIEREBAR(E%E]) RERAES 14,000 BREBIZT RN F& KER
SHEMTE
HEFRIRABERAT Mainland China 89% - 89% 22,515,930 shares of  Retail of watches
("Nanchang Hengdeli”) hEIAL, RMB1each  and jewellery
((BE=ZEH]) 22,515,000 BRAE FHRREUEDE
AREAT 2R 5
ARIEFERERAR Mainland China 60% - 60% 150,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Nanjing Shunxu”) HEIRH RMB1each  FHZTE
(aRIER)) 150,000,0008% SR E &
AREAT 2R 17
# Al of the subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China are domestic ~ * BRRYIFEA - BEFF - BEMNHES - SIFFEMRE
enterprises, except for Shenzhen Hengdeli, Shanghai Xinyu, ORI R=R L= RINGIREREIN - FIARTE A
Guangzhou Yadi, Xinyu Hengdeli investment (Shenzhen) and Ningbo MR EB AR ARNERE
Shangheng which are foreign invested enterprises.
The directors are of the view that the Group has no individualy #®BEZZ—WNE+_A=+—HILFE EFRAELSE

material non-controlling interest for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with bank are held in
China and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.
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16. Interest in associates 16. REtENRlZER
The Group REE

2014 2013
—E—mE ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Interest in associates REEE R B 2 s - 245,812
Less: impairment loss B OREEE - (161,951)
- 83,861

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group as at 31
December 2013:

TREFINBEE-_FT=Ft_A=1t—HLLHAKE
RENEERREATEZBENR 2T

Proportion of ownership interest

FERAEDL
Form of Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
business incorporation effective by the Held by issued and paid Principal
Name of associate structure and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  activity
AKEz  HARE AKEAE ERITR
IR FBRBRA B EE Sk BERER EEXc] 2] BREXRFEE IEXH
Ming Fung Jewellery Incorporated Cayman 15.27% - 15.27% 4,366,027,293  Sale and
Group Limited Islands shares of distribution
HKDO0.01 each of jewellery
and watches
REREEEERAR  AMEE REHS 15.27% - 15.27%  4,366,027,2931% HERFHHE
BREE RHH
0.018 T 2B fn

Pursuant to announcements made by Ming Fung during 2014,
Ming Fung acquired a target company which is the exclusive
distributor of certain products bearing the trademarks of Girard-
Perregaux and JeanRichard in the territories of mainland China,
Macau, Hong Kong and Taiwan and issued a number of Ming
Fung’s ordinary shares as consideration. Upon the completion of
this acquisition, the Group is no longer the largest shareholder of
Ming Fung.

As a result, management of the Group has reassessed whether
it continues to have significant influence over Ming Fung and
concluded that the Group’s significant influence over Ming Fung
ceased during 2014. Accordingly, the investment in Ming Fung
has been accounted for as other investment in equity securities
(refer to note 1 (g)).

BERAEN —Z—NFRE AL BERE—HEEZ
ARI(ZARATEALM BT - FEREGEEZE
2 1A (Girard-Perregaux) & [# # ¥ (JeanRichard) & 12
ZHETERZBRDHEE)  WETETHENERERK
EARE - ZWBZKE  A5ETHEABLENZAR
o

At AREEREENFIEESTRELHALAEE

TR BRARNEER _ZE-NFETHHHAEA
BEAFEN - Bt RPBZREC ARINERBRA
Em 2 B E (2HME1(g) °
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17. Interest in joint ventures 17. REEREIZHER
The Group KREH
2014 2013
—Z-NEF —TET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETIT
Share of net assets DIEEERE 55,423 54,035

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures, which are

accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

AEERGEAR(RERRNRAEDENGE MR
RARR) 2 ERFHBWT

Proportion of ownership interest

FrERED
Form of Place of Group’s Held Particulars of
business incorporation effect by the Held by  issued and paid  Principal
Name of joint ventures structure and business interest Company subsidiaries up capital  activity
Fiaii)4 KEE2 AR BB BETR
RENAEHE SRERKA  Exd B ER 58 58 BREAEE TEEEK
LERTHERNE Incorporated ~ Mainland 50% - 50% Registered ~ Sale and
BRAF (‘Shanghai China capital  distribution
Ruihenga”’) RMB30,000,000 of watches
(I EBm=H ) AR FREIR FMER  FREER
ARE 2
30,000,0007T
tEFFSREE Incorporated ~ Mainland 50% = 50% Registered  Property
BBERARA China capital  management
(“Beijing Hengrui”) RMB40,000,000 and leasing
(MERF5]1) BRI IR FHER MEEER
ARE  HE
40,000,0007T
The above joint ventures are both unlisted corporate entities LMllEZEARIHARIELTEEER - AMISWMETA

whose quoted market price is not available.
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17. Interest in joint ventures (Continued)

17. REE RN ZEZR#H)

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures, adjusted &&RAFZHBERBE « @FBERERNEE 2ARER
for any differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to 4R & A ER&R NEREE 2 HERERMOT ¢
the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:
2014
—E-mEF
Shanghai Beijing
Ruihengqi Hengrui Total
FEmTH Bl At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Gross amounts iz
Current assets TRENVEE 26,926 21,367 48,293
Non-current assets ERBNEE 5,942 66,894 72,836
Current liabilities UiEJA=NE (9,685) (338) (10,023)
Non-current liabilities EMENAE (259) - (259)
Equity et 22,924 87,923 110,847
Included in the above FALMEERERE :
assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 21,743 21,360 43,103
Revenue Wz 44,836 4,500 49,336
Profit after tax RSl 1,702 752 2,454
Total comprehensive income Z2HERA LR 1,702 752 2,454
Included in above profits: FFA USR] -
Depreciation and amortisation e N 2,098 1,129 3,227
Interest income T2 U A 248 73 321
Income tax expense FifSFiF 430 687 1,117
Reconciled to the Group’s REBREENTZ
interest in joint ventures ER LR
Gross amounts of net assets BEFEERE 22,924 87,923 110,847
Group's effective interest REE 7 EREF S 50% 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets and AEBEEEEFER
carrying amount in the RERE I IwKR A2
consolidated financial statements  BREI{E 11,462 43,961 55,423
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17. Interest in joint ventures (Continued) 17. REEREIZE R B)
2013
=%
Shanghai Beijing
Ruihengai Hengrui Total
EgmTH R HET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Gross amounts #zE
Current assets mRBEE 89,796 30,667 120,473
Non-current assets FERBEE 6,370 68,621 74,991
Current liabilities mEAE (75,148) (12,106) (87,254)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (140) = (140)
Equity W 20,878 87,192 108,070
Included in the above FFTALMEERBE -
assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIREEEBY 19,208 30,663 49,871
Revenue Yz 44774 4,500 49,274
Profit after tax Tt 1& 4 A 5,000 1,500 6,500
Total comprehensive income ZHEWABEE 5,000 1,500 6,500
Dividend received B U8 - 6,352 6,352
Included in above profits: A LR R -
Depreciation and amortisation e LY 2,559 1,129 3,688
Interest income FLEWA 70 99 169
Income tax expense FriSfif s 1,939 1,295 3,234
Reconciled to the Group’s REBREE AT Z
interest in joint ventures YR
Gross amounts of net assets B EFEEE 20,878 87,192 108,070
Group's effective interest REEZEBRAS 50% 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets and AEBEREMEEFEK
carrying amount in the RERE B ]REKRAZ
consolidated financial statements  BREI{E 10,439 43,596 54,035
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18. Other investments

18. Hihig&

The Group REE
2014 2013
—ZE-ME —T—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT

Listed investment in equity REAFESRZ ETRE

securities (note 34(f)(i)) (B 7£34(0()) 71,065 -
Unlisted investment, at cost JEETIRE - IREKANE 797 797
71,862 797

As disclosed in note 16, management of the Group determined
that during 2014, the Group ceased to have significant influence
over Ming Fung. Accordingly, the retained equity interest in Ming
Fung has been accounted for as other investments, following
the accounting policy as disclosed in note 1(g). As at 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of investment in Ming Fung
was remeasured at its market value and the resultant gain of
RMB1,215,000 (note 10) was recognised in other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2014.

19. Inventories

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

MM GE16FT R - AEEERESBTE KT —0
FAEETHHALAFEATE N - At - RBEEZ
REBREDIEMF1(0) TR E 2 5T BER ARIEE M
BE - R_ZT—MNMFE+-_A=+—H RAELZEEAE
ZEAECREMBEEEHNTE  FIBREARE
1,215,000 (FHEF10) ERBE T —NFE+ A=+
—BIEFEZEMEEBARER -

19. &
@) REBHBUIRZFEAE :

The Group AEE
2014 2013
—E-—MEF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREF T
Raw materials R 44,145 31,922
Work in progress el 30,174 30,673
Finished goods BIEK G 6,538,374 6,266,127
6,612,693 6,328,722
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19. Inventories (Continued)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

19. F&E @
(b) HRBREZILAER 2 TFEHEIN

recognised as an expense and included in profit or o
loss is as follows:
The Group KEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold & H 17 & BRE A 10,551,490 9,706,885
(Reversal)/increase of GEREB(EE), LM
inventory provision (11,952) 24,923
10,539,538 9,731,808
20. Trade and other receivables 20. EWE ZRA R HEtEWRIE
The Group KEH
2014 2013
—E-IF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFTT
Trade receivables B E 5 IR 1,053,380 901,227
Amount due from associates FE MBS 2 R B SRIE - 2,021
Less: allowance for doubtful debts & : RERE & (H1:520(b))
(note 20(b)) (3,393) (5,821)
1,049,987 897,427
Prepayments and deposits TENRIBE MRS 333,381 206,943
Other receivables H fth U RIB 226,789 231,309
Amount due from associates JE U BSE N B FIR - 20,583
Amount due from joint ventures FEU S &N Rl IE 5,679 10,533
1,615,836 1,366,795
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20. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

20. ENE ZIRA R Hith BUTFRIE ()

The Company AR A]
2014 2013
—ZE-ME —T—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBT T
Other receivables H fth fE Wk IE 5,185 6,716

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis

An ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for

doubtful debts) is as follows:

P B FEWE 5 B ok I Lt R M BIR B TR AR — F A

g o

@ BRESIT

FEWE R Z Btk D AT (B HIBR RARBE) AT

The Group rEHEH
2014 2013
—E—-NE == =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Current K360 HA 964,427 844,218
Less than 1 month past due wmE LR —1{E A 49,339 2,371
1 to 3 months past due A —==@EAH 13,376 29,890

More than 3 months but 780 HR R 2 = 1 A

less than 12 months past due BLR+ @A 17,213 19,672
More than 12 months past due 6 BAEE A+ — & A 5,632 1,276
Amounts past due B0 H I8 85,560 53,209
1,049,987 897,427

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 60 days from the date of
billing. Further details regarding the Group’s credit policy are set

out in note 34(a).

W E 5 RN AMAR A HEF0E60R M - N&H

EEBRZE — P BERHIE34()
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20. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly (see note 1(l)(i)).

20. BWE ZERF R HEtEWFIE#)

(b) EWEZHEEE

HENE SERRERSE  AEESRRERER -
BRIEARN R EARE A R EZ AN A e ERE - ARE
RIBLER R ERNEWE RN MEE (2B M)
M e

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FRARKRBENEE(BIEMEF L LEREBEIH)AT
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is as
follows:
The Group KEE
2014 2013
—E-F —EB—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January w—H—H 5,821 818
Impairment loss recognised EHER R EEE 322 5,322
Reversal of impairment B Uk B3 6] 2 SR B &5 18
loss upon receipts (2,750) -
Uncollectible amounts written off ] 4k B 4 58 2 #f 4 - (319)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,393 5,821
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20. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

20. ENE ZIRA R Hith BUTFRIE ()

(c) ILHERLIE R EWE 5 AR
BLE BRI TR R FIHAR B TR E 2 K E SRR 2 R
BT :

The Group AEE
2014 2013
—E-—MEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Neither past due nor impaired KRB HATN AR RE 964,427 844,218
Less than 1 month past due AR —EA 49,339 2,371
1 to 3 months past due B —Z==EA 13,376 29,890

More than 3 months but wEEE=EA

less than 12 months past due BLR+=MEA 17,117 19,467
More than 12 months past due B EAFR A+ — & A 5,452 1,241
85,284 52,969
1,049,711 897,187

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relating to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relating to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

frl AR 280 B BXOR (B2 FE M IR Y ST A XY SR B AV RSBk 2 —
REFHR -

EEMERBE 2 BUGIRT B — L EAREE A RIFR
SR CBUEFPAR - REBBELSR  ANERER
VEEAES  ARFEHDRE LA ZERE - BE
EREL &N R %A ELRERE -
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21. Deposits with banks

The Group KEH
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Deposits with original maturities FREISHBRA=EAZFXR
over three months 113,000 100,000

Deposits with original maturities over three months are time
deposits with banks in mainland China.

22. Cash and cash equivalents

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

REMBBE=ER 2 FRIFRR P EAIRTZE

22. RERFEZEY
) B RELEEYESE

The Group The Company
rEE RAF]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mEF —E-=F —T-mE —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Cash and cash equivalents B f&AA 2% &
in the statement of ReEmER
financial position and ZHe Kk
cash flow statement IREZLEY 1,968,065 2,185,922 79,526 338,786
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22. Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from operations:

22. BERBREEEY )
(b) AR F R E BTS2 A2 BR -

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARBTR ARBTT
Profit before taxation R Bt BT S A 807,277 673,355
Adjustments for: FHEIFR -
Depreciation e 5(c) 149,100 127,471
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 5(c) 10,920 10,402
Finance costs B 5% R 5(a) 212,425 282,378
Dividend income from REFLHRENRE
unlisted investments 4 (33,494) (34,977)
Interest income B A 4 (16,071) (64,992)
Loss on repurchase of 8 B Al R & 5 2 548
convertible bonds - 43,487
Share of profits of joint ventures NN 17 (1,388) (3,250)
Share of profits less losses JE(G B N A
of associates St A Es 1R 16 1,521 7,805
Impairment of interest in R—REsE a2z
an associate BEEBE 4 34,293 87,893
Impairment of goodwill BERIE 14 38,000 -
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEBTEEZ
fixed assets (Wzs)/ BiEFE 4 (113,976) 4,124
Equity-settled share-based At E
payment expenses D EM T MRS 5(b) (615) (243)
Gain on disposal of an associate & —EHA D T A S - (4,487)
Operating profit before changes “E&Z &S BATMN
in working capital A 1,087,992 1,128,966
Increase in inventories FEEM (289,484) (604,094)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JEWE 5Bk TR &
other receivables Hh EMRIB (M) R (251,653) 115,662
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ENE SRR X
other payables Hip B ), 1 m (55,526) 7,812
Cash generated from KESEE SRS
operating activities 491,329 648,346
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23. Trade and other payables

23. EFE SRRA R E BT HIE

The Group KREH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBT T
Trade payables FERTE S8R 1,840,525 1,923,219
Amounts due to associates FE B & A B 2 SRIE - 5,095
1,840,525 1,928,314
Other payables and accrued expenses HEENRIERETER 343,301 387,731
Advance receipts from customers RPN FRIE 56,383 42,500
2,240,209 2,358,545

The Company K a]
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Other payables and accrued expenses HEihENRIERETER 1,048 1,332
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESBT B & 72 5RIE 92,270 91,797
93,318 93,129
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23. Trade and other payables (Continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

payables and amount due to associates, based on invoice date, T ZXB BRSO -

23. ENESZRAREMEMKIEZ)

RIS - RRE A M S E S BRI A

is as follows:

The Group AREE
2014 2013
—ZE-ME —= =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Within 1 month —@EAAR 985,262 1,072,438
Over 1 month but less than 3 months BE—EARLR=(EA 814,352 814,882
Over 3 months but less than 12 months  #:B={E B R+ @A 18,626 26,328
Over 1 year B —F 22,285 14,666
1,840,525 1,928,314

24. Bank loans

At 31 December 2014, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

24. SRITEN

RIZB-—NFE+-A=+—H BEERTERAT :

The Group KEE
2014 2013
—EF-ImF —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Within 1 year or on demand —FARIEEK 991,831 1,354,737
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMEA 333,462 8,857
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBEREFA 157,914 376,644
After 5 years AFi& 3,132 75,313
494,508 460,814
1,486,339 1,815,551
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24. Bank loans (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank loan facilities are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants imposing certain specific performance
requirements on the Group and a minimum shareholding
requirement on the Group’s major shareholder. If the Group
were to breach the covenant, bank loans drawn down under
such facilities with a total amount of RMB723,328,000 (2013:
RMB1,065,415,000) would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with such covenants
and at 31 December 2014, the Group had complied with the
covenants.

24. SRITER (&)

KEE (%)

AEEPHENRITEFREBETERASEE TR
ERBERNEZLY  RFEAEETZERR 2 KEE
BRER - MASEEZRRITERELY  BEEEND
IRER4A%E A R#723,328,00070( — T — =% : ARK
1,065,415,0007T ) #HREREE - NEEFHEREE
FRONER - RZZT—NF+-_A=+—8 ~&EH
B ESFEY -

The Company KAl
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Within 1 year or on demand —FAFIREK 218,655 78,620
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBERWEN 213,003 -
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERTFNA - 350,075
213,003 350,075
431,658 428,695
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24. Bank loans (Continued) 24. $R17E=H(#®)

At 31 December 2014, the bank loans were secured as follows: Ro-ZE—mE+=—B=+—08 - fTE%aEREEm

T~
The Group KEEE
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Bank loans within one year or on demand ~ —&RSIZEREEHRITER
— Secured — A 496 23,856
— Unsecured — AR 991,335 1,330,881
991,831 1,354,737
Bank loans after one year —FREENRITER
— Secured — A 5,011 110,740
— Unsecured — AR 489,497 350,074
494,508 460,814
1,486,339 1,815,551
The Company AR A]
All of the Company’s bank loans were unsecured as at 31 R-ZE—NER-_ZT—=F+-_HA=+—H ARa2
December 2014 and 2013. EERITE R AE IR o

At 31 December 2014, the secured bank loans are all drawvn R=-ZT—WNF+-_A=+—H AAEBHBE2E T
down under certain bank facilities secured by mortgages over BREEA FEAR10,282,000 (= —=F : ARK
certain land and buildings and investment properties of the Group ~ 434,591,0007T) B £ ith R F 1B EIK IR & TIRITE
with an aggregate carrying value of RMB10,282,000 (2013: EIE NMAEKIFRITERE 2 ZHEE
RMB434,591,000).
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25. Provisions

25. #h

Provision for guaranteed profits R R T B
The Group REEH
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NHE—H—H 94,344
Settlement of provisions HEE RS =
Exchange adjustment b H % 324
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NNFE+_A=+—H 94,668

In respect of acquisition of the Ming Fung equity interest in 2012,
the Group has committed to make a further payment to Ming
Fung, if the profit target for OMAS as set forth in the relevant
agreement is not achieved.

The remaining contingent payments will be due within one year
and were recorded based on management’s best estimation on
the probabilities of whether these profit targets will be achieved
or not and the respective payment amounts according to the
respective contractual agreements.

26. Convertible bonds

On 20 October 2010, the Company issued the HKD Settled 2.5%
Convertible Bonds due 2015 (the “2015 Convertible Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amount of HKD2,500,000,000. The
2015 Convertible Bonds are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.
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26. Convertible bonds (Continued)

The principal terms of the 2015 Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(a) Optional conversion

Each bond could have, at the option of the Bondholders, been
convertible (unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled) on or after 30 November 2010 up to the close of
business on the day falling ten days prior to 20 October 2015
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with a par value
of HKDO0.005 each at an initial conversion price of HKD4.9524
per share. The Conversion Price is subject to adjustments in the
manner set out in the 2015 Convertible Bonds agreement as a
result of dilutive events.

(b) Mandatory conversion

At any time after 20 October 2013, the Company may at its sole
discretion, elect to convert the bonds in whole but not in part
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company provided that
the closing prices of the Company’s shares for 30 consecutive
trading days immediately prior to the date upon which such
mandatory conversion notice is given was at least 130% of the
early redemption amount (an amount representing the principal
amount of the 2015 Convertible Bonds plus a gross yield of 3.5%
per annum for the Bondholders, calculated on a semi-annual
basis up to the relevant redemption date) of a bond divided by
the conversion ratio.

(c) Redemption
— Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and
cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed on 20 October 2015
at 105.413% of their principal amount together with accrued
and unpaid interest thereon.

- Redemption at the option of the Company

If at any time at least 90% of the aggregate principal amount
of the bonds has already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled, then the Company shall have the
option to redeem all but not some only of the outstanding
2015 Convertible Bonds at their early redemption amount as
at that date together with interest accrued to that date.

26. Al EE 2)

—E RETRRESDEEERMT

(@) RIEFEELZ
BEFBAANERN_Z-2F+—A=1THIURE
“E-RFETA-THATRZEZXREAER - UEK
4.9524B L 2 IGRRER ESFER AR AR SREE
0.0058 T 2 #e BB (FRIFEZRIC BB - Hik
FW BB NG BHRERE T -RFARRESD
BNETEEER2FHTAAR -

(b) EFEEE#E

R-ZB—=F+ At HZREMKRE K2R R
TTREZRER 2R (MIEMM)EFBRBARBZHE
BB - GREAREERGIEERBMBAMER
BEEARZHARABRN Z KT EEL REFRFE
Ol & BERABR L1 2130% (REBESEA—_F—H
FAREEFNESHBEABFFREL35%  LE
ERMBELRRFFHEESE) -

(c) fE[D

—  FRGEE[E]
MIEZAIERER « SEiask W KT E5F
R-ZT—AF+A-tANERE LR ER
T B 2 105.413% & o

—  FRAEEEE
R EMER - EHALBEED0%D KIS
# MESKERESY  AAAAEEEHES
BB(MIEAMH) RBEE 2 —F—HEARBES
KEALVES 2 REBE SN REEHA LY
EFIB A -
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26.

(c)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Redemption (Continued)

Redemption at the option of the Company (Continued)
The Early Redemption Amount, for each HKD1,000,000
principal amount of the bonds is set out in the table below,

assuming that the date fixed for redemption is the semi-
annual date:

Semi-annual Date

26. WA ESE @)

(c) ME[EI(#E)

— AR EEERED(E)
BE5 T4 %£1,000,0008 T 2 e R BRI S REEH N T
* BRELZETHRA/F¥ER :

Early Redemption
Amount (HKD)

REBRS
¥EFEH (&)
20 April 2011 —T——FmA=+H 1,005,000.00
20 October 2011 —2——%+A=+H 1,010,087.50
20 April 2012 —T——FWA=+H 1,015,264.03
20 October 2012 —ET——F+H=+H 1,020,531.15
20 April 2013 —E—=FNA=1+H 1,025,890.45
20 October 2013 —E—=%+A=+H 1,031,343.53
20 April 2014 —E—NFMHA=+H 1,036,892.04
20 October 2014 —E-NE+A=+H 1,042,537.65
20 April 2015 —E-RFHA=+H 1,048,282.06

Redemption at option of the Bondholders

The Company could have, at the option of any of the
Bondholders, redeemed all or some of the Bondholders’
bonds on 20 October 2013 at its early redemption amount
as at that date together with interest accrued to that date.

The Company can also, at the option of any of the
Bondholders, redeem all or some of the bonds at its early
redemption amount as at such date together with interest
accrued to such date when there is a change of control of
the Company, or when the ordinary shares of the Company
cease to be listed or admitted to trading on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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26. Convertible bonds (Continued)

(c) Redemption (Continued)

As the functional currency of the Company is the HKD, the
conversion of the 2015 Convertible Bonds will be settled by
exchange of a fixed amount of cash in HKD with a fixed number
of the Company’s equity instruments. In accordance with the
requirements of HKAS 39, Financial Instruments — Recognition
and Measurement, the 2015 Convertible Bonds contract needs to
be separated into a liability component consisting of the straight
debt element and redemption elements of the bonds, and an
equity component representing the options of the Bondholders
to convert the bonds into equity. The proceeds received from the
issue of the Convertible Bonds have been split as follows:

(i) The liability component was initially measured at the fair
value of the contractually determined stream of cash flows
discounted at the prevailing market interest rate applicable
to instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without the conversion features.

The liability component was subsequently measured at
amortised cost using an effective interest rate of 4.6%.

(i)  The equity component represents the conversion option,
which was determined by deducting the fair value of the
liability component from the proceeds of issue of the 2015
Convertible Bonds as a whole.

26. Al EE 2)

) FEE(#)

HRARR 2 ER RET  — T AFAHRES
B SHIETHE 2 AR BRR TAXBMBE T 25
EREEXN - REBFAB G ERFORETA—
BRRGEZHRE T AFTHRREFERED R
BERER D (R ESHERER B L& E 2R AR ) KAk
BED(REFRBAASEFEROER C BIRRE
#) - BT ESMFREE ST ¢

() BEFRDNFEZARBEERSRTENAAER
B DREEBAERYREARBHERRSR
BRIRARR - BN EREREFEN SR TAMER
HERITH IS RREIR -

BEMNERABRN KL 6%ILEHNAE -

(i) BEEOEEREEE BT _T-LFH
BEESNEZEMEFETHRAERNOIR
BERERE -
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26. Convertible bonds (Continued)

(c) Redemption (Continued)

The movement of the liability component and the equity
component of the 2015 Convertible Bonds during the year is set

out below:

26. AR ES @)
() FEE(4#)

FA - T -AFARRESHAGER M RRESRD D

SHHIINT :

Liability Equity
component component Total
a&m PR REER 15 BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT AR®BTRT
As at 1 January 2013 R-E—=%F—H—H 2,023,009 60,412 2,083,421
Interest charged during the year FRFHRF S 69,185 - 69,185
Interest paid during the year FREAFE (46,632) - (46,632)
Derecognised due to repurchase FANERRA R EE
by the Company during the year &% LETERR (247,211) (7,443) (254,654)
Derecognised due to redemption FRAARAREL
by the Company during the year M IEHER (1,690,367) (50,673) (1,741,040)
Foreign currency translation difference YNE 3 =R (31,880) - (31,880)
As at 31 December 2013 and R-E—=F+-_A=+—HK
1 January 2014 —ZE—FE—HF—H 76,104 2,296 78,400
Interest charged during the year FRFHEF S 3,507 - 3,507
Interest paid during the year FREMNFE (1,870) = (1,870)
Foreign currency translation difference YNE 5 M =58 264 - 264
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—NE+=-_B=+—H 78,005 2,296 80,301

No conversion of the 2015 Convertible Bonds has occurred up to

31 December 2014.
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27. Senior notes

In January 2013, the Company issued 6.25% senior notes due
in 2018 in the aggregate principal amount of United States
Dollars(“USD”) 350,000,000 (“the Notes”), which are listed on the
Exchange. The Notes are interest-bearing at 6.25% per annum
and payable semi-annually in arrears. The Notes will mature on
29 January 2018, unless redeemed earlier in accordance with the
terms of the Notes. The net proceeds, after deducting the direct
issuance costs, amounted to approximately USD343,969,622 (RMB
equivalent: 2,158,949,000).

Pursuant to the terms of the Notes, the Notes are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to limitations on indebtedness
and certain transactions of the Group. The Company regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. The Group has
complied with the imposed senior notes covenants for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The Company may redeem part or all of the Notes or, upon the
occurrence of certain events, the Company should make an
offer to purchase all outstanding portions of the Notes at a price
specified in the terms of the Notes.

27. BEEIR

RZB-—=ZF—A XRAEBETEXLER
350,000,000% ([ XL DR =F— \F 2| 26.25E

BEEE(RIE])  ZEZ2BERBIF LT BEZF
BAE6.25E  BERFFI - BRIFRIBEERGETIRAE

O BEIEEEN -_Z—N\FE—A =+ LB - B
M EIZEI TR - FTBRUA R 5840 /5343,969,6225
T(HREN ARE2 158,949,0007T) ©

REZBZGH  RRAGFABEBRHINIHRAE
BETRZEKRR  HAMEE - AABEMERELET
FZERHMERN - BE-_ZE-WFE+-_A=+—HIF
B AKEEETABELEERMNZL -

AARTEEHGHR BRE - RRET SRR -
NN T EIL B 2RSS AR BB E S A N E
BEEBRBHELY -

The movement of the Notes is set out below: Z=yE BEEYI T
RMB’000
ARETT

Upon the completion of the issuance of the Notes: RETEBR TR ¢

Proceeds received for the issuance of the Notes RBTEBUEZ Ff5 5038 2,197,668
Transaction costs on issuance of the Notes BITRBEZ R A (38,719)
Interest charged during the year FRFHRFE 130,759
Interest paid during the year FRNERFE (67,685)
Foreign exchange loss HNGE B 1E 2,166
Foreign currency translation difference OIS = EE (64,958)
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=+—H 2,159,281
Interest charged during the year FRFHRFE 140,446
Interest paid during the year FRAEFFE (133,630)
Foreign exchange loss SNE 518 430
Foreign currency translation difference HNEE 5 IR R 7,428
As at 31 December 2014 R-_ZE—NFE+-_A=1+—H 2,173,905
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28. Employee retirement benefits

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans at rates ranging from 12% to 20% of the eligible
employees’ salaries for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
from 14% to 22%).

Pursuant to the labour regulations of Taiwan and Macau,
the Group joined defined contribution retirement plans for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans at the applicable rates ranging from 1% to 6%
based on the eligible employees’ salaries (2013: from 1% to 6%).

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (2013:
HKD25,000). Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits other
than the contributions described above.
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29. Equity settled share-based transactions

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has a share option
scheme which was adopted on 30 September 2011 pursuant to
the resolutions of the shareholders of the Company to grant share
options to certain senior employees of the Group to subscribe for
shares of the Company at certain exercise prices. The options
vest if certain performance targets are achieved during certain
periods.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grant are as
follows:

20. UHEHFEE RO ERIMARS

R-ZB-—MFE+-A=+—8 AREBREETIE
BARBBRRZRBRMN _F——FNA=THK
e B ARBAAKEETRREERDBRE -
ARETTEERBARTRD - MZEFRENETHME
ZERETRRARF - BEERERAER -

@) RERAREFZOT -

Contractual
Number of life of
instruments Vesting conditions options
BRE
TAHE BEIRME BHED
Options granted to employees:
RTES 2 BAE :
- on 30 September 2011 4,150,000 The purchase rights may be executed 5 years
—RZE—FNA=TH from 30 September 2014 if certain
performance targets were achieved
by then
WERENATRERR BE#IA 5%

“E-MEAA=TRETE
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29. Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
of share options are as follows:

20. URERGEE  ROERIAXRZ @)

(b) FEABEZE RIEFEITEENT

2014 2013
—E-mE =4
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
REFIITRE BREZE MEFHTRE BREHE
HKD 000 HKD ‘000
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BERITE 2.66 1,485 2.66 3,685
Cancelled during the year RERTEHE - - - -
Lapsed during the year RER KM 2.66 (1,100) 2.66 (2,200)
Outstanding at 31 December A+Z=H8=+—HE KT 2.66 385 2.66 1,485
Exercisable at 31 December A+Z=HB=+—Ha{T# 2.66 385 - -

The numbers of the share options shown above, as well as their
exercise prices have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the
bonus issue of shares mentioned in note 31(c) as if the bonus
issue of shares occurred on 30 September 2011.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had an exercise
price of HKD2.66 (2013: HKD2.66) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 2 years (2013: 3 years).
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30. Income tax in the consolidated statement of 30. ZEMBRA R ZABEH
financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #ERIBMRIKRZ FEHIELE -
financial position represents:

The Group AEE

2014 2013

—E—ME —= =4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Provision for income tax for the year FE TSR B 236,717 216,391
Income tax paid EFTSHE (210,757) (197,653)
25,960 18,738

Balances of profits tax provision relating to prior years are both nil RZZE—NFER-_ZT—=F+-_F=+—H  BLBEF

at 31 December 2014 and 2013. EZASRBEEREI AT -
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30.

financial position (Continued)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(i) Deferred tax assets recognised:

30. ZZAMBRARZAEH &)

(b) EEZFEEEEEEREE

() ERFBELHEAEE -

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the REZ_ZE—MF+_A=+—HILMEFENESZE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements  BF 7k 53R ARERR 2 IEERLTE & B 2 BN 1D R ZEh
during the two years ended 31 December 2014 are as follows: HIEAT
The Group rEE
Depreciation
Impairment charges
of trade in excess of
and other  Inventory Tax losses Unrealised Accrued depreciation
receivables provision not utilised profit ~ expenses allowances Total
EHES TEER
R R EAM il BRATE
BUHERE HFERE BERE AEREN W BRER by @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR AR¥ETR AR%T:x
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H 344 11,767 6,092 30,810 3,922 - 52,935
Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss EB&EA/ (F5) 1,287 5,456 15,030 (13,769) 6,470 = 14,474
W-ZE-=%+=A
At 31 December 2013 =+—8k
and 1 January 2014 —T-NE—-A—H 1,631 17,223 21,122 17,041 10,392 - 67,409
Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss EB#HTA/ (k) (607) (164) 7,610 (3,923) 605 1,237 4,758
RZE-NF+=A
At 31 December 2014 =t+—H 1,024 17,059 28,732 13,118 10,997 1,237 72,167
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30. Income tax in the consolidated statement of 30. &SRR Z B &)
financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) EZBELFEEERAEE)
(Continued)
(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised (i) EMERELHIEEE

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the #HZE-—Z—MMFE+=-A=+—HItMEEE  REa0t
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements  F&4k R 3k 7 B R IEIE T IA & (& 2 4858 20 1 & & & in

during the two years ended 31 December 2014 are as follows: B
The Group KEE
Fair value
Expected profit adjustments
distribution by in relation to
the Group’s PRC business
subsidiaries combinations Others Total
BHAEE
B 2 ) REBEH
DR EF AAERE it @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—H—H 29,802 16,652 3,861 50,315
Arising from Weks — R B A Rl E A
acquisition of a subsidiary - 75,695 - 75,695
Charged/(credited) RERIR/(GTA)
to profit or loss - (727) 1,360 633
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+ZA=+—Hk
and 1 January 2014 —“Z-—NMF—A—H 29,802 91,620 5,221 126,643
Charged/(credited)
to profit or loss RBEE/(GtA) (7,664)* (7,207) 4,637 (10,234)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—ME+=A=+—H 22,138 84,413 9,858 116,409

* The amount represents the reversal of deferred tax liabilities  * MEBEANRENENHELEHBEEERESEEAR
on withholding tax in respect of dividends paid during the year #7,644,0007T ©
amounting to RMB7,664,000.
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30. Income tax in the consolidated statement of

financial position (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(t), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB287,124,000 (20183:
RMB288,202,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. These tax losses will expire
during the period from 2015 to 2019.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the Tax Law of the PRC, 10% withholding tax is
levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign investors who are
registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain criteria) in
respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign investment
enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB22,138,000 (31 December 2013: RMB29,802,000) have
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of the retained profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries.

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB122,965,000 (2013: RMB96,950,000)
have not been recognised, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that certain of the profits earned by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries for the year from 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2014 will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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(©) KERZELEFHEEE

BB IO S SR - BRERRE A EAER R
B BBR AT R T AL ERTS B A0 AR 2K I AR Bt v A1) A 1| F 3% 85
1B ANEBERH RGBS EEARME287,124,0007T(=
T4 : AR¥288,202,0007T) BRELEFBEEE °
ZERBERER - RAFE_T—NERH -

(0) KRIERZFELEHEERE

RETEBE  INEREEAMIIBRELTER_-FF
NE—A— B ARRBUZ &M M E L 2 BB D IRIZH R
10%H BB - REBEMZINBREEMTEET
TRAERIR T 5% H T TR -
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BB X B 0 R R B2 O A F IR HE R A R %622,138,0007T
WELEHBEAE(ZZE—=F+-RA=+—H0:: AR¥
29,802,0007T) °

HRARRAREHZENBRARZBERE N LEEFE
FRAIBERAI RS R AEBHRENBERRANR_ZT
NF—A—BEZT—NF+=-A=+—HHBEKR
ZETHRIETHR  BUEBREEHEEBEARE
122,965,00070(ZZF— =% : AK%96,950,0007T) °



31. Capital, reserves and dividends

(@) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

31. BX ~ HERRE

(@) BmAKEDZEZE

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

AEBFARASAKRBN 2 FONRFRERE RN
FRREEPR - NARANFIRFRZ B @ BIAMNK
BRI EBFHEHIIMT -

The Company KAl
Capital
Share Share redemption Capital  Exchange  Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BA  ROEE RABRGE EXBE ERRE REER o
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
iz ARETn ARETRT ARETR ARETr ARETR AR®Tr ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-A-Hz&s 21,285 2,709,508 58 61,534 (358,699) (563,135) 1,870,551
Changes in equity for 2018: ~ RZE-=FEEREE:
Total comprehensive FEZARAEE
income for the year - - - - (59,014) 465,351 406,337
Dividends approved in respect Btk BAEERS
of the previous year 31(b) = = = = = (174,651)  (174,651)
Issuance of bonus shares BATARR 1,765 (1,755) - - - - -
Equity settled INEREE
share-based transactions RHERX RS 29 - - - 324 - (567) (243)
Repurchase of BEMARES
convertible bonds - - - (68,116) - 58,116 -
Purchase of own shares BEARRRRG
- par value paid -BREE (108) - - - = - (105)
— premium paid -Bf&E - - - - - (65,472) (55,472)
— transfer between reserves A - - 105 = = (105) =
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=Z—=%+-A=1+-H
and 1 January 2014 kZE-MmE-A-H 22,935 2,707,753 163 3,742 #17,7113) (270,463) 2,046,417
Changes in equity for 2014:  RZZ-MEEZEE)
Total comprehensive income  FE2EAWALE
for the year - - - - 9,898 (73,148) (63,250)
Dividends approved in respect ~ #tEBEEERE
of the previous year 31(b) - - - - - (119,978)  (119,978)
Issuance of bonus shares BAR
Equity settled INERER - RIDER
share-based transactions %5 29 - - - (696) - 81 (615)
Purchase of own shares BEAR AL 31(c)fi)
- par value paid -BfiAE (15) - - - - - (15)
~ premium paid ~BAEE - - - - - (4,869) (4,869)
— transfer between reserves ~-f#EHER - - 15 - - (15) -
Balance at 31 December 2014 A=Z—[M%
TZA=t+-Be&8 22,920 2,707,753 178 3,046 (407,815  (468,392) 1,857,690
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(b) Dividends
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

31. EX - FEERERER#E)

(b) ARE

()

AREREN KR BRI FFEARKE

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Final dividend proposed after the end A HR B R R AR B
of the reporting date of RMB0.032 FhikE@ERARK0.0327T
per ordinary share —E—=F: gkTak
(2013: RMB0.025 per ordinary share) AR¥0.0257T) 153,100 119,978

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

BEPARRBRARPRE L ENRERRERREE -

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) ~ NEZHTHEE R 178781 BT ECF /2 E TR 2
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and FIR 1715 B A BIER.E
paid during the year
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Final dividend in respect of the REEMIE R MEBE
previous financial year, approved BB E R B B
and paid during the year of R ARK0.0257T
RMBO0.025 per share (ZZ=—=F : §RARK0.047T)
(2013: RMBO0.04 per share) 119,978 174,651
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 3. BN HERBRRE#E)
(c) Share capital (c) A
() Authorised and issued share capital () EERBZHITIRA
2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=F
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares HKD shares HKD
BOEE SEEET BEghr 2] SRABTT
Authorised: JEIE
Ordinary shares of FMMEE0.005/5 7T
HKDO0.005 each 2 A% 10,000,000,000 50,000,000 10,000,000,000 50,000,000
2014 2013
—Z-mE == =
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares HKD shares HKD
B E ESEEETT i gnr S ¢E] SRABTT
Issued and fully paid: EETRHE
At 1 January n—A—H 4,802,906,959 24,014,534 4,392,439,054 21,962,195
Share repurchase BB EIR% 1D (3,776,000) (18,880) (26,160,000) (130,800)
Issuance of bonus shares  ZE{TAL% - - 436,627,905 2,183,139
At 31 December RNt-=HB=+—H 4,799,130,959 23,995,654 4,802,906,959 24,014,534
equivalent equivalent
=) e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AR®T T
22,920 22,935

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

ERRBAAGRRBRIRERZKE - B/ Bk
MARARRBERAG LR—F - AL ARELAR
RpEENHOZ AR SRS
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)
(i) Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a total of 3,776,000
shares were repurchased on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HKD6,182,000 (RMB equivalent: 4,884,000)
which includes related transaction costs of HKD19,000 (RMB
equivalent: 15,000).

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares. Pursuant to section 37(4) of Cayman
Islands Companies Law, an amount equivalent to the par value
of the shares cancelled of RMB15,000 was transferred from the
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve. The premium
paid on the repurchase of shares equivalent to RMB4,869,000
was charged to the retained profits.

(i) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the
end of the reporting period

31. EX - FEERERER#E)

(c) A (&)

(i)  FBEARLERD
BHE_Z-—-NE+_A=+—BILEE & H#
3,776,000 [E M ERBEA R AR A TR - EfF
4R (E 56,182,000 7T (& AR % 4,884,0007T) © &
FEAERERZ 5K 419,000 T (Ffré ARE15,0000T) °

BRIZRMEEN - Bt ARRZEBITRAREZ
ERMHzEE - REMSHSRBEFITAK  BE
KPR EE 2 £ B ARK15,0007TE BRE A
BREEABOGE - ABEBRMDAN B EESE
R AR ¥4,869,0007T) E AR B g Mk

(i)  REERIRAREN R ATTIEBIRAEZ FH

Exercise 2014 2013

Exercise period price Number Number

—ZT—MF =%

1758 TEE HE A

30 September 2014 to —E-MFEALA=THE HKD2.66 385,000 1,485,000
29 September 2016 ZE—R"FARAZTNAB 2.66/5 7T

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. Further details of these options are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
() Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands.
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31.

Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

(i)

The excess of the consideration paid by the Company over
the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired under the Group’s reorganisation
in 2005.

The portion of the grant date fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 1(s)(ii).

The amount allocated to the unexercised equity component
of convertible bonds issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 1(0).

The difference between the consideration paid by the Group
to non-controlling interest holders and the carrying amount

of the respective non-controlling interests.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
entities within the Group whose functional currency is other

than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(w).

(iv)  Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of other investments held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
in note 1(g).

BER - REERBRE @)

3.

(@) mEEEEKHE L4
(i) BEXHE
ARERENTSE

- ARRZENAEBBAEER _ZTRFEA
PUCBB I B N R 2 IR A E B4R ER ©

—  EMEE(S)(N B AR RER IR 2 G ERR
ERAEEREER 2 BIRFAFT B HRITE
BREZRHBRDAERD

—  EMEIARBREFRA S ERRERLR
BIB1T 2 P BRME S5 2 RITEE R AARK BB 1D 7
[t -

- AKEEMEEERERTAACRERBRHIEE
Pt 2 BREE 28 ©

(i) ESL1E
ERFEERREREENEREERARBUIINERE 2
AEBERMBHREEZMEINEELZR - L
DI IR EE (W) T BN S BRER IR IR ©

(iv) DA (ER#E
AREFRBEEBERRENEEE ARFA 2 EMIRE ReT
RAEEBFEMBIBME QAN FETRRERE -
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31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  PRC statutory reserve

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves were
made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC and were approved by the respective
boards of directors.

PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, enterprise
expansion fund, and statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group, which are wholly foreign owned
enterprises in the PRC, are required to transfer 10% of their profit
after taxation, as determined under PRC Accounting Regulations,
to the general reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of their registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to shareholders. Moreover,
they are required to transfer a certain percentage of their profit
after taxation, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the enterprise
expansion fund.

The general reserve fund can only be used to make good
previous years’ losses upon approval by the relevant authority.
The enterprise expansion fund can only be used to increase
the entity’s capital or to expand its production operations upon
approval by the relevant authority.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce previous years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up capital,
provided that the balance of the reserve after such conversion is
not less than 25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries.

(vi)  Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company may be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2014 was RMB2,239,361,000 (2013:
RMB2,426,595,000).
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(@) mEEEEKEL )

() FEEERERE

AR B ER o B A BB Bk ALA S AR 2 1R e B A
LRI B R RIMEIRAE - R BAIEEE S E%
EfEH - BRESHBARNESSRE -

TEZERERE —RER  CEBRRESRAERR

=3
N

RIEBEBETEERRER  AEENTRMB LR (B
FRENIEEELE)ARRERRTESHREETE
Z10% MR aEMNEEE -—RFEES - AEREERE
FRREEMER 250% © B = I B AR D IR
BETBRAET - I REABBRRBETELRER
RAEEZETANLBRENECEHRES -

—RFGEESRAESIERIEE RUERBIERMA
BEFEEE CRBERESRUAESIBHAIEER
HERRERNERZ EASMREE 2 EEET

EERBABAREIRBEFEBR(INE)  RAHE
BREHERA  EZEBRREHRTESIRINB AR
ME&EZARZ25% °

(i) ARSI

RIERSHSARE - ARQRAEARD &EREMK
RZDIREARE - AR D RN EREEZ T DR
EBHHENAIRAEEETEEINREL AR -

R-_ZE—WWE+-_A=+—H AP RHEERE
A AR #2230361,000( — T —=ZF: AR
2,426,595,0007T) ©



31. Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The net gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 is 27% (2013:
30%). The net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net debts
with total equity, where net debts comprise total interest-bearing
borrowings, convertible bonds and senior notes minus cash and
cash equivalents.

The Group is subject to covenants based on the Group’s financial
ratios relating to capital requirements and interest coverage
imposed by the lenders of the interest-bearing borrowings and
the covenants relating to limitations on indebtedness and certain
transactions stipulated in the terms of senior notes. The Group
complied with the imposed loan and senior notes covenants for
the year ended 31 December 2014. Except for the above, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

31. EX - HERBRE#)

(e) BEAXEH
AREBHNBRNRFRESE - BREAMNTSHEL - I
TIEEBARKRER -

ARERERTHHAARBHERT REE - WER
BRI T a2 8 Bk PR A0S
AR R RARRE 2 RIS T8 - S HRAE R
SRR A AR B -

RIZE-—NF+-A=1+—H  EXEEFLI[/27%
(ZF—=%:30%) - EXRBBEFLXENFREG
BERERE  IREREFLRELRBERRESMREEFE
YRR AR ARRRRTE -

’

AEEFZRIBEBBEARTE RME BN Z ML EM
B SEENETRIMNRY BREBRHINRZLN K
BEARBEIARENETRZARR - BE_F—N
FH-A=1t—HALFE ~AKEEETABRERLE
RRBZL - B EXPTES - ARABHEEMMBA
B 2SN BB ANR) B A IR TE FRALAR -
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32. Commitments

(@) Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as 31 December 2014 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

32. KiE

(@) BAFKE

R-ZT—MFE+ - A=+—HHEKRETELERYEH

RAFHEBR B Z EARERIIAT

2014 2013

—Z-EF —TET—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Authorised but not contracted for BERERKRETL 45,432 66,625

(b) Operating lease commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

(b) AEHHEFRIE

PAREEEHE 2 BN ARRERSARHINNT

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Within 1 year —F R 239,536 255,232
After 1 year but within 5 years BE—FEIRASF 191,199 231,250
After 5 years HBiE T a 14,963 24,978
445,698 511,460

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and
the leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 7 years, with
an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
In addition to the minimum rental payments disclosed above,
the Group has a commitment to pay rent based on a proportion
of turnover for certain leased properties. Contingent rentals are
not included in the above commitments as it is not possible to
estimate the amounts which may be payable.
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33. Material related party transactions

(@) Key management personnel compensation and
post-employment benefit plans

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed
in note 8, is as follows:

33. EXHEARS
(@ FEEIEAEBHWKEERZEFE

AEETEEEABTFHERNTARRIESEZEH
(WERME?) B TR 5 MEB(HERHES)

2013
—E—=fF
RMB’000
ARBFIT

Short-term employee benefits 5 HA(E B 15 A
Post-employment benefits B 1 5 F

26,731
209

26,940

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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33. Material related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Recurring transactions

8. EXFAEAXS (&)

b) BEMEXS

The Group KEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Lease expenses to a joint venture YRFEERRZHEER 4,500 4,500
Sales of goods to associates HEE M B & Aa 11,307 19,935
Commission income obtained from an BTN PN
associate - 416
Purchase of goods from an associate ML A R IE S m 9,229 21,008
Payments made on behalf of an REEE N R FR
associate 4,726 -
Payments made on behalf of a joint REERQRNK
venture 7,125 4,227

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above transactions with related parties were conducted in the
ordinary course of business, on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the agreements governing such transactions.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the directors’
remuneration constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however they are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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34. Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in its own
equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to 60 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 1 month
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group had no significant
concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the statements of financial position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 20.

34. MHEREER N RE

AEBREEXBRETEREE  RBES  FERE
KRR - ARETAZASBRNERER < RERR -

AEBERES 2 HLEFRRMASEREERILERRZ
MsRREEBRRREMHRTX -

(@) FE@ERE
AEERNEERREZRE EIWE SRR R E A EKGK
He BEEEHTEEERR  UHEHMBEAXNEER
R P TEEER o

LN E 5 R R EMERFIAN T - YERESEE
RFEBBNEEZEPYRETELEENE - &
HERPRHERZBELSENE AT ZEREN - X5t
REFZIHREMREREPKEMEZLBERA - &
W 5N ERE R HEF0E0R AEIH - FHE
H—EAREEFRZEBARER TEME—FEE
Al ABEMBERERZFIEA - AEE-—RTEREP
YER R o

RBERR - AEEYBEAKFEERR - AXHK
SEERRAVHIRARTEAESREENREE

ERASERREESRAREMREFIRMEL ZE
B2 — S EEC BN E20

wmpaRsd —2-mees 187

V %



34. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from banks to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
and the Company can be required to pay:
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34. Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) EEBELERE)

34. BHEBREERARE®)

The Group KEF
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over5  contractual Carrying
31 December 2014 demand over 1year  over 2 years years cash flow amount
—E0R WEUR LENUR REREH
ZE-METZA=T-H FREX  ERE-F  BRERE BBRF RenE REE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Trade and other payables EREZRAR
excluding advance receipts Hth IR (T adE
from customers EFBH) 2,183,826 - - - 2,183,826 2,183,826
Secured interest-bearing loans BERTEER 507 519 1,630 3,241 5,807 5,507
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &A=t B EH 996,677 342,975 167,102 247 1,507,001 1,480,832
Convertiole bonds ARES 80,918 - - - 80,918 78,005
Senior notes BEFE 133,853 133,853 2,342,430 - 2,610,136 2,173,905
3,395,781 477,347 2,511,162 3,488 6,387,778 5,922,075
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over 5 contractual Carrying
31 December 2013 demand over 1year  over 2 years years cash flow amount
—EHR MER RER AEREH
ZE-ZHtZA=t-H FREX  BEE-F  BEERF BBAF RERE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TE  AR%Tr  AR%Tr  AR%Tr  AR%Tr  AR%Tx
Trade and other payables EREZRTR
excluding advance receipts E RS
from customers (TREEPZH) 2,316,045 - - - 2,316,045 2,316,045
Secured interest-bearing loans BEMABER 24,744 9,032 27,096 85,512 146,384 134,596
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &t B EH 1,348,304 - 359,309 - 1,707,613 1,680,955
Convertible bonds AR {ES 1,900 82,014 - - 83,914 76,104
Senior notes BRZE 133,370 133,370 2,467,339 - 2,734,079 2,159,231
3,824,363 224,416 2,853,744 85,512 6,988,035 6,366,931
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34. Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

34. BAT5 R B

b) REELER &)

BEANRER)

The Company ARE]
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over 5 contractual Carrying
31 December 2014 demand over 1year  over 2 years years cash flow amount
—FHR MELA RENR FEREH
“Z-NE+ZA=t-H ZRER  EEBE-F  (EREWME jekekika BEnE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARBT T ARBTR ARBTR
Trade and other payables ERESERR
excluding advance receipts HitEMFE
from customers (TEERPZN) 93,318 - - - 93,318 93,318
Unsecured interest-bearing loans  EHA 8 EH 223,283 219,858 - - 443,141 431,658
Convertible bonds R ES 80,918 - - - 80,918 78,005
Senior notes BEZR 133,853 133,853 2,342,430 - 2,610,136 2,173,905
531,372 353,711 2,342,430 - 3,227,513 2,776,886
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over 5 contractual Carrying
31 December 2013 demand over 1year  over 2 years years cash flow amount
—E0R WEAA RENR REREH
ZE-ZHtZA=1-H FREX  BEE-F  BREMEF BBRAE Reng REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETLE  AR®TR  AR%Tr  AR%Tr  ARBTrT  ARBTx
Trade and other payables ERESERR
excluding advance receipts EG R ENE
from customers (TEEEPZF) 93,129 - - - 93,129 93,129
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &L S EH 80,276 - 359,309 - 439,585 428,695
Convertible bonds AkES 1,900 82,014 - - 83,914 76,104
Senior notes BERE 133,370 133,370 2,467,339 - 2,734,079 2,159,231
308,675 215,384 2,826,648 - 3,350,707 2,757,159

1 9 0 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

V X



34. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
loans, convertible bonds and senior notes.

Borrowings issued at variable rates, and borrowings, convertible
bonds and senior notes issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The interest rates and maturity information of the
interest-bearing bank loans, convertible bonds and senior notes
are disclosed in note 24, 26 and 27 respectively.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk to ensure
there are no undue exposures to significant interest rate
movements and rates are relatively fixed. The Group does not
account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

34. BMBEBREERARE @)

(c) FIE @R
AEEZFERREERSFFEER - JREESRE

AR R B KB o UBEERNRFEH 2 550 AR
BEHFREARBRSAEEDFIAZREREN KRR Kk
RABENERER - FHEBTER  TRRESRELR
B2 MR EBIHER D BRI FE24 ~ 26 K27 EE -

AEE 2 BRREIEEN EE g AR B AR EEAT
REE PARHEEF R 2 mR o AKEWES AME(TB
BRSEAABIRZEENEERAE - TEATE
ERMTAPEBEBKEE -

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s AEERFEBZFTEEBTARERERDT -
interest-bearing financial instruments was:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
BRI ARBTT YIRS ARETTT
Fixed rate instruments EEFEIR
Unsecured interest-bearing loans KA S B 0.92%~6.44% 879,244 0.92%~6% 887,910
Convertible bonds AR ES 4.6% 78,005 4.6% 76,104
Senior notes BEER 6.77% 2,173,905 6.77% 2,159,231
3,131,154 3,128,245
Variable rate instruments AEAETE
Secured interest-bearing loans BT EER 2.29% 5,507 1.97%~7.20% 134,596
Unsecured interest-bearing loans IRt B E R 1.92%~6.56% 601,588 2.06%~7.22% 793,045
607,095 927,641
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34. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily RMB
and HKD.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving RMB must take place through the
People’s Bank of China or other institutions authorised to buy and
sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the PBOC rates.

() Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

34. MHEBREER R RIE

(@) EEER
REREAZINE R M B RRRBI AR 2E
ML ERETHHE BEREE - EAURARNE
BEEBRBARERBTT

ARBIFERLBIEING - RS RAREHINER
HURRREARRITHEMBERES BINENBEEL
17 - MINER BN ERBHPBARRITERE °

() FHREZEEER
TRAVAEERBERARK G AERBINEE R U
EERTHEMEEREEXABE 2R

As at 31 December 2014
(expressed in RMB)
R=F—MF+=A=+—A

(UAREZ5)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARETT BT T
Cash and cash equivalents HENIEESZEEY) 508 31,612
Trade and other payables JETE SRR R B A AT 508 (443) (1,475,002)
Trade and other receivables JEURE 5 Bk 31 K E At fE U 5k TE 141,690 109,045
Overall net exposure BEE R TR 141,755 (1,334,345)

As at 31 December 2013
(expressed in RMB)
M-2-=#+=-A=+-A

(AARHEZ5)
RMB’000 HKD’000
AR®E T BT T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSEEY 49,453 32,821
Trade and other payables FEA B 5 BR 20 I E A FE A 2RIB (441) (1,631,809)
Trade and other receivables FEUN B 5 BE 7k K H i E Yk TE 102,150 135,377
Overall net exposure AL b SRR 151,162 (1,463,611)
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34. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s net profit for the year that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant. The sensitivity analysis includes
balances between group companies where the balances are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower.

34. BMBEBREERARE @)

@) EEmEEE)

(i)  SEEST

TRATANBERR - AREAFAENE AEZES)
(REMEEMRERATEBRF T EL2ERERZ
AEBZ FRENFHE BB - FREINBERERE
BRREZ R MaxFERTIAERARERAZY
REEEIAINEESRE -

2014 2013
—Z—E —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T

HKD BT
- 5% strengthening of RMB - AR¥EFAES5% 72,309 63,477
- 5% weakening of RMB - AR¥E{E5% (72,309) (63,477)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rate had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rate over the period until the end of next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2013.

B SURE DT AR RS HIR AT g h3R 2 [E R & %)
MEE  WERARASBEZZERREATEZERMT
HprEEN S ¥ AR - UEMEEMER - FilZF
@R TE - MIISSHEEEEREE TEFERS
HIRAIE R 2 A EERBEEL 2 FF L - —F—=F
Z A TRAMR R BT LT
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34. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from changes in
the Company’s own share price to the extent that the Company's
own equity instruments underlie the fair values of financial
derivatives of the Group. As at the end of the reporting period
the Group is exposed to this risk through the redemption rights
attached to the convertible bonds issued by the Company as
disclosed in note 26.

(f)  Fair values measurement
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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34. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(f)  Fair values measurement (Continued)

()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

34. BMBEBREERARE @)

6 RAEGE#E)
() BARETAEZEHBEERAEE)

(Continued)
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
RZB-—MNE+ZA=+—-BIBENTZARENE
Fair value at
31 December
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E-IF
+t=A=+-
AZARE e e £=@
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®TR ARETR AR%Tx
The Group AEE
Other investments (note 18): B E (H7#18):
Listed investment in RIRAE S 2 ETTIRE

equity securities

71,065 71,065 = =

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was no transfer
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3.

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

Unlisted equity securities of RMB797,000 (2013: RMB797,000) do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and therefore
their fair values cannot be reliably measured. They are held for
strategic purposes and recognised at cost less impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period

2T NFE+_A=+—HILFE  F—HEF—
BTEEWEERER  NMEEE=-RT AE A
H o

(i) WU EFTEZ2HTALTE
AR#797,0000t(=—ZF— =4 : AR#797,0007T) 2
I EMBRAB AL ERRIGERTIS 2 RIE - FiLE

DAEBEA RN E - REBRAEBFFHAERBIUERE
B WRREARBR AR E R IRER -

wpRERRAsd —z—-meen 195

V %



34. Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(9) Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value for each class of financial instruments:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, trade
and other receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

(i) Interest-bearing bank loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
value based on the borrowing rate currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.

35. Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Best
Growth International Limited, which is incorporated in British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use.
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36. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the annual accounting period
ended 31 December 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

{ER] R FR I 2R

36. BHE-F—MNFE+_RA=+—HLE
AR M B R & BRIIERT « g%
AR RBRmRERE

BEAPBHRRTZEEY  FESAMASCHMEOR
| o W FER] R EANRBE—F— /M
F+ZA=t "B LFERRER - TARARAFBHREK
FERA o TR EEASE AR 2 EFT RATgER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RETHBEIERER

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions
BB ERNE19R(BETAR) - REENEE - EEHH
Annual improvements to HKFRS 2010-2012 cycle
HE BV B HREAEA2010-20124A 8 2 FEEE
Annual improvements to HKFRS 2011-2013 cycle
HEBMIEHE2ERI2011-201 3B H 2 F E kg
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions
of interests in joint operations
BEMBMELRBNEIRUERTAR) - WEREE LN AIRBHEETE
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation
BB G ERNE16 REB G ERIEI8K(EETAR)  A/ERHIITERE 7 ESH
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
EEUBMEERFEGS - KEEFEHZBA
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BRWBRELNFN - M TA

1 July 2014
—ET-mFE+HA—H
1 July 2014
—E-MFE+-H—H
1 July 2014
—ZE-mNE+H—H

1 January 2016
—E—RF—H—H

1 January 2016
—E—X~F—A—H
1 January 2017
—ET—+F¥—H—H
1 January 2018
—E—-N\F—A—H
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36. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the annual accounting period
ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation from the company’s first financial year commencing
after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the company’s financial year which
began on 1 January 2015) in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the period
of initial application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only affect
the presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements.
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